# Accreditation Manual

2019

**National Accreditation Commission** for Early Care and Education Programs







# 2019

# Accreditation Manual

**National Accreditation Commission** for Early Care and Education Programs



www.earlylearningleaders.org



# **Acknowledgements**

We are grateful to the many individuals who provided us with support and suggestions on revision of the Commission Standards:

#### National Accreditation Commission Policy Council

Margaret Collins, Chair Diane Nicolet, Ph.D.

Bill Berk Margee Ready

Jesse Leinfelder, Ed.D Christian Winterbottom, Ph.D.

Ron McGuckin, J.D.

#### Special Thanks To

Hester Paul, M.S., National Director, Eco-Healthy Child Care®, Children's Environmental Health Network

Colleen Tracy Haddad, Director of Development, National Accreditation Commission

Erin Schmidt, Director of Accreditation, National Accreditation Commission



Additionally, we thank the programs and the multitude of early childhood professionals who assisted in the development of the 2019 revision by providing feedback on the draft Standards.



The National Accreditation Commission is offered by the Association for Early Learning Leaders under the direction of its Board of Directors. With special appreciation to the Board for their unfailing support throughout the revision process.

#### **2019 Board of Directors**

Ron McGuckin, J.D., President Lori Picklesimer

Alix Hall, Vice President Debra Rodriguez

Lynette Galante, Secretary Tymothy Smith

Bobette Thompson, Treasurer Michael Swain

Margaret Collins Ryan & Shanon Taylor

Shannon Hendricks Mary Hornbeck, Past President

#### **National Accreditation Commission Staff Contributions and Edits by:**

Erin Schmidt, Director of Accreditation Laura Genz, Validation Visit Coordinator

Kim Pham, Logistics Coordinator Lori Buxton, Managing Director

Laura Landsman, Project Specialist Colleen Tracy Haddad, Director of Development



# **Table of Contents**

U	V	e	r	V	e	V	V
							Ī

Welcome
Eligibility
Fees
Philosophy
History
Four Steps of Accreditation
The Accreditation Decision
Maintaining Accreditation
Annual Reports
Unannounced Visits
Withdrawal of Accreditation
Use of Logos
Reporting Changes to the National Accreditation Commission
Review of Accreditation Manual
Self-Study Timetable
lministrator's Report
Instructions for Using Administrator's Report
Preparing the Administrator's Report for the Validation Visit
Administrator's Report (Standards A1-D24)
A. Administration
B. Professional Development
C. Family Engagement
D. Program Health and Safety
Instructions for Completing Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log83
Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log
assroom Observation
Instructions for Using Classroom Observation
Overview
Observations of Classrooms/Teachers
Preparing the Classroom Observation for the Validation Visit
Classroom Observation (Standards E1-G8)
E. Curriculum
F. Interactions between Teachers and Children
G. Classroom Health and Safety 130
Instructions for Completing Observation Record
<b>Observation Record</b>

\*All forms are shown in italics



#### **Surveys**

Instructions for Completing Employee Survey	 	 143
Example	 	 144
Recording Employee Survey Totals	 	 144
Employee Survey	 	 145
Instructions for Completing Family Survey	 	 151
Recording Family Survey Totals	 	 152
Family Survey	 	 153
Survey Verifications	 	 156
Employee Survey Verification	 	 156
Family Survey Verification	 	 156
Documentation		
Instructions for Using Document Organization	 	 158
Document Organization	 	 159
Administrator's Report (Standards A1-D24)	 	 159
Classroom Observation (Standards E1-G8)	 	 180
Self-Study Documentation	 	 184
Children and Employee Records Document Review	 	 186
Validation Visit		
Instructions for Submitting Request for Validation Visit	 	 189
Eligibility Requirements	 	 189
Before Submitting the Request	 	 189
Communication	 	 190
Scheduling the Onsite Validation Visit	 	 190
Block Out Dates	 	 190
Timeframe	 	 190
Two-Week Window	 	 191
Scheduling Timeline	 	 191
Request for Validation Visit	 	 192
Required Documents	 	 193
Instructions for Completing Program Profile	 	 194
Program Profile	 	 195
Disclaimer	 	 197
Day of Onsite Validation Visit	 	 198
Points to Remember	 	 198
Director's Schedule during a One-Day Onsite Validation Visit	 	 198
Exit Interview		
Typical Validator Schedule for a One-day Onsite Validation Visit		

\*All forms are shown in italics



# Glossary

Glossary of Terms		 	 	 	 	 201
Accreditation Standard	ds	 	 	 	 	 201
Appendices						
A: Sample Letter to Fami	ilies	 	 	 	 	 220
B: Bibliography						
Administration		 	 	 	 	 221
Classroom		 	 	 	 	 222

# **Overview**

# **Contents of this Section**

Welc	ome	2
Е	ligibility	2
F	ees	2
Philo	osophy	3
Histo	ory	3
2	009 Revisions of the Accreditation Manual	3
А	dministrator's Report	4
C	lassroom Observation	4
2	019 Revisions of the Accreditation Manual	5
Four	Steps of Accreditation	5
S	tep 1: Self-Study	5
S	tep 2: Validation Visit	5
S	tep 3: Commission Review and Decision	5
S	tep 4: Compliance	5
The A	Accreditation Decision	7
Α	ppeals Process	7
Main	taining Accreditation	7
А	nnual Reports	7
U	nannounced Visits	3
V	/ithdrawal of Accreditation	3
U	se of Logos	3
R	eporting Changes to the National Accreditation Commission $\ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots$	3
Revi	ew of Accreditation Manual	9
C	ommission Standards	9
V	erification of Commission Standards	9
F	orms	)
V	alidation Visit	)
G	lossary of Terms	J
В	ibliography	J
Salf_	Study Timetable	7



### Welcome

Thank you for your interest in the National Accreditation Commission for Early Care and Education Programs (National Accreditation Commission) of the Association for Early Learning Leaders. The Association for Early Learning Leaders is committed to excellence in the field of early childhood care and education by promoting leadership development and enhancing program quality. Our goal is to strengthen the knowledge, skills, and abilities of owners, directors, emerging leaders, and other early learning professionals to ensure quality programs for young children. In addition to program accreditation, the Association offers membership, professional development opportunities, and resources to administrators.

We encourage you to closely examine the information enclosed, and see for yourself why the accreditation process of the National Accreditation Commission is a valid and appropriate choice for early childhood programs across the country. Materials and instructions for the Self-Study process are included in this manual.

The Self-Study period is an in-depth review of practices that are indicative of high-quality care as identified via research and the shared wisdom and insight of early childhood professionals. The Self-Study process provides participating programs the opportunity to assess their current operation and to make improvements to more fully meet Standards. Families, employees, and administrators have a role in the Self-Study process.

We encourage you to begin the Self-Study process today. Program improvement will occur as you implement individual Standards.

It is a goal of the National Accreditation Commission that early care and education programs feel comfortable in choosing and supported in achieving national accreditation. Accreditation staff members are available to help in your accreditation efforts.

We applaud your commitment to quality care for children as evidenced by your interest in accreditation. Welcome to the National Accreditation Commission for Early Care and Education Programs.

# **Eligibility**

Early care and education programs applying for accreditation must be in compliance with state and local regulatory agencies. Programs must have been in continuous operation for at least one year at the time of the validation visit. Only programs that have an enrollment of fifteen or more children and operate on a half- or full-day basis are eligible. Programs operating under separate licensing and/or having separate physical locations will be considered as separate entities for participation in the National Accreditation Commission.

The National Accreditation Commission does not accredit kindergartens, family group homes, or standalone school-age group care. School-age groups associated with a preschool, with the same onsite director, and located at the same site with the same license must participate in the Self-Study and accreditation process.

#### **Fees**

Fees are listed online at www.earlylearningleaders.org.

If you would like to know more about the National Accreditation Commission or other resources and benefits offered by the Association for Early Learning Leaders, please contact us:

www.earlylearningleaders.org

PHONE 1-800-537-1118 E-MAIL info@earlylearningleaders.org



# **Philosophy**

The purpose of the National Accreditation Commission for Early Care and Education Programs is to identify and acknowledge early care and education programs demonstrating practices that have been identified as leading to best outcomes for children.

Programs demonstrating the following characteristics are good candidates for participation in the accreditation process:

- Devote the highest priority to the sound and appropriate development of individual children
- Adopt and implement curricula that promote cognitive, language, motor, social, and emotional development of children in a creative and explorative manner
- Foster curiosity, self-esteem, and positive outlook in all children in the program
- Appropriate attention to the areas of health, safety, and nutrition
- Conduct ongoing and continual assessment of the progress and needs of children
- Promote and welcome parent participation and involvement
- Employees relate professionally and comfortably with families and children
- Plan and implement the professional development of the employees based upon needs, interests, and abilities as identified by ongoing evaluation and assessment
- Articulate, adopt, and implement appropriate goals that are utilized in program planning and evaluation and that reflect multi-cultural sensitivity
- Operate in a professional and ethical manner with accountability to its governing body, families, employees, and the community
- Ensure best practices in leadership and management
- Evidence of a superior degree of compliance with applicable state and local licensing and accreditation requirements
- Maintain interior and exterior premises in a sanitary, attractive, and safe manner

# **History**

Designing and implementing a national accreditation model has been an ongoing process for the National Accreditation Commission. In 1991, professionals from the fields of early care and education, administration, business, health care, safety engineering, and regulatory enforcement met to discuss the feasibility of designing an accreditation system that identified and acknowledged early care and education programs providing optimal developmental opportunities for children.

A thorough review of relevant research and insight obtained from educational bodies and professional associations was conceptualized into the first National Accreditation Commission model. The accreditation document was field-tested over a three-year period in several program models in several states and was made available in 1992. The document has been revised to keep pace with emerging research.

#### 2009 Revisions of the Accreditation Manual

Development of the 2009 version formally began in the fall of 2007 with a comprehensive review of all areas of the current accreditation system. The goal was to ensure that standards were inclusive of current research and evidence-based practices and effective in identifying markers of high quality care for young children.



The revision process included extensive research of State Early Learning Standards and Quality Rating Systems (QRS); reports on quality indicators by the National Association of Child Care Resource and Referral Agencies (NACCRRA); The National Child Care Information and Technical Assistance Center (NCCIC); the National Institute for Early Education Research (NIEER); measures of leadership and management as defined in the *Program Administration Scale* (PAS); recommendations by the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) and the National Association for Sport & Physical Education (NASPE); and current research on best practices in early childhood care and education.

All relevant areas of study were reviewed including administration, staff development, classroom environment, curriculum, teacher-child interactions, and health and safety. Suggestions for the revision were sought from professionals in the fields of early childhood, health, safety, law, and administration.

In the spring of 2008, the draft revision was released for outside review.

#### **Administrator's Report**

The proposed *Administrator's Report* was reviewed to ensure that best leadership and management practices were included and that these Standards were measurable. Many recognized authorities in the early childhood field offered insights, including: Dorothy June Sciarra, Ed.D., author of *Developing and Administering a Child Care Center*; Hilde Reno, Ed.D., author of *Handbook for Early Childhood Administrators: Directing with a Mission*; Jill Bella, M.S., co-author of *Zoom: The Impact of Early Childhood Leadership Training on Role Perceptions, Job Performance, and Career Decisions*; and Michael Swain, ARM, SCLA, CPSI, Certified Associate in Risk Management and Certified Playground Safety Inspector and Child Passenger Safety Technician. Recommendations were reviewed and appropriate modifications were incorporated into the final version of the *Administrator's Report*.

#### **Classroom Observation**

The proposed *Classroom Observation* tool was reviewed to ensure that the Standards were measurable and inclusive of research-based indicators of quality care. We are grateful to the many early childhood professionals who provided us with suggestions on revision of this tool. Numerous Commission Validators provided feedback regarding their experience with the previous tool, enabling greater clarity of Standards and more measurable Indicators in the revision draft.

Deborah Norris, Ph.D. of The University of Oklahoma-Tulsa, College of Education, Early Childhood Education Institute reviewed the initial Standards and provided assistance in the creation of the online survey of the draft revision.

In the online survey, participants were asked to rate each Standard in the draft *Classroom Observation* on its importance as a measure of high quality. Reviewers were early childhood professionals, including those with some familiarity with the Commission and/or the Association for Early Learning Leaders and those not directly associated with the Commission.

The draft version of the *Classroom Observation* was field tested in twenty-three programs in five states: Texas, Florida, Arizona, Virginia, and Wisconsin. Of these programs, eleven were accredited by the National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC) and twelve held no accreditation. Individuals with formal Commission training acted as validators in the field test. For reliability purposes, two validators were assigned to a single classroom to rate simultaneously but independently.

Based on validator feedback and scoring from the online survey and field test, various Standards and Indicators were revised and a glossary of terms created. The tool was reviewed for validity for each age group. Standards specific to infants and toddlers were further revised for clarity.



In addition to those already acknowledged, we are most grateful to these individuals who assisted in the development and production of the 2009 revision: the programs who permitted the use of their classrooms for field testing purposes and the early childhood professionals who participated in the field test, completed the online survey, and reviewed the draft Standards. With their support, commitment, and insight, the *Accreditation Manual* was developed, resulting in a highly effective accreditation system that identifies and acknowledges early care and education programs providing optimal developmental opportunities for children.

#### 2019 Revisions of the Accreditation Manual

Development of the 2019 revision began with a comprehensive review of all areas of the current accreditation system. The goal was to ensure that Standards were inclusive of current research and evidence-based practices and effective in identifying markers of high quality care for young children, families, employees, and the community.

The revision process included extensive research of State Early Learning Standards and Quality Rating Improvement Systems (QRIS); reports on quality indicators by the National Association of Child Care Resource and Referral Agencies (NACCRRA); the National Institute for Early Education Research (NIEER); measures of leadership and management as defined in the *Program Administration Scale* (PAS); recommendations by the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP); the United States Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC); the Children's Environmental Health Network (CEHN); and current research on best practices in early childhood care and education.

All relevant areas of study were reviewed including administration, professional development, classroom environment, curriculum, teacher-child interactions, and health and safety. Suggestions for the revision were requested from professionals in the fields of early childhood, health, safety, law, and administration.

In the online survey, participants were asked to rate each Standard in the draft *Administrator's Report* and *Classroom Observation* on its importance as a measure of high quality. Participants were also asked if each Indicator is an important verification of its corresponding Standard. Reviewers were early childhood professionals, including those with some familiarity with the Commission and/or the Association for Early Learning Leaders and those not directly associated with the Commission.

Age-specific Indicators of the *Classroom Observation* were reviewed for applicability to each age-specific group.

Based on validator feedback, Council recommendations, scoring from the online survey, and current research, various Standards and Indicators were revised and the *Glossary of Terms* updated.

In addition to those already acknowledged, we are most grateful to these individuals who assisted in the development and production of the 2019 revision: the programs and early childhood professionals who reviewed the draft Standards and completed the online survey. With their support, commitment, and insight, the *Accreditation Manual* was revised, strengthening the National Accreditation Commission's accreditation system that identifies and acknowledges early care and education programs providing optimal developmental opportunities for children.



# **Four Steps of Accreditation**

#### Step 1: Self-Study

During the Self-Study phase, families, employees, and administrators evaluate the strengths and challenges of the program as they apply to the Standards of the National Accreditation Commission. The program's administrative policies and procedures are assessed using the *Administrator's Report*, and classroom practices are assessed using the *Classroom Observation*. *Employee* and *Family Surveys* are conducted. The *Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log* is compiled. Supporting documentation is gathered and organized as required in the *Document Organization*. After critical self-examination of procedures and practices in relationship to the Standards, the program makes necessary improvements.

The program has a minimum of six months and a maximum of two years to complete the Self-Study and to request an onsite validation visit. Specific tasks for moving through the Self-Study period are listed on the Self-Study Timetable (see page 12). (Note: For programs currently accredited through the National Accreditation Commission, the Request for Validation Visit timeline will vary.)

Final determinations are recorded on one clean copy of the *Administrator's Report* and on clean copies of the *Classroom Observation* (one for each classroom of children). A *Request for Validation Visit* form, all required documentation, and the validation visit fee are submitted to the Accreditation Office.

#### **Step 2: Validation Visit**

The program will have an opportunity to work with the Accreditation Office to establish an initial timeframe, and will be informed of a two-week window during which the validation visit will occur.

During the onsite validation visit, the Validator(s) will review documents, sample files for children and employees, and confirm that employee and family surveys have been completed according to survey instructions. The Validator(s) will record their observations in the *Administrator's Report* to verify Indicators. The Validator(s) will conduct observations in classrooms to verify the Indicators of the *Classroom Observation*. After completion of these tasks, the Validator(s) will conduct an Exit Interview with the director. During this time, each Standard and/or Indicator not verified by the Validator(s), according to the stated validation method, will be reviewed, and the director will have an opportunity to give a written response.

Detailed information about the visit can be found in the Validation Visit section of the Accreditation Manual.

**Note:** If a Director Change occurs after submission of the *Request for Validation Visit*, the program must contact the Accreditation Office immediately, and new paperwork must be submitted to proceed with the validation visit.

# **Step 3: Commission Review and Decision**

The Administrator's Report, each Classroom Observation, written validator comments, recorded director responses from the onsite visit, and any other necessary documentation are mailed to the Accreditation Office by the Validator. The Commission, comprised of early childhood experts, will closely review all documentation, and Commission Rules are applied to determine the award, deferral, or denial of accreditation. It may take up to four months after the validation visit for the program to receive the accreditation decision.

# **Step 4: Compliance**

When a program receives an award of accreditation through the National Accreditation Commission, the program is expected to maintain compliance with Standards and to strive for continuous quality improvement. During the award cycle, programs will complete Annual Reports, maintain open and frequent communication with the Accreditation Office, and inform the Accreditation Office of significant changes to the



program. Details will be provided in the Compliance information (issued in the Award Packet) to be added to the program's accreditation reference materials.

# **The Accreditation Decision**

Accreditation decisions are based on professional judgments made within the limits of Commission Rules. The National Accreditation Commission does not require 100% compliance with every Standard but does expect overall compliance in each component of the *Administrator's Report* and *Classroom Observation*. Individual Standards and Indicators are not weighted equally in the decision-making process. Staff-child interactions and curriculum implementation are critical factors because of their direct impact on quality outcomes for children and are more heavily weighted than other components.

A **decision to award** may be accompanied by requirements to make immediate and/or ongoing improvements. A specified time period is given for reporting progress on improvement recommendations. The award is valid for four years based on continued compliance with Commission Standards and procedures.

A **decision to defer** is accompanied by reasons for the deferral and requirements for improvement. Programs that receive a deferral have a specified time to correct deficiencies. A written response is required to verify compliance with Commission Standards; programs will pay an additional processing fee. If another validation visit is necessary to verify compliance with Commission Standards, an additional validation visit fee will be charged.

A **decision to deny** is accompanied by unmet component area(s). If the program desires to continue pursuit of accreditation, a new Self-Study enrollment fee must be paid and the Self-Study process repeated. Denied programs are strongly encouraged to devote adequate time to the Self-Study process (a minimum of six months) and to implement needed improvements before reapplying for a validation visit.

# **Appeals Process**

Denied programs have a right to a limited appeal of the accreditation decision. The appeal must be made within thirty days of the accreditation decision, and evidence must be provided that the Standards and/ or procedures in question were met at the time of the onsite visit. Programs will be notified of a decision within six weeks from the date the appeal is received in the Accreditation Office. Denied programs that lose their appeal must pay a new Self-Study enrollment fee and repeat the Self-Study process for a minimum of six months before reapplying for a validation visit.

# **Maintaining Accreditation**

Accreditation is not a one-time event. Adherence to Commission Standards must be maintained. It is the onsite director's responsibility to ensure that Commission Standards are consistently upheld after an award of accreditation.

# **Annual Reports**

During the four-year award cycle, accredited programs are required to submit Annual Reports. The reports are due on the anniversary date of accreditation. The reports inform the National Accreditation Commission of program changes such as employees and facility, detail improvements made to more fully meet Standards, and describe activities conducted to maintain ongoing compliance with Standards.

An updated Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log and the most current licensing reports must be attached. Failure to submit an Annual Report may be grounds for withdrawal of accreditation. Incomplete or



unacceptable Annual Reports may result in temporary suspension of accreditation until all required information has been received.

The onsite director is responsible for submitting the Annual Report by the due date. Programs may be e-mailed a courtesy advance reminder when the Annual Report due date is approaching. The *Annual Report* form and Instructions for Completion can be found on our website, <u>www.earlylearningleaders.org</u>.

#### **Unannounced Visits**

In granting an award of accreditation, the National Accreditation Commission retains the right to evaluate the program's ongoing compliance with Commission Standards at any time through an unannounced visit conducted by Accreditation Commission representative(s). Unannounced visits may be made randomly or based on written complaints or evidence of non-compliance, such as licensing reports or Annual Reports.

Programs may be required to respond in writing to findings from the unannounced visit. Depending on the seriousness of the findings, accreditation may be withdrawn. In this case, the program would have to re-enroll and undergo a thorough Self-Study and validation visit to be reconsidered for accreditation by the National Accreditation Commission. **The decision to withdraw accreditation is final.** There is no appeal.

#### Withdrawal of Accreditation

The award of accreditation may be withdrawn if it is determined that the program:

- is no longer in compliance with Commission Standards
- has failed to comply with Commission procedures
- has failed to submit required documentation
- or has reported false information

# **Use of Logos**

The Association for Early Learning Leaders logo, the National Accreditation Commission logo, and other indications of accreditation are reserved for limited use by accredited programs only. A program may not use these symbols if it has not yet been accredited, if accreditation has lapsed, or if accreditation has been suspended or withdrawn. Programs still in the Self-Study process may not use the logos or give any implication of accreditation by the National Accreditation Commission. A penalty and/or legal action may result from unauthorized use of the logos or false claims of holding accreditation.

# **Reporting Changes to the National Accreditation Commission**

Current contact information is needed by the National Accreditation Commission to provide programs with notices/reminders, changes in policies and procedures, etc., for which they will be held responsible during the Self-Study period and during the time the program holds an award of accreditation. Notify the National Accreditation Commission immediately of any change in e-mail address, phone number and/or mailing address. Notifications sent to the program contact listed in the Accreditation database will be considered valid and the program will be held accountable for the content of the notifications.

The National Accreditation Commission also **must be notified immediately** of any change in director/administration, ownership, relocation or expansion, loss of license, or criminal conviction of an employee.



## **Review of Accreditation Manual**

Upon receipt of this *Accreditation Manual*, review all materials. The following information will serve as a guide to familiarize you with the *Manual's* content and effective use.

#### **Commission Standards**

The Administrator's Report and Classroom Observation are comprised of organized groups of Commission Standards and Indicators. **Standards** are the criteria used to identify high quality outcomes for young children. Each Standard is labeled with a letter and a number (Ex. A1, F6). All Standards have indicators listed below the Standard. **Indicators** are the specific requirements used to verify compliance with that Standard.

Standards in the *Administrator's Report* are grouped into four component areas:

- A. Administration
- B. Professional Development
- C. Family Engagement
- D. Program Health and Safety

Although the director is the primary person responsible for completing the *Administrator's Report*, it is imperative that Standards in this section be discussed and understood by all employees. Employees must be fully aware of all Standards and Indicators as they have an integral role in the implementation of the operating policies and procedures of the program. Additionally, employees will be asked to respond to survey questions pertaining to many of the Standards. See detailed instructions for using and completing the *Administrator's Report* (in the Administrator's Report section of the *Manual*).

The *Classroom Observation* section contains all remaining Commission Standards. These Standards are grouped into three component areas:

- E. Curriculum
- F. Interactions between Teachers and Children
- G. Classroom Health and Safety

Lead teachers will assess themselves, assistant teachers, and their classroom environment on each Standard and Indicator in the *Classroom Observation* tool. The director will conduct observations in each classroom and make independent assessments. A period of adjustment may follow before compiling a final determination. See detailed instructions on using and completing the *Classroom Observation* (in the Classroom Observation section of the *Manual*).

#### **Verification of Commission Standards**

Validation methods have been identified to verify compliance with Standards and Indicators. These are [D] = Document Review, [O] = Observation, [ES] = Employee Survey, [FS] = Family Survey, [I] = Interview.

Validation methods that will be used for a specific Standard or Indicator are listed following each respectively.

#### Document Review [D]

Documents provide evidence that Standards are met. Each time "Document Review" is listed as a validation method, written materials must be available to the Validator that authenticates the information required for that Standard. The documents required and instructions for their organization can be found in the *Document Organization* (in the Document Organization section of the *Manual*).



Some documents are of a confidential nature and should remain in children and employee files to be sampled on the day of the validation visit. These documents are listed in the *Document Organization* and separately in *Children and Employee Records Document Review* (in the Document Organization section of the *Manual*).

#### Observation [O]

The Validator will record what is seen and heard that pertains to the Standards on the day of the validation visit.

#### Employee Survey [ES] and Family Survey [FS]

Employees and families are to be given an opportunity to complete a confidential survey regarding their experiences with the program and their understanding and awareness of certain policies, procedures, and practices. Summaries of survey results are submitted to the Accreditation Office when the *Request for Validation Visit* is made. See detailed instructions on using and completing the *Employee Survey* and the *Family Survey* in the Surveys section of the *Manual*.

#### Interview [I]

It may be necessary for the Validator to interview an employee for information or explanation during the onsite validation visit.

#### **Forms**

A number of forms are provided for gathering, organizing, and reporting required information. The forms are located in relevant places in the *Manual* and/or on our website (<a href="www.earlylearningleaders.org">www.earlylearningleaders.org</a>) along with corresponding instructions for their completion. The most current versions of forms can be found on our website (<a href="www.earlylearningleaders.org">www.earlylearningleaders.org</a>). Follow the instructions exactly, as no other formats will be accepted.

#### **Validation Visit**

Programs submit a *Request for Validation Visit* when the director has deemed the program ready for an onsite visit. Requirements must be met and documents submitted to be considered for a visit. Detailed instructions pertaining to the *Request for Validation Visit*, scheduling, and information about the day of the onsite validation visit are located in the Validation Visit section of the *Manual*.

# **Glossary of Terms**

The Glossary of Terms is included to provide clarification of terms used in Commission Standards and Indicators. Refer to these definitions in order to better understand the expectations of the National Accreditation Commission.

# **Bibliography**

Revision of Commission Standards involved a thorough review of literature and tools, including early care and education rating scales, assessment tools, state quality rating systems and early learning guidelines, and research reports of recognized authorities to ensure that current evidence-based practices were used as identifiers of quality outcomes for young children.

**NOTE**: Programs sometimes choose to work with an **outside consultant or mentor** while participating in the Self-Study process. Directors should be aware that only Accreditation Staff in the applicable department can clarify Standards and Indicators with complete accuracy.

Using a consultant/mentor does not lessen the need for the onsite director to read and understand the *Accreditation Manual*, as the director is the person held accountable for implementing and maintaining



Standards and procedures. <u>Outside consultants/mentors are not allowed in the program at any time during</u> the onsite validation visit.

Using a consultant/mentor does not lessen the responsibility of the onsite director to maintain compliance with accreditation requirements. **Outside consultants/mentors are not allowed to write or complete compliance reports on the director's behalf**.



# **Self-Study Timetable**

Each program will establish its own timetable for moving through the Accreditation Self-Study process, but all of the following tasks must be addressed. Implementation of some tasks may occur simultaneously. The required time period for the Self-Study is no less than six months and no more than two years. The program must submit the completed *Self-Study Timetable* with the *Request for Validation Visit*.

Components	Tasks	Date Started	Date Completed
Review of Materials	Director reviews Accreditation Manual and thoroughly reads all instructions.		
Employee Participation	Director takes steps to create a positive attitude among employees about participation in the accreditation process.		
Administrator's Report	Director conducts Standard-by-Standard review of <i>Administrator's Report</i> with employees to discuss current level of compliance with Standards A1 – D24 and to identify areas for improvement.		
	Director reviews program policies and procedures and implements an improvement plan to comply with Standards. Refer to Instructions for Using Administrator's Report (in the Administrator's Report section of the Manual).		
Document Organization	Director collects and organizes required documentation as described in <i>Document Organization</i> and in <i>Children and Employee Records Document Review</i> . Refer to Instructions for Using <i>Document Organization</i> (in the Document Organization section of the <i>Manual</i> ).		
Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log	Director types education and training on all employees identified in Standards B1 and B2, following instructions for completion (in the Administrator's Report section of the Manual).  (Note: This form can be found at www.earlylearningleaders.org.)		
Classroom Observation	Director makes one copy of the <i>Observation Record</i> for each classroom (in the Classroom Observation section of the <i>Manual</i> ).		
	Director makes three copies of the <i>Classroom Observation</i> (Standards E1 – G8) for each classroom, one for use by teacher(s), one for use by director, and one for use by Validator on the day of the onsite validation visit.		
	Director observes in each classroom, rates all Standards in the Classroom Observation, and completes the director section of the Observation Record for each classroom. Refer to Instructions for Using Classroom Observation and Instructions for Completing Observation Record (in the Classroom Observation section of the Manual).		
	Lead teachers rate themselves on Standards in the <i>Classroom Observation</i> and complete the lead teacher section of the <i>Observation Record</i> to document their observations.		
	Director conducts Standard-by-Standard review of the <i>Classroom Observation</i> with teacher(s) to discuss current level of compliance with Standards E1 – G8 and to identify areas for improvement.		
	The director and teachers compare ratings, discuss discrepancies, and develop a plan for improvements. (Note: Director and/or mentors provide training, mentoring, and monitoring to teachers until improvements are made.)		
Employee Surveys	Director copies and distributes an <i>Employee Survey</i> to each employee counted in the staff-child ratio and all onsite supervisory personnel, following <i>Employee Survey</i> instructions (in the Surveys section of the <i>Manual</i> ).		
Family Surveys	Director copies and distributes one Family Survey to each family, following Family Survey instructions (in the Surveys section of the Manual). Make one copy of the Family Survey for each child. If a child has multiple residences, the parent/legal guardian of each household should be given an opportunity to complete the survey.		



# **Self-Study Timetable** (Continued)

Before submitting a Request for Validation Visit, the following tasks must be completed.

Components	Final Tasks	Date Completed
Administrator's Report	Director makes one final copy of the <i>Administrator's Report</i> , following Instructions for Using <i>Administrator's Report</i> (in the Administrator's Report section of the <i>Manual</i> ) and makes final ratings for the Validator's use during the onsite validation visit.	
Program Profile	Director completes the <i>Program Profile</i> , following Instructions for Completing <i>Program Profile</i> (in the Validation Visit section of the <i>Manual</i> ).	
Document Organization	Director finalizes collection and organization of required documentation as described in <i>Document Organization</i> and in <i>Children and Employee Records Document Review</i> (in the Document Organization section of the <i>Manual</i> ).	
Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log	Director finalizes typing the log for each employee identified in Standards B1 and B2, following instructions for completion (in the Administrator's Report section of the <i>Manual</i> ).	
Classroom Observation	Director makes a final copy of the <i>Classroom Observation</i> for each classroom recorded on the <i>Program Profile</i> , following required steps found in Instructions for Using <i>Classroom Observation</i> (in the Classroom Observation section of the <i>Manual</i> ) to make final ratings for the Validator's use during the onsite validation visit.	
Observation Record	Director completes the <i>Observation Record</i> for each classroom and signs each one to verify its accuracy.	
Employee Surveys	Director makes one clean copy of the <i>Employee Survey</i> form, records survey totals, and completes the <i>Employee Survey Verification</i> , following Instructions for Completing <i>Employee Survey</i> (in the Surveys section of the <i>Manual</i> ).	
Family Surveys	Director makes one clean copy of the Family Survey form, records survey totals, and completes the Family Survey Verification following Instructions for Completing Family Survey (in the Surveys section of the Manual).	
Request for Validation Visit	When all tasks are complete, the director submits all required documents page of the <i>Request for Validation Visit</i> (in the Validation Visit section of th Accreditation Commission Office.	
Scheduling the Validation Visit	The onsite visit is scheduled only after all required documentation is rece and determination is made that the program appears ready for the visit. Instructions for Submitting <i>Request for Validation Visit</i> (in the Validation Vi	Refer to requirements in
Validation Visit	The onsite visit occurs. Refer to Day of Onsite Validation Visit (in the Valida Manual).	ation Visit section of the
Decision	Materials are reviewed and Commission rules applied to determine award Commission Accreditation. Program is notified of the accreditation decisi	

# **Administrator's Report**

# **Contents of this Section**

Instructions for Using Administrator's Report
Preparing the Administrator's Report for the Validation Visit
Administrator's Report (Standards A1-D24)
A. Administration
B. Professional Development
C. Family Engagement
D. Program Health and Safety
<b>Instructions for Completing Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log</b> 83
General
Employee Information
Training
Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log



# **Instructions for Using Administrator's Report**

Make a working copy of the *Administrator's Report* (Standards A1 – D24) for the Director and any additional copies for employees as needed. Review the National Accreditation Commission Standards and Indicators in the *Administrator's Report* with all employees. This is a necessary step as employees will be asked to respond to their experience with certain administrative Standards in their confidential *Employee Survey*.

- Use the Glossary of Terms to clarify terms used in Standards and Indicators (glossary terms listed below the Observer/Validator's box following each Standard).
- Discuss current level of compliance with relevant parties.
- On the working copy, in each Standard record a check mark (✓) beside each Indicator that is met.
- The Standard is considered "Meets Standard" when all Indicators are met or, if "check all that apply" is listed, at least one Indicator is met. If you are not able to record a check mark in an Indicator, you should mark "Needs Improvement". Some Standards have a "Not Applicable" option if the key focus of the Standard is not provided by the program.

#### Example:

<b>18.</b>	Volunteers							
	Volunteers are:							
Always under direct supervision when interacting with children. [ES]								
	Not counted in the staff-child ratio. [ES]							
Oriented on program policies and procedures that cover basic health and safety, child abure procedures reporting responsibilities, confidentiality, emergency procedures, child discipline policies and guidance procedures. [D]								
	Screened for crimina	l history background. [D]						
	OR							
	☐ No Volunteers							
	OMEETS STANDARD	ONEEDS IMPROVEMENT	ONOT APPLICABLE					
	○MEETS STANDARD		No Volunteers					
	○MEETS STANDARD	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE	•					
EMP	PLOYEE SURVEY:		•					
	PLOYEE SURVEY:	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE	•					
	PLOYEE SURVEY:	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE	•					
Valid	PLOYEE SURVEY:	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE	•					



- Use the working copy to make notes and identify areas where adjustments can be made.
- Compare Standards and Indicators with your current employee handbook and parent handbook.
- Develop, modify, and implement policies and procedures as needed to comply with Standards and Indicators.
- Inform employees and families of the changes as applicable.
- Compile and store the required documentation in the Documentation Box (Doc Box) as specified in *Document Organization* instructions (in the Document Organization section of the *Manual*).
- Monitor employees and families to ensure that they understand and implement policy and procedure changes.
- Compile the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log. Instructions are located at the end of the Administrator's Report.

Standards and Indicators in the *Administrator's Report* are considered to be appropriate for all programs unless otherwise specified. It is not acceptable to mark a Standard or Indicator "N/A" unless that choice is listed. If you have a unique program, such as 24-hour care, campus center with student employees, or temporary care, and are unclear about how to implement a Standard or Indicator, contact the Accreditation Office for clarification.

#### Preparing the Administrator's Report for the Validation Visit

When preparing documentation for the *Request for Validation Visit*, the Director records the current determination on a clean copy of the *Administrator's Report*. To complete the clean copy:

- Use white, 8½" x 11" copy paper.
- Duplicate the Administrator's Report on one side of the paper only. **Double-sided copies will not be accepted.**
- On the clean copy, record a check mark  $(\checkmark)$  beside each Indicator that is met.
- On the clean copy record a check mark (✓) beside the rating of "Meets Standard" or "Needs Improvement" or not applicable if listed for each Standard.
- Use only black or blue ink. **No pencil should be used.**
- Other than the recorded check marks, no other notations or comments should be written unless specified by the Indicators.
- Place the working copy in the Doc Box in the file folder labeled Administrator's Report.
- For submission with the *Request for Validation Visit*, make a copy of the completed clean copy; place the original in the Doc Box in the file folder labeled Administrator's Report.

The Accreditation Office will use the submission copy in the review of the *Request for Validation Visit*. The original copy should remain in the Doc Box for use by the Validator on the day of the visit. The Validator will use this clean copy for verifying the Standards and Indicators during the onsite visit.



# A. Administration

A1.	The program has a written mission statement, philosophy, and goals that describe the environment, reflect the program's beliefs about how children learn, and include overall goals for children and families.									
	Written mission statement [D, ES]									
	Written philosophy [D, ES]									
	Written goals for children and families [D, ES]									
	The mission statement serves as a guide for decision making in the areas of program administration, family engagement, and children's programming. [ES]									
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT									
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE									
ЕМР	YES NO DK									
Valid	dator Comments									
Dire	ctor Response									
_										
_										

**Glossary Terms:** Goals (Program), Mission Statement, Philosophy



A2.			with non-discrimination laws covering hiring enrollment and disenrollment of children. [ES]
	Personne Employn	olicies and procedures [D] el policies and procedures [D] nent application [D] nent advertisement (if applicabl	<b>e)</b> [D]
		MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
		OBSERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE
ЕМР	LOYEE SURVEY:	Yes No DK	
Valid	lator Comments		
_			
Dire	ctor Response		

**Glossary Term(s):** Non-Discrimination Laws



A3.	inc progre	illi illallitallis collidelitiai w	ritten records for each employee.					
	Employr	ment application [D]						
	☐ Work his	story [D]						
	☐ Transcripts/Diplomas of education and certificates of training [D]							
	Screening of references [D]							
	Current criminal history background check [D]							
		emergency contact information						
		- '						
		○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT					
		OBSERVER/V	ALIDATOR'S USE					
Valid	dator Comments							
Dina	ster Deenene							
Dire	ctor Response							

Glossary Term(s): Confidential



### A4. A written orientation plan is consistently implemented with each new employee. [ES]

☐ Completion of personnel forms [D] ☐ Curriculum [D]	National Accreditation Commission Standards [D]
	Operating procedures [D]
☐ Discipline policy and positive guidance procedures □	Organization chart [D]
Emergency preparedness plan [D]	Personnel policies [D]
Employee has opportunity to observe assigned classroom [D]	Pre-employment training hours as required by licensing agencies [D]
Family policies and procedures [D]	Professional ethics [D]
☐ Introduction to key people [D]	<ul><li>Recognizing and reporting child abuse</li></ul>
Job description [D]	and neglect [D]
Licensing/Regulatory standards [D]	Social media policies and procedures [D]
	Technology usage [D]
Mission, philosophy, and history of	☐ Tour of facility [D]
program [D]	Universal precautions [D]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○	NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDA	
OBSERVER/VALIDA	
OBSERVER/VALIDA  EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	

**Glossary Term(s):** Emergency Preparedness Plan, Orientation Plan (Employee), Personnel Policies, Professional Ethics, Social Media (Policy/Procedure), Technology Usage (Policy/Procedures), Universal Precautions



A5. The program has written personnel policies that state the conditions and expectations of employment and inform employees of their rights, responsibilities, and privileges.

The policies include:				
Attendance and punctuality [D]	Non-discrimination [D]			
Cell phone usage [D]	Payroll [D]			
Compensation and benefits [D]	Performance appraisals [D]			
<ul><li>Confidentiality of information</li></ul>	Professional development [D]			
regarding program, employees, children, and families [D]	Professional ethics [D]			
Conflict resolution [D]	Prohibition of smoking, drugs, and firearms on the premises [D]			
Discipline (children) [D]	Provisionary period [D]			
Employee discipline [D]	Resignation/Termination [D]			
Grievance [D]	Social media [D]			
Illness [D]	Standards of conduct [D]			
Job description [D]	Technology usage [D]			
Media/Photography [D]				
Personnel policies are reviewed a minimum o	of every two years and updated as necessary. [D]			
<ul> <li>Signed and dated statement of receipt of personnel policies is in the employee's file. Statement of receipt should include a signed statement that the employee has read, had an opportunity to ask questions about, understands, and is willing to abide by</li> </ul>				
the policies. [D, ES]				
O MEETS STANDARD	) NEEDS IMPROVEMENT			
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK				
Validator Comments				
	-			
Director Response				

**Glossary Term(s):** Appraisal (Job Performance), Discipline Policy (Children), Personnel Policies, Provisionary Period, Professional Ethics, Receipt (Policies/Procedures), Social Media Policy/Procedures, Technology Usage (Policies/Procedures)



# A6. The program has written operating procedures that provide employees with detailed instructions for carrying out specific tasks related to their work. [ES]

The procedures include:				
Accidents/Incidents [D] Air quality [D] Allergy/Medication [D] Cleaning, sanitizing, and disinfecting [D] Contagious illness [D] Curriculum and lesson planning [D] Daily health checks [D] Diaper changing [D] Emergency preparedness plan [D] Family communication [D] Field trips [D]	Food service [D]   Hand washing [D]   Hazardous waste [D]   Health and developmental screenings [D]   Integrated pest management [D]   Medical and dental emergencies [D]   Monitoring furnishings, equipment, and materials for safety concerns [D]   Observations and assessments [D]   Playground supervision [D]   Positive guidance [D]	Recycling [D] Safe arrival and departure [D] Safe sleep practices [D] Safety and supervision rules [D] Social media [D] Suspicion of abuse or neglect [D] Technology usage [D] Toilet learning [D] Transition planning [D] Transportation of children [D] Universal precautions [D]		
<ul> <li>Written operating procedures are reviewed and updated a minimum of every two years and as necessary. [D]</li> <li>Signed and dated statement of receipt of operating procedures is in the employee's file. Statement of receipt should include a signed statement that the employee has read, had an opportunity to ask questions about, understands, and is willing to abide by the</li> </ul>				
procedures. [D, ES]  MEETS ST	ANDARD O NEEDS IMP	ROVEMENT		

**CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE** 



#### **STANDARD A6 CONTINUED**

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:				
Yes No	DK			
Validator Comments				
Director Response				

**Glossary Term(s):** Assessment, Cleaning, Developmental Screening, Disinfect, Emergency Preparedness Plan, Handwashing (Appropriate Times), Hazardous Waste Clean-Up and Disposal Plan, Health Screening, Integrated Pest Management (IPM), Observation, Operating Procedures, Positive Guidance Procedures, Receipt (Policies/Procedures), Sanitize, Social Media Policy/Procedures, Technology Usage (Policies/Procedures), Transition Planning, Transportation, Universal Precautions



# A7. Benefits are made available to program employees. [ES]

Check all that apply:	
Paid sick/personal leave	Retirement plan
Paid vacation/holiday	<ul><li>Disability insurance</li></ul>
Health insurance	Other (list)
<ul><li>Dental insurance</li></ul>	
Life insurance	
Education tuition reimbursement/	
stipend 	
Reduced child care fees	
○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	
Validator Comments	
Director Response	
	_
-	
	_



#### A8. Volunteers

Volunteers are:				
Always under direct supervision when interacting with children. [ES]				
Not counted in the st	taff-child ratio. [ES]			
<ul> <li>Oriented on program policies and procedures that cover basic health and safety, child abuse reporting responsibilities, confidentiality, emergency procedures, child discipline policies, and guidance procedures. [D]</li> </ul>				
Screened for criminal history background. [D]				
OR  No Volunteers				
○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT	No Volunteers		
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE			
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:Yes	No DK			
Validator Comments				
Director Response				

**Glossary Term(s):** Regular, Volunteers



۱9.	Insurance is maintained on all aspects of the program.
	Show evidence of current coverage for:
	Liability insurance [D]
	Accident insurance [D]
	Fire and theft insurance [D]
	Worker's compensation or self-insurance [D]
	☐ Vehicle insurance (if transportation provided) [D]
	Certificate of Additional Insured (naming Association for Early Learning Leaders' National Accreditation Commission) [D]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Valid	dator Comments
Dire	ctor Response

Glossary Term(s): Accident Insurance, Certificate of Additional Insured



# A10. A fiscal plan is followed, monitored, and reviewed.

All programs:				
The program has a compensation plan based on merit, education, and/or performance. [D]				
Check all that apply:				
Annual budget [D]				
Quarterly income and expense reconciliation [D]				
Annual federal tax filing documentation or annual outside review verification [D]				
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT				
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE				
Validator Comments				
Director Response				

**Glossary Term(s):** Compensation Plan



### A11. Staff-Child Ratios [O, ES, D]

Age Range	Ratio
B-1	1:4
1-2	1:5
2-3	1:6
3-4	1:9
4-5	1:12
5	1:12
K-2 <sup>nd</sup>	1:15
3rd-6 <sup>th</sup>	1:18

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE						
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:						
	Yes	No	DK			
Validator Comments						
Director Response						

Glossary Term(s): Classroom, Staff-Child Ratio



## A12. Group Sizes [O, ES, D]

Age Range	Group Size
B-1	8
1-2	10
2-3	12
3-4	18
4-5	22
5	24
K-2 <sup>nd</sup>	26
3rd-6 <sup>th</sup>	30

MEETS STANDARD
MEETS STANDARD

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE								
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:								
	Yes	No	DK					
Validator Comments								
Director Response								

Glossary Term(s): Classroom, Group Size



A13. Continuity	of care p	romotes re	elationshi	ps between child	اren, em	ployees, ar	nd families
Childre				es and peer group to another during			
Childre	n are assign	ed to anotl	her group (	or classroom no mo	ore than o	ne time per	year. [FS]
	<b>О</b> МЕЕ	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	ROVEME	NT	
		OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMPLOYEE SURVEY	Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes		
Validator Comments	5						
Director Response							
-							
				1			

**Glossary Term(s):** Continuity of Care



A14.	The program has a discipline policy and positive guidance procedures which forbid corporal punishment and harsh, cruel, or unusual treatment of any child.								
	Prior to working with children, employees receive basic training on appropriate discipline and positive guidance practices, including what corporal punishment is and forbidden practices. [D, ES]								
	The policy includes examples of what is expressly forbidden. (Ex. punishment associated with food, naps, or toilet learning; scaring children into compliance or threatening to tell their parents; pinching, shaking, or biting a child; hitting a child with a hand or instrument; putting anything in or on a child's mouth; humiliating, ridiculing, rejecting, or yelling at a child; subjecting a child to harsh, abusive, or profane language; placing a child in a locked or dark room, bathroom, or closet) [D]								
	☐ The policy includes a protocol for employees should they suspect physical, verbal, and/or psychological punishment is being used within the program. [D]								
	☐ The policy includes what the program will do if an employee is suspected of violating or determined to have violated the discipline policy. [D]								
	Employees receive positive guidance refresher training every two years or as necessary. [D, ES]								
	<ul> <li>Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures is in the employee's file. Statement of receipt should include a signed statement that the employee has read, understands, and will abide by the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures. [D, ES]</li> <li>Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and positive guidance</li> </ul>								
	procedures is in the child's file. [D, FS]								
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE								
ЕМР	OYEE SURVEY:								
Valid	Validator Comments								
Direc	tor Response								

**Glossary Term(s):** Discipline Policy (Children), Positive Guidance Procedures, Receipt (Policies/Procedures)



### B. Professional Development

B1.	<b>Director Qualifications</b>		
		r responsible for the day-to-day op of 50% of their full-time equivalent	
	Education:  A Bachelor's degree or higher in Early Childhood Education/Child Development [D]  OR  A Bachelor's degree or higher in a related	AND  Six college semester credits or nine college quarter credits in business administration/ program management  [D]  OR	AND  Experience:  A minimum of one year of experience in administration of an early care and education program [D]  A minimum of two
	field (Ex. social work, psychology, special education, or elementary education) with 15 college semester credits or 22 college quarter credits in Early Childhood Education/Child Development [D]	<ul> <li>Nine CEUs in business administration/program management/ systems management/ personnel management [D]</li> <li>OR</li> <li>□ A state-approved Director/Administrator Credential [D]</li> </ul>	years of teaching in an early care and education classroom [D]  AND  The Director is at least 21 years of age. [D]
	O MEETS STAND	ARD O NEEDS IMPROV	EMENT
	OBSI	ERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE	
Valida	lator Comments		
Direc	ctor Response		

Glossary Term(s): Clock Hours, Continuing Education Unit (CEU), Director, Quarter Credit, Semester Credit



### **B2.** Employee Qualifications

Onsite Supervisor(s)
Onsite Supervisor: assistant directors, owners, program coordinators, curriculum specialists, educationa coordinators, and other employees with supervisory responsibilities.
Total number of Onsite Supervisors (not including Director)
Education:
☐ Bachelor's degree or higher with 12 college semester credits or 18 college quarter credits in Early Childhood Education/Child Development [D]
AND
Experience:
Minimum two years of experience teaching in an early care and education classroom [D]
Total number of onsite supervisory employees meeting both the education and experience Indicators
OR
☐ No Onsite Supervisors
<b>Lead Teachers</b> Lead Teacher: primary employee responsible for curriculum, assessment, the direct care of children in a classroom, and is included in the staff-child ratio. The program has at least one Lead Teacher per classroom of children.
Total number of Lead Teachers
Education:
☐ The majority of Lead Teachers have a minimum of an Associate's degree or higher with 12 college semester credits or 18 college quarter credits in Early Childhood Education/Child Development [D]
AND
Experience:
☐ The majority have a minimum two years of experience teaching in an early care and education classroom [D]
Total number of Lead Teachers meeting both the education and experience Indicators
Assistant Teachers Assistant Teachers: all other paid employees included in the staff-child ratio who primarily work under the supervision of a lead teacher. This includes floaters, substitutes, teacher aides, and teaching assistants.
Total number of Assistant Teachers
CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE



#### **STANDARD B2 CONTINUED**

Education:
The majority of Assistant Teachers have a minimum of a national Child Development Associate (CDA) Credential [D]
OR
12 college semester credits or 18 college quarter credits of Early Childhood Education/Child Development [D]
OR
A state-approved equivalent [D]
AND
Experience:
The majority have a minimum one year of experience teaching in an early care and educatio classroom [D]
Total number of Assistant Teachers meeting both education and experience Indicators
All Employees:
All employees included in the staff-child ratio have a minimum of a high school diploma or GED. [D]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator Comments
Director Response

**Glossary Term:** Child Development Associate (CDA) Credential™, Semester Credit, Quarter Credit



B3. Employees under the a	age of 18 who work with childre	n e
Remain under the sup Are not left alone with	pervision of a credentialed employers the children [ES]	ee, CDA or higher [ES]
OR  No employees under	the age of 18 are employed to worl	k with children.
○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT	Not Applicable No Employees Under the Age of 18
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S US	E
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	No DK	
Validator Comments		
Director Response		



В4.	Professional development training is required annually.
	☐ Training received is conducted by a variety of sources. [D]
	☐ Training received is conducted by an expert in the material/information presented. [D]
	☐ The Director has a minimum of 35 clock hours of annual training in early childhood/child development and topics related to program management, leadership, and supervision. [D]
	The Onsite Supervisor(s) has a minimum of 30 clock hours of annual training in early childhood/child development and topics related to supervision. [D]
	☐ Each employee counted in the staff-child ratio has a minimum of 25 clock hours of annual training in early childhood/child development including topics related to the age group of children with whom the employee is working. [D]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Valid	dator Comments
Dire	ctor Response

Glossary term(s): Clock Hours, Continuing Education Unit (CEU), Expert, Quarter Credit



B5.	Each employee receives a performance appraisal.						
	A written appraisal is made of new employees within 90 days of employment concerning their competence for working with children. [D]						
	☐ A written appraisal of each employee occurs at least annually. [D]						
	Appraisals are based on performance standards of which the employee is aware. [ES]  Appraisals of all employees counted in the staff-child ratio include classroom observations conducted by supervisor. [ES]						
	Appraisals of the Director include feedback from employees and families. [D]						
	Employees are given the opportunity for self-appraisal. [D]						
	Appraisals are discussed privately with the employee. [ES]						
	Appraisals are signed and dated by supervisor and employee. [D]						
	Appraisals are kept in confidential files. [0]						
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT						
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE						
ЕМР	Yes No DK						
Valid	dator Comments						
—							
-							
-							
_							
Dire	ctor Response						
—							
-							
-							
-							
—							
_							

Glossary Terms: Appraisal (Job Performance), Appraisal (Self), Performance Standards



The plan includes:

### B6. A written annual professional development plan is prepared for each employee.

Areas identified in the employee's appraisal as needing improvement [ES]  Formal education identified in the employee's appraisal as opportunities for growth (Ex. college coursework in ECE/CD, enrollment in CDA courses) [ES]
<ul> <li>Areas identified in the employee's appraisal as opportunities for professional growth and leadership development (Ex. peer mentoring, conducting training, peer-to-peer training, attendance at a national conference, membership in a professional organization, volunteering in a community organization) [ES]</li> <li>Date(s) courses completed and/or training/mentoring received for each identified topic [D]</li> <li>A copy of the professional development plan is in the employee's file. [D]</li> </ul>
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:              Yes         No         DK
Validator Comments
Director Response

**Glossary Term(s):** Professional Development Plan



D/.		e Directo sis.	r and/or C	msite Sup	ervisors	provide s	upport to em	oloyees on a c	onsistent
			ctor and/or to handle cl	-			e as needed to	orovide strateg	ies and
	The Director and/or Onsite Supervisors are available to provide strategies and coordinate a plan for transitions that impact the children. (Ex. transition to a new classroom; preparing children and families for kindergarten; introducing new teaching staff) [ES]								
	The Director and/or Onsite Supervisors are available to review lesson plans and discuss observations and assessments. [ES]								
			ram has a s d additiona				ith families and	specialists whe	en children
			ram has a s d children. [		lace to sup	port collal	boration with sp	ecialists worki	ng with
			ctor and/or mmunicatir	-			e daily to provi	de strategies an	d support
			O MEET	TS STANDA	ARD	O NEE	EDS IMPROVEN	IENT	
				OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'	S USE		
EMP	EMPLOYEE SURVEY:								
Valid	lator	Comments							
Direc	ctor R	esponse							



# The administration has methods for communicating important information to **B8.** employees. [ES, O] Check all that apply: Bulletin boards/dry-erase boards E-mail In-house newsletters/memos Technology/Software application Website Other (list) \_\_\_\_\_ O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT **OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE EMPLOYEE SURVEY:** Yes No DK **Validator Comments Director Response**

Glossary Term(s): Technology/Software Applications



9.	The employe regarding ac							ith each other
	Check all that	apply:						
	☐ Bulletin bo	oards/dry	-erase boa	rds				
	Classroom	•						
	Daily verb	_	unication					
	E-mail							
	☐ Technolog	y/Softwa	re applicati	ion				
	Other (list)	)						
		O MEE	TS STANDA	ARD	O NEE	EDS IMPRO	VEMENT	
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'	S USE		
EMP	LOYEE SURVEY:	Yes						
Valid	dator Comments							
Dire	ctor Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Technology/Software Applications



В10.	program planning, and goal setting.						
	☐ Teaching teams have opportunities to meet outside the classroom. [ES]						
	Employees are encouraged to problem solve as a team. [ES]						
	Employees are encouraged to recognize each other's skills and accomplishments. [ES]						
	Meeting opportunities are provided at least monthly. (Ex. preschool team meeting, peer-to-peer mentoring, staff meeting, staff development training) [D]						
	An agenda specifies topics and/or goals to be addressed. [D]						
	Employees have opportunity to be involved in setting the agenda. [ES]						
	A sign-in sheet records time, date, and attendance. [D]						
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT						
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE						
EMP	LOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK						
Valid	lator Comments						
Direc	ctor Response						
_							

**Glossary Term(s):** Goals (Program)



311.	<b>Employees</b>	have opp	ortunities	to provi	de feedback on the program.			
		ram has an endations.		process to I	receive and review employee suggestic	ons and		
	Annual written evaluations of the program are completed by the employees. [D]							
					ntegrated into program operations and			
		plicable. [ES				,		
		O WEE	TS STANDA	ARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT			
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMP	LOYEE SURVEY:	Yes		DK				
Valid	ator Comments							
_								
Direc	tor Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Evaluation (Program)



### C. Family Engagement

C1.	A written orientation plan introduces children and families to the program.							
	The orientation plan includes:							
	Discussion of expectations of family and the needs of the child [D]							
	☐ Discussion of parent/legal guardian and teacher roles [D]							
	Family visit with classroom teaching team [D]							
	Interpret	er availabl	e if needed	(D]				
	Introduct	tion to key	employee	<b>s</b> [D]				
		•		it in the clasundings [D, E	ssroom by both far ES, FS]	mily and c	hild to allov	v both to be
	Overview	of availak	ole family s	support res	ources and activiti	es [D]		
	Overview	of progra	m policies	and proce	dures [D]			
	Technolo	gy usage [	D]					
	☐ Tour of fa	cility [D]						
	☐ Signed and dated documentation of orientation completion is in the child's file. [D]  ☐ MEETS STANDARD ☐ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT							
		O MEE	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	PROVEME	NT	
		O MEE			O NEEDS IMP	PROVEME	NT	
ЕМР	PLOYEE SURVEY:	O MEE				PROVEME	NT	
	PLOYEE SURVEY:		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Valid			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Valid	dator Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Valid	dator Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Valid	dator Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Valid	dator Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK

**Glossary Terms:** Orientation Plan (Families), Parent, Technology Usage (Policy/Procedures)



#### C2. Families are provided with written policies and procedures.

The policies and procedures include:	
Admission procedure [D]	Hours of service [D]
Anti-idling [D]	Illness policy [D]
Child abuse and neglect identification	Late payment [D]
and reporting requirements [D]	Medication administration [D]
Curriculum [D]	Program mission, philosophy, and goals [D]
Complaint procedure [D]	Prohibition of drugs, smoking, and
Discipline policy and positive guidance procedures [D]	firearms [D]
Drop off/pick up procedure [D]	Refund information [D]
Emergency preparedness [D]	Safe sleep practices [D]
Family participation [D]	Social media [D]
Fee structure/payment plan [D]	Statement reflecting the role and influence of families [D]
Formal conferences [D]	☐ Technology usage [D]
<ul><li>Health and developmental</li></ul>	☐ Transition planning [D]
screenings [D]	Transportation [D]
Holidays [D]	<b>Withdrawal/Dismissal procedure</b> [D]
•	ement of receipt of policies and procedures ceipt should include a signed statement that the uestions about, understands, and is willing to
O MEETS STANDARD (	NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALID	ATOR'S USE
MILY SURVEY:  Yes No DK	
lidator Comments	
rector Response	

**Glossary Term(s):** Anti-Idling Policy, Developmental Screening, Discipline Policy (Children), Emergency Preparedness Plan, Goals (Program), Health Screenings, Mission Statement, Philosophy, Positive Guidance Procedures, Receipt (Policies/Procedures), Social Media (Policy/Procedures), Technology Usage (Policies/Procedures), Transition Planning, Transportation



## C3. The program has methods for communicating important information to families on a regular basis. [ES, FS, O]

Check all tha	t apply:						
☐ Bulletin k	oards/dr	y-erase boa	ards				
E-mail							
Newslett	ers						
Notices							
Parent m	eetings						
Technolo	gy/Softwa	are applica	tions				
☐ Verbal co	nversatio	ns					
Website							
Other (lis	t)						
	O MEE	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IM	PROVEME	NT	
	О МЕЕ			NEEDS IMF	PROVEME	NT	
FMPI OYFF SURVEY:	O MEE			LIDATOR'S USE	PROVEME	NT	
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes				Yes	No	DK
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Validator Comments		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator Comments		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator Comments		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator Comments		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator Comments		OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK

**Glossary Term(s):** Regular, Technology/Software Applications



Check all that apply:

E-mail

## C4. Employees maintain ongoing communication with families about their child's experiences and activities. [ES, FS, O]

	/Software applications					
Telephone o						
<ul><li>Two-way communication log</li><li>Verbal conversations</li></ul>						
Other (list) _						
	_					
	MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEM	IENT			
	OBSERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:		FAMILY SURVEY:				
	Yes No DK	Yes	No DK			
Validator Comments						
Director Response						
Director Response						
Director Response						
Director Response						
Director Response						
Director Response						
Director Response						

**Glossary Term(s):** Technology/Software Applications



	decisions a	bout the c	:hild's earl	y learnin	g experiences.		•	garding	
	Employees and families cooperatively develop plans for promoting the child's ongoing development. [ES]								
	Employees and families work together to prepare a transition plan for the successful transition from one classroom/teacher to another. [FS]								
	Employees and families work together to prepare a transition plan for the successful transition of children to kindergarten or elementary school. [ES, FS]								
	Employe concerns		ilies work to	ogether to	address adjustme	nt and/or	other socia	l-emotional	
	program	to meet th		the child.	es that will help the (Ex. parenting persp en) [ES]			•	
		inistrative v		,	y and outside agen Id with identified n		•		
		○ WEE	TS STANDA	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	ROVEMEI	NT		
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE				
EMP	LOYEE SURVEY:				FAMILY SURVEY:	Vac			
		Yes	NO			Yes	No	DIX	
	dator Comments	res	NO			res	NO	- DK	
	dator Comments	res	140			res	NO		
	dator Comments	res	140			res	NO .		
	dator Comments	res	140			res	INO		
Valid		res				res	INO		
Valid	dator Comments	res				res	INO		
Valid		res				res	INO		
Valid		res				res	INO		

**Glossary Term:** Transition Planning



**C6**.

develop	ment.								
☐ Forma	al conferences	are offered	d to parent	ts/legal guardians	a minimui	m of twice p	er year. [D]		
☐ Inform	Information from teacher observations and written assessments is shared. [ES]								
The child's progress and overall development are discussed. [ES, FS]									
☐ The perspective of the parent/legal guardian is invited and considered. [FS]									
inexp	The Director and/or Onsite Supervisor participate in the conference when the teacher is new inexperienced, outside professionals representing the child are included, and/or concerns exist. [ES]								
☐ The co	onference allo	ws an oppo	ortunity to	discuss a child's u	nique nee	<b>ds.</b> [ES, FS]			
regard screen treatr Documenteach	<ul> <li>The conference allows an opportunity to discuss a child's unique needs. [ES, FS]</li> <li>As applicable, the program encourages parents/legal guardians to share information regarding children's IFSP/IEP, medical diagnosis, and/or health and developmental screenings. (Ex. IEP Goals, speech exercises prescribed by a speech pathologist, medical treatments received outside school hours that may impact a child's physical habits) [ES, FS]</li> <li>Documentation of the conference is made, dated, signed by a parent/legal guardian and teacher, and a copy kept in the child's file. [D]</li> </ul>								
	ts/legal guard time. [D]	nans are pro	ovided the	e opportunity to re	quest a fo	rmai confer	rence		
	O MEE	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	ROVEME	NT			
	<b>О</b> МЕЕ			O NEEDS IMP	ROVEME	NT			
EMPLOYEE SURV					Yes	NT No	DK		
EMPLOYEE SURVI	EY:Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
	EY:Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
	EY:Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
	EY:Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
	EY:Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
	EY:Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
	Yes Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
Validator Comme	Yes Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
Validator Comme	Yes Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
Validator Comme	Yes Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
Validator Comme	Yes Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		
Validator Comme	Yes Yes	OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK		

Formal conferences are conducted to discuss children's progress and overall

**Glossary Term(s):** Assessment, Developmental Screening, Formal Conferences, Health Screenings, Individualized Education Program (IEP), Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP), Observation



C7.	The program provides parents/legal guardians with opportunities to better understand children's growth and development and effective strategies for learning. [ES, FS, O]
	Charle all that amples

$\bigcirc$	MEETS STANDARD	○ NEED	S IMPROVEMENT
$\cup$	MEETSSTANDARD	O NEED	3 IMPROVEMENT

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE									
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:				FAMILY SURVEY:					
	Yes	No	DK		Yes	No	DK		
Validator Comments									
Director Response									

**Glossary Term:** Parent



resources		ps partnei	snips wit	in community ag	jencies to	connect	amilies to	
☐ A curre	ent listing of	community	agencies	and services is ava	ilable to fa	amilies. [D, FS	5]	
	Families are provided information about applicable community events. [D]							
	Families are provided information regarding the importance of health and developmental screenings. [D]							
	☐ The program assists in connecting families to appropriate supportive resources. [ES, FS]							
☐ The pro	ogram collab	orates with	outside a	gencies to suppor	t children	and familie	<b>s.</b> [D, ES]	
	O MEE	TS STANDA	ARD	O NEEDS IMF	PROVEME	NT		
		OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY				FAMILY SURVEY:				
V-1: C	Yes	No	DK		Yes	No	DK	
Validator Comment	is							
Director Response								
				Т				

**Glossary Term(s):** Developmental Screening, Health Screenings



<b>C9.</b>	The progra	m promo	tes family	engagen	nent.			
		legal guard			ccess to the progra	m and the	ir child's cla	ssroom
	are plan	ned to mee	et the intere	ests and us	te in various aspect e the skills/talents program workdays	of family r	nembers. (L	Ex. parent
		families ar om their job		gagement	opportunities that	do not ne	cessarily re	quire time
		O MEE	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMF	PROVEME	NT	
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMF	PLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes	No No	DK
Vali	dator Comments							
_								
_								
Dire	ector Response							
_								
					1			



iv. Families na	ive oppor	tunities to	provide	reedback on the	program	•	
Annual v	written eva	luations are	e complet	ed by families. [D, FS]			
recomm		from famili	es. (Ex. sug	receive and review ggestion/comment b			en house,
Suggest		aluation re		ntegrated into prog	gram oper	ations and/	or goals
	O MEE	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	ROVEME	NT	
		OBSE	ERVER/V	ALIDATOR'S USE			
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:				FAMILY SURVEY:	Voc		
Validator Comments	Yes	No	DK		Yes	No	DK
validator Comments							
Director Response							
Director Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Evaluation (Program)



D1.

### D. Program Health and Safety

regulations for health and safety of children in group settings.
<ul><li>Licensing reports or licensing exemption documentation [D]</li><li>Fire inspection [D]</li></ul>
State quality rating reports (if applicable) [D]
State licensing ratio and group size [D]
Other as required by the program's location (Ex. additional health department inspections, self-reports, CACFP reports) [D]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator Comments
Director Response

The program maintains compliance with licensing standards and state and local

Glossary Term(s): Group Size, Staff-Child Ratio



D2.	The program maintains current, confidential written records for each child.
	Attendance records [D]
	Emergency contact information [D]
	☐ Health and/or developmental screenings completed per state guidelines [D]
	Medical information (Ex. allergies, chronic conditions, diagnosed disabilities, IEPs, physicals, well-child check-ups) [D]
	Physician's statement of health and ability to participate in group care on file within 90 days of enrollment [D]
	Up-to-date immunizations [D]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Valid	dator Comments
Dire	ctor Response

Glossary Term(s): Health Screenings, Developmental Screening



D3.	The prog	ıram imple	ments sec	urity meas	ures for protecti	on of chil	dren and e	employees.
	_	s to the buil nt unauthor	•		outdoor learning er	nvironmen	ts is contro	lled to
Access to the building, classrooms, and outdoor learning environments is limited to the having a purpose for being there. [ES, O]							to those	
		en authoriza In the child ca			arents/legal guard	ians specif	ying persor	n(s) to
	Written parental permission is obtained before children's photos, video footage, and/ or digital imagery are made and used for public viewing or any form of publication. (Ex. brochures, websites, social media, advertising material, etc.) [D]							
		<b>О</b> МЕ	ETS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	ROVEMEN	NT	
			OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMP	LOYEE SURVE	EY:Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes		
Valid	ator Comme	nts						
Direc	tor Response	•						
_								

**Glossary Term(s):** Security Measures



4. The prograi	m has a w	ritten pol	licy regar	ding illness that is given to all families. [FS]
☐ Condition	ns under v	vhich sick c	hildren ar	e excluded [D]
Temporal	ry care of	ill children i	is provide	d away from other children [D]
		ents/legal g		
				n to the program [D]
	ming with	cililarcii	canretan	to the program $\omega_1$
	○ MEE	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
		OBSE	ERVER/VA	ALIDATOR'S USE
FAMILY SURVEY:				
	Yes	No	DK	
Validator Comments				
Director Response				



D5.	parasites.	gal guardia	ans are no	tified of i	ncidents, injurie	s, illness	es, and det	ection of
			ed to docum lians. [D, ES, F		d's illness, actions k	y emplo	yees, and no	tification of
		-	ed to docum nts/legal gu		<b>ijury/incident, actio</b> D, ES, FS]	ons by em	nployees, and	d
	are give	n notificationicability, co	on that inclu	udes symp ures bein	sed to communical stoms, method of to g taken by the prog	ansmissi	on, period o	f
		○ MEE	TS STANDA	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	ROVEME	NT	
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMP	LOYEE SURVEY:	Yes			FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes		
Valid	lator Comments							
Direc	ctor Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Incident, Parasites



D6.	The program monitors the health of each employee who has direct or indirect contact with children.
	☐ A health appraisal is obtained within the first month of employment [D]
	A health appraisal is obtained every two years. [D]
	The health appraisal includes a statement that there are no health-related circumstances that should keep the employee from participating in the daily activities involved in caring for and engaging in activities with young children. [D]
	☐ TB test is obtained, if required by the local health authorities. [D]
	Employees who have contracted a highly contagious illness obtain written permission from a health professional to return to work. [D]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Valid	dator Comments
	_
Dire	ctor Response
_	

**Glossary Term(s):** Health Appraisal, TB Test



D7.	<b>Employees</b>	receive t	raining on	CPR, first	t aid, and safe sleep practices.		
	All emplo	oyees have	a current o	certificatio	n in pediatric/adult first aid and CPR. [D, ES]		
	☐ The training source is a national authority or a state licensing recognized provider on CPR						
		aid trainin	_		and the management of Condidate Infant		
		oyees rece Indrome (S		on sare si	eep practices and the prevention of Sudden Infant		
	·						
		O MEE	TS STAND	ARD	○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT		
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE		
EMP	LOYEE SURVEY:						
		Yes	No	DK			
Valid	dator Comments						
_							
_					_		
Dire	ctor Response						
	ctor nesponse						
_							

New Glossary Term(s): CPR (Pediatric/Adult), First Aid (Pediatric/Adult)



D8.	B. Employees receive training in universal precautions.									
	Prior to working with children, new employees receive training or provide documentation of training received within the last two years. [D]									
	All employees receive refresher training every two years. [D]									
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT									
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE									
Valid	/alidator Comments									
_										
_										
_										
_										
_										
_										
Dire	Director Response									
_										
_										
_										
_										
_										
_										

**Glossary Term(s):** Universal Precautions



Prior to working with children, new employees receive training or provide documentation training received within the last two years. [D, ES]   The training includes employee reporting responsibilities, prevention, symptoms, and long term mental and physical health consequences. [D, ES]   The training includes prevention and recognition of Shaken Baby Syndrome. [D, ES]   All employees receive refresher training every two years. [D]   MEETS STANDARD   NEEDS IMPROVEMENT    OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE    EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	syı	symptoms, prevention, the mental and physical health consequences for children, and reporting responsibilities.  Prior to working with children, new employees receive training or provide documentation of training received within the last two years. [D. ES]								
☐ The training includes employee reporting responsibilities, prevention, symptoms, and long term mental and physical health consequences. [D, ES]         ☐ The training includes prevention and recognition of Shaken Baby Syndrome. [D, ES]         ☐ All employees receive refresher training every two years. [D]										
All employees receive refresher training every two years. [D]  MEETS STANDARD NEEDS IMPROVEMENT  OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE  EMPLOYEE SURVEY:		The train	ing includ	es employe	e reportin	g respo	nsibilities, pr	evention, syn	nptoms, and long	
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE  EMPLOYEE SURVEY:			_	-		_		Baby Syndron	<b>ne.</b> [D, ES]	
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE  EMPLOYEE SURVEY:		All empi	oyees rece	ive retresne	r training	every t	wo years. ાગ			
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:  Yes No DK  Validator Comments			O MEE	ETS STANDA	ARD	0	NEEDS IMPR	OVEMENT		
Yes No DK  Validator Comments				OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDAT	OR'S USE			
	EMPLOYE	E SURVEY:	Yes		DK					
Director Response	Validator	Comments								
Director Response										
Director Response										
Director Response										
Director Response										
Director Response										
Director Response										
Director Response										
	Director R	esponse								

**Glossary Term(s):** Child Abuse and Neglect Training, Shaken Baby Syndrome



## D10. Medication policies and procedures are written and implemented to protect the child, employee, and program. [FS]

Ine	e policies and procedures for all medications include:
	The program does not administer the initial dosage of a medication, except with a licensed health care professional's written permission for life-threatening situations. (Ex. EpiPen) [D]
	Children are monitored post-administration of medication. [D]
	Parents/legal guardians provide written instructions that include the medication name, dosage, route, time and date medication is to be given and special instructions for monitoring. [D]
	Instructions are consistent with labeling on the medication or licensed health care professional's instructions. [D]
	All medicine must be in the original container and bear the full name of the child to whom it is given. $[0,D]$
	Documentation is made that shows the name of the medication, dosage, route, time and date, and the name of the person administering it. [D]
	All medicines are stored in a locked refrigerator, cabinet, or container AND are inaccessible to children. [O, D]
	Medication has not expired. [O, D]
	Medication is given only by designated employees trained in administration of medication. [ES, D]  Designated Employees:
OR	
	No medication is administered by the program.
Me	dications delivered by a device (Ex. Epi-Pen, inhaler, nebulizer):
	Parents/legal guardians or a licensed health care professional provide written instructions on indications for use, including signs and symptoms that the medication is needed. [D]
	Parents/legal guardians or a licensed health care professional demonstrate use and any special care after use of the device to all employees who will be administering the medication. [D]
	Documentation of the demonstration for use and care is made on the medication form including demonstrator, date, and employees in attendance. [D]
	Medication is given only by employees trained on use of the device. [ES, D]
	Training on use and care of the device is provided annually or as needed with employee or device changes. [D]  Designated Employees:
OR	
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT

**CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE** 



#### **STANDARD D10 CONTINUED**

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes		DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes		
Validator Comments	ies	INO	DK		165	INO	DK
Director Response							

Glossary Term(s): Emergency Medication, Medication, Medication Device, Medication Route



### **D11.** Transportation Vehicles

sch	ool district, the program requires each of the following:
	Age appropriate safety restraints [D, O]
	First aid supplies [D, O]
	Communication device [D, O]
	Current vehicle license [D, O]
	Current vehicle inspection certification (if required by the state) [D, O]
	Current and proper license of designated driver(s) [D]
	Documentation of vehicle maintenance [D]
	Transportation log showing vehicle trips, mileage, and vehicle condition [D]
	List designated driver(s):
OR	
	No transportation vehicles are used
Wh	en private vehicles are used, the program requires vehicles to have each of the following:
	Age appropriate safety restraints [D]
	First aid supplies [D]
	Communication device [D]
	Current vehicle license [D]
	Current vehicle inspection certification (if required in the state) [D]
	Vehicle insurance as required by federal and state laws [D]
	Current and proper license of designated driver(s) [D]
	Clearance obtained by the program's liability insurance [D]
	Written permission from parent/legal guardian for their child to be transported in private vehicles [D]
OR	
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT

When children are transported in vehicles owned by the program or commercial carrier/

**CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE** 



### STANDARD D11 CONTINUED

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator Comments
Director Response
·

**Glossary Term(s):** Transportation



D12.	When child supervision		-		policies and prowed. [ES]	rocedures r	egarding s	safety,	
	A preplanning form completed for field trips identifies the purpose of the trip, supervising employee(s), as well as employee(s) and site contact information. [D]								
	Notification of parents/legal guardians in advance of each field trip activity [D, FS]								
	☐ Written permission from parents/legal guardians for their child to attend the field trip								
	☐ Written p	permission	from parer	nts/legal gi	uardians for thei	r child to be	transported	[D, ES]	
	Safety ru	les for child	dren [D]						
	Procedur	res for eme	rgencies [D	, ES]					
	☐ Accounta	ability for c	hildren at a	all times [D,	ES]				
	Emergen	cy supplies	are broug	tht during	transport <i>(Ex. wo</i>	ater, first aid	kits, blanket	<b>s, food)</b> [D]	
	Commun	nication dev	<b>/ice</b> [D]						
	When Vehicl	es Used:							
	Children	logged in v	when entei	ring and lo	gged out when o	exiting the v	ehicle. [D]		
			-		orting children. Ites, school drop	•		-	
		re prohibite ons that im		_	nsuming alcohol	, and taking	illegal/lega	l drugs and	
	_	•			mobile devices he use of a hand				
		j includes, b			n-owned transp garettes, e-cigare				
	OR  No vehic	les are used	d						
		O MEET	ΓS STAND/	ARD	O NEEDS IN	MPROVEME	NT		
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE				
EMP	LOYEE SURVEY:				FAMILY SURVEY	•			
		Yes	No	DK		Yes	No	DK	
Valid	ator Comments								
Direc	ctor Response								
					:				

**Glossary Term(s):** Smoking, Transportation



### D13. Steps are taken to ensure that indoor and outdoor air quality is monitored.

Inc	door							
	The temp	erature is	maintained	d between	<b>68°F and 82°F.</b> [O,	ES]		
	Conditions that lead to excess moisture are avoided to prevent the growth of mold and mildew. (Ex. water leaks repaired immediately; humidity is kept within the desirable range of 30-50%) [D, O]							
	Adequate ventilation is maintained by using an HVAC system, fans, and/or open screened windows. [ES, O]							screened
	HVAC filters are changed or cleaned at least every 3 months or more often if indicated by manufacturer's guidelines. [D]							icated by
	Aerosols	are not us	<b>ed.</b> [D, 0]					
	_	-	•		he facility's indoo not present. [D, O]	or and outd	oor premise	es or in sight
Ou	tdoor							
	Outdoor	air quality	is monitore	ed by chec	king the Air Qual	ity Index. 🛭	)]	
	Outdoor	activities a	are limited (	or avoided	l during unhealth	y Air Qualit	y Index day	<b>/S.</b> [ES, D]
		• .			ortunities are tak ng children's expo			
					ig ciliaren 3 expe			
		<b>О</b> МЕЕ	TS STAND	ARD		IPROVEME	NT	
		O MEE					NT	
<b>NPLOYE</b>	E SURVEY:	O MEE			O NEEDS IM		NT	
	E SURVEY:		OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
ilidator			OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
ilidator	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
ilidator	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK
ilidator	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	O NEEDS IM	IPROVEME		DK

Glossary Term(s): Air Quality Index (AQI), Anti-Idling



<b>D14.</b>	The program consults with a health care organization or professional to provide guidance regarding health policies, procedures, and practices.								
	A written procedure describes the provider of the services, contact information, and situations to request consult. [D]								
		○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT						
		OBSERVER/V	ALIDATOR'S USE						
Valid	ator Comments								
Direc	tor Response								

**Glossary Term(s):** Health Care Organization or Professional



### D15. The facility has been tested for harmful environmental health hazards.

Radon
☐ The facility is tested for radon minimally every two years, and as necessary. [D]
If elevated levels of radon were found, action was taken to mitigate. [D]
Lead
All sources of tap water have been tested for lead. If lead levels are elevated, water filtration devices that have been certified to remove lead are used. [D]
If the building was constructed prior to 1979, the following practices are implemented to minimize lead hazards:
Paint condition inside and outside is inspected at least monthly, and the facility is free of flaking, chipping, peeling, or otherwise deteriorating paint. [D]
To prevent cracking and flaking of paint, all areas around doors and windows that are in good condition are washed at least weekly using a mop, sponge, or paper towel with warm water and a general all-purpose cleaner. [D]
Federal guidelines are followed before painting, remodeling, renovating, or making repairs. [D]
Renovation areas are sealed off from where children play or are completed when children are not present. [D]
The soil is tested for lead contamination in outdoor areas where children spend time. If soil is contaminated, children are not permitted access to bare soil. [D]
OR  Building was constructed after 1979.  Year the building was constructed:
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator Comments
Director Response

Glossary Term(s): Lead Exposure, Lead Hazards, Radon, Radon Mitigation, Tap Water (Lead)



	•	appear cle		•	d/or chemical resi	due are pr	ecent (O ES)	
				grances and	a/or chemical resid	aue are pre	<b>ESCIT.</b> [O, F3]	
Th	ne schedul	e includes:	:					
	Facility is area. [D, E		sanitized, aı	nd/or disin	fected daily or mo	ore often a	s needed ba	ased on the
	Bathrooi	ms are clea	ned and di	sinfected d	aily and upon obv	ious conta	amination.	[D, ES, O]
	Floors ar	nd surfaces	are cleane	d and sanit	tized daily and up	on obviou	s contamina	ation. [D, ES, O]
	All area r	rugs and ca	rpeted are	as are vacu	umed daily. [D, ES]			
	All area r	_	rpeted are	as are stea	m cleaned at least	twice a ye	ar and mor	e often as
	Individu	al bedding	is laundere	ed weekly o	or more often as n	<b>eeded.</b> [D, E	[S]	
	Dress-up	clothes an	nd stuffed to	oys are lau	ndered weekly an	d more oft	en as need	<b>ed.</b> [D, ES, O]
	Trash is r	emoved da	aily or more	e often as n	eeded. [D, ES, O]			
		walk-off ma			ntrances of the fac	cility and w	iping of sh	oes before
	Paper, ca	_	lass, alumi	num, and p	olastic bottles are	recycled, a	s service is	
	avanabio	[0, 23, 0]						
		O WEE	TS STAND/	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	PROVEME	NT	
		О МЕЕ			O NEEDS IMF	PROVEME	NT	
		O MEE			LIDATOR'S USE	PROVEME	NT	
EMPLOYE	EE SURVEY:	O MEE				PROVEME	NT	
	EE SURVEY:		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
			OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK
Validator	Comments		OBSE	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			DK

D16. Effective cleaning, sanitation, and disinfecting procedures are consistently practiced.

Glossary Term(s): Cleaning, Disinfect, Sanitize, Walk-Off Mat



D17.	Least-toxic cleaning, sanitizing, and disinfecting products are consistently used according to manufacturers' instructions.									
	Cleaning									
	Cleaning products are used according to manufacturers' instruction. [O, D]									
	Sanitizers/Disinfectants Household bleach and water is used as a sanitizer/disinfectant:									
	☐ Bleach concentration and bleach/water solution ratio is posted. [O, D]									
	Bleach/water solution is made fresh daily. [O, D]									
	☐ Bleach/water solution is made according to dilution ratio required. [D]									
	The bleach/water solution is only used for its intended purpose and in strict accordance with all label instructions. [ES, O]									
	OR  No household bleach used									
	Sanitizer/disinfectant other than household bleach is used:									
	Sanitizer/disinfectant is EPA registered. [D]									
	Sanitizer/disinfectant is the least toxic option for use around children. [D]									
	Sanitizer/disinfectant is prepared and used according to manufacturer's instructions,									
	including appropriate contact time. [D, ES]									
	The sanitizer/disinfectant is only used for its intended purpose and in strict accordance with all label instructions. [ES, O]									
	OR									
	No sanitizer/disinfectant other than household bleach used									
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT									
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE									
ЕМР	LOYEE SURVEY:									
Valid	lator Comments									
Direc	ctor Response									

**Glossary Term(s):** Bleach Concentrations, Cleaning, Disinfect, EPA Registered, Sanitize



# D18. The outdoor learning environment meets Consumer Product Safety Commission's (CPSC) safety guidelines and is maintained.

Playground equipment is maintained in safe condition and good repair. (Ex. climbing structures, slides, swings) [O]
Concrete footings, bolts, and/or screws are not exposed. [O]
No head entrapments exist. [O]
No splintering of the equipment [0]
Equipment is securely anchored. [O]
Outdoor play areas are protected by fencing or other barriers that are kept in good repair. [O]
All areas are free of debris and environmental hazards. [O, ES]
Outside areas have accessible first aid supplies. [O]
Daily safety inspections are made prior to children entering the playground. [D, ES]
A comprehensive playground safety inspection is conducted once a year. [D]
Employees have means of communication with administration in case of emergency. (Ex. walkie-talkie, cell phone) [0, 1]
Documentation is kept on file concerning equipment and surfacing purchases, installation warranties, and safety standard guidelines. [D]
If playground equipment is wooden, and was built before 2006, two coats of waterproof stain or sealant is applied at least once a year (if applicable). (Note: Most pre-2006 wooden playground structures were built using pressure treated wood, containing chromated copper arsenate (CCA)) [D]
Shock-absorbing surfaces under climbing structures, slides, and swings are maintained in fall zones to a proper depth for safety. (Note: Mark N/A by surface type not used.)
Loose-fill surfaces of 6 – 12 inches, depending on material used, height of equipment, and fall zone required (Ex. sand, wood chips, mulch, pea gravel) [O]
Surfaces of rubber or rubber-like materials meet ASTM F1292 Standards and fall zone requirements and are in good condition. [O, D]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE



### STANDARD D18 CONTINUED

		OBSER	VER/VALIDATOR'S	USE	
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: _	Yes	No	DK		
Validator Comments					
Director Response					

**Glossary Term(s):** ASTM F1292 Standards, Chromated Copper Arsenate (CCA) Wood, CPSC Safety Guidelines, Debris, Environmental Hazard, Fall Zones, Head Entrapments, Playground Safety Inspection (Comprehensive), Playground Safety Inspection (Daily), Shock-Absorbing Surfaces



Storage

D19. Undiluted chemicals, cleaning supplies, mercury-containing items, and other toxic materials are safely stored and disposed of, or recycled when possible.

In original containers that are clearly labeled [O, ES]

Inaccessi	ble to child	iren [O, ES]					
☐ In locked	cabinets/c	losets [O, ES]	]				
Separate from medication and food [O, ES]							
Disposal							
Disposed	l of accordi	ng to manı	ufacturers'	instructions [D, ES]			
		_		sources, make effort to recycle all used batteries,			
fluoresce	ent and con	npact fluore	escent ligh	t bulbs, and mercury-containing thermometers and			
thermost	ats at a ha	zardous wa	ste facility	7. [D, ES]			
	○ MFF	TS STAND <i>A</i>	\RD	NEEDS IMPROVEMENT			
	O	1331711127		O HELDS IIII HOVEMENT			
		OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:							
	Yes	No	DK				
Validator Comments							
				_			
Director Response							

Glossary Term(s): Locked, Mercury-Containing Items, Toxic Materials



D20.	<ul> <li>Integrated Pest Management (IPM) techniques are utilized to control pests, including insects and vermin.</li> <li>Garbage bins containing organic matter, both indoor and outdoor, remain covered to avoid attracting pests and to minimize odors. [O, ES]</li> <li>Non-toxic techniques to prevent and control pests are used indoors and outdoors. [D,O]</li> </ul>										
		-		•	•	able option, famili ably 24-48 hours in			notified in		
	effe	ective	product	at a time wh	nen childrei	Management tech n will not have exp r's instructions to e	osure to th	ne applicati	on area for		
			O ME	ETS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMF	PROVEME	NT			
				OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE					
EMPI	LOYEE SUI	RVEY:	Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes				
Valid	ator Comr	nents									
Direc	tor Respo	nse									
						,					

**Glossary Term(s):** Integrated Pest Management (IPM), Organic Matter



### D21. The program has made preparations for emergencies.

Ш	absence. [D, I]
	Emergency telephone numbers are clearly posted in every room. [O]
	Fire extinguishers, sprinklers, and alarms have current certification. [D, O]
	Exits are not obstructed. [O]
	A state-approved first aid kit is accessible to employees at all times, but out of reach of children. [O]
	All employees receive training in use of fire extinguishers. [D]
	Documentation is made of battery replacement for smoke detectors. ( <i>Note: Ensure hardwired systems do not need batteries in the event of a power outage.</i> ) [D]
	When exposure is possible, carbon monoxide detectors are present and monitored for battery replacement. [D]
	Fire drills are held monthly and documented. [D]
	Emergency drills are practiced quarterly, or more often as needed, and documented. (Ex. tornado, bad weather, lock down, evacuation) [D]
	Alternate emergency communication is identified. [D]
	Alternate emergency lighting exists and is maintained. [D]
Em	ergency preparedness plan:
	A written plan exists for emergencies that do not allow for relocation and includes emergency provisions, location within the building, and notification of parents/legal guardians. (Ex. tornado, extended lock-down, shelter-in-place) [D]
	A written plan exists for moving children to another location and includes transportation, pre-approved relocation sites, and notification of parents/legal guardians. [D, FS]
	A written plan exists for managing media relations and includes a designated spokesperson. [D]
	A hazardous waste clean-up and disposal plan is in place. [D]
	Children's emergency contact information is kept on a transportable list. [ES]
	The emergency preparedness plan is reviewed annually by all employees. [D]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE



#### **STANDARD D21 CONTINUED**

		OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE		
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes			FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes	 
Validator Comments				L		 
Director Response						
-						

**Glossary Term(s):** Emergency Communication, Emergency Lighting, Emergency Preparedness Plan, First Aid Kit (State-Approved), Hazardous Waste Clean-up and Disposal Plan, Media Relations, Transportation



D22.	The progra	m has a written plan for han	dling medical emergencies.
		tion of parents/legal guardians [	D] y health care professional, and/or emergency care
	source [D		y nearth care professional, and/or emergency care
		parental permission to obtain e	mergency treatment [D]
	Transpor	rtation [D]	
		○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
		OBSERVER/VA	ALIDATOR'S USE
Valid	lator Comments		
Valid	lator Comments		
_			
_			
_			
Direc	ctor Response		
Direc	ctor nesponse		
_			
_			
_			·
_			
_			
-			
_			
_			
_			



Check all that apply:

## D23. When program prepares food onsite, all local health and sanitary requirements are met.

Food manager/h	andler certificate [D]		
☐ Sanitation repor			
☐ Health inspectio			
	Care Food Program (CACF	P) report [D]	
Child and Addit	care rood rrogram (exer	1) Teport [b]	
O		O	
○ M	EETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT	
	OBSERVER/VAL	IDATOR'S USE	
Validator Comments			
Director Response			



### D24. Meals and Snacks

Ш	The program provides families with information about proper nutrition, food safety, and foods that may trigger allergic reactions. [D, FS]
	The nutritional needs of children are met for the hours they are in the program following USDA's Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) guidelines. [ES]
	Prepared food that is brought into the program to be shared among children is commercially prepared OR prepared in a kitchen that is inspected by local health officials. [D]
Wh	en meals and/or snacks are provided by the program:
	Menus periodically include foods representative of the cultures in the program. [D]
	Alternate provisions are made for children with allergies and/or other special nutritional needs. [D, O]
	Menus are displayed/provided for families. [O, D]
	All fruits and vegetables are thoroughly washed to avoid possible exposure to pesticides. [D]
	Bisphenol A-free (BPA-free) plastics are used for serving and storing food and drinks. (Ex. plastic cups, plates, bowls, bottles, and sippy cups; BPA-free plastics are opaque and/or pliable) [D, O]
	To avoid possible lead exposure, imported, old, or handmade pottery is not used for cooking, storing, or serving food or drinks. $[D,O]$
	To avoid possible lead exposure, only cold water is used for drinking, cooking, and making baby formula. [D]
	To avoid possible lead exposure, water outlets used for cooking and drinking are run for a minimum of 30 seconds prior to using after periods of non-use of six hours or more. [D]
OR	No food is provided by the program.
Wh	en meals and/or snacks are provided by families for their own children:
	Families are encouraged to provide meals with adequate nutritional value. [FS]
	Families are encouraged to use and provide the program with baby bottles made of glass (covered with a silicone sleeve to prevent breaking), or plastic baby bottles/sippy cups that are labeled "BPA-free". [FS, D]
	Food is stored appropriately at the program. [O]
	The program supplements food brought from home to meet USDA's CACFP guidelines. [ES]
OR	No food is provided by the families.
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE



#### **STANDARD D24 CONTINUED**

		OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE		
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes			FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes	 
Validator Comments						 <u> </u>
Director Response						
-						

**Glossary Term(s):** Bisphenol A-Free (BPA-free), Lead Exposure, USDA's Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP guidelines)



# Instructions for Completing Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log

The Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log is required for recording the formal education and ongoing professional development training of all employees counted in the staff-child ratio and onsite supervisors. It is a two-page, editable, electronic document found on our website, <a href="www.earlylearningleaders.org">www.earlylearningleaders.org</a>, that can be downloaded and saved to your computer. Once completed, it can be edited easily for any changes that may occur and to record additional training throughout the year.

Documentation of ongoing training should only include all training received during the **two** years prior to requesting a validation visit. The Validator will expect to find evidence of all information recorded on the log in personnel files during the onsite validation visit (Ex. certificates, diplomas, etc.).

Once accredited, programs are required to maintain an updated version of this form for submission with Annual Reports.

When completing the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log, make note of the following items:

#### General

- The director, onsite supervisor(s), and all employees who are counted in the staff-child ratio at some time during the day must have a *Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log*.
- Start a new log for each employee. This form is NOT intended to be a continuous running log with the next person's information listed immediately following the previous person.
- Provide all information required on the form. Incomplete logs will be returned for revision.
- Aside from training required by licensing and Standards D7, D8, and D9, all training recorded must have occurred on or after the employee's hire date.
- All information must be typed.

### **Employee Information**

- Record the name, job title, and hire date.
- Record the classification of the employee. If you are uncertain, you can refer to definitions of positions in Standards B1 and B2 in the Administrator's Report.
- For "Classroom", use the same name as recorded on the *Program Profile*, the *Observation Record*, and the children's daily schedule.
- Record the age range of the children with whom the employee is currently assigned. If not officially
  assigned to a classroom of children at any time during the day (e.g. a director and/or onsite supervisor), record N/A. If assigned to relieve employees in several age groups (e.g., a floater), list all groups
  and age ranges with whom the individual interacts.
- In the "Formal Education" space, record the highest level of education the person holds by listing the degree and major. Record CDA if that is the highest level of education. Record high school diploma (H.S.) or GED if no education beyond high school.
- The space "Total ECE/CD College Credits Earned" is for those employees who do not have a CDA or an AA/AS degree or higher in early childhood education/child development. Record the total number of college credits in ECE/CD the person has earned.



### **Training**

- Record all early childhood education/child development training received by each employee during the two years prior to requesting the validation visit. Also record management training for the director and other supervisory staff.
  - The two-year time period is not based on calendar years. Instead, it ends when you request an onsite visit and begins two years prior to that date. For example, if you submit a visit request in December of 2019, you would record all training received starting in December of 2017.
- List the trainings in chronological order.
- College courses in early childhood education/child development or relevant fields and CDA courses
  can be included as training hours if completed within the two-year time period and after the hire
  date. To determine total number of training hours for a three credit-hour college course, calculate
  three clock hours for each week the semester is in session.
- Record the total number of *clock* hours for each individual training topic.
- If acronyms are used for the trainer or agency name, provide a key listing acronyms with full associated name. For example, AELL Association for Early Learning Leaders.
- Include the following types of training content as stated in Standards B4 and B6:
  - O Early childhood education/child development topics
  - O Topics related to the age group with whom the employee works
  - O Program management and leadership training for the director and other onsite supervisors
  - O Topics identified in the employee's appraisal as needing improvement
  - O Topics identified in the employee's appraisal as opportunities for growth
- Along with the title of the training, a brief description of training content must be provided.
- When training is conducted during a staff meeting, the topic of the training must be listed with only the amount of time actually spent on the training.
- Training conducted by the director or any other employee cannot be counted as training hours for that person.



### **Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log**

Download this form from our website, <u>www.earlylearningleaders.org.</u>

Program Na	ame ( <i>in</i>	iclude c	corp. progra	ım # if apı	plicable):					
Name:						Job			Hire Date:	
Classification	on (See	Standar	rds B1 and B	2: select:	Director.	Title: Onsite	 Supervisor	Lead Teacher.	or Assist. Teacher	)
Classroom:							Age Range:	,,		,
Years in ECE Field:			Formal Ed (Degree/Ma						College Credits -related Majors/No	
	,	Ту	pe in traini	ng receiv	ed during	past tv	wo (2) year	s in chronologi	cal order.	
Date	Topic	c & Brie	ef Description	on				Trainer & Age (Include key	ency/College for acronyms)	# of Clock Hours
					•		•			
					•		•			
					•		•			
							•			
							•			
					•					
					•		•			
					•		•			
•							•			
		. ***			•	•••••	•			
					•	·•	•			
					•		•			
•		***************************************			•	•••••	•			
		•••••			•		•		······	
		•			•		•			
					•		•			
		•••••			•		•		<u>.</u>	
		•••••			•		•		<u>.</u>	
		. •••••••••			•	•			·····	
					•					
1					•	•••••	•			
		***************************************			•	•••••	•			
		. •			•		•			
		•			•	•	•			
		•			•		•			
L					*		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	<u></u>		<u>.</u>



### Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log (continued)

Program	Name (include corp. program # if applicable):					
Name:		Job Title:			Hire Date:	
	Type in training received during pa	st two (2				
Date	Topic & Brief Description			Trainer & Agen (Include key fo		# of Clock Hours
					•	
		•••••			•	
		•••••			•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	·····
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
					•	
		······································				
L		<b>.</b>	i		•	<u>:</u>

# **Classroom Observation**

### **Contents of this Section**

Instructions for Using Classroom Observation
Overview
Observations of Classrooms/Teachers
Preparing the Classroom Observation for the Validation Visit
Classroom Observation (Standards E1-G8)
E. Curriculum
F. Interactions between Teachers and Children
G. Classroom Health and Safety
<b>Instructions for Completing </b> <i>Observation Record</i>
<b>Observation Record</b>
Additional Observations



### **Instructions for Using Classroom Observation**

#### **Overview**

Standards in the *Classroom Observation* are considered to be appropriate for all age groups. Indicators, however, are grouped by ages. All age groups will be observed for the "All Ages" Indicators. Additionally, each classroom will be observed for the age-specific Indicators that correspond to that age range. Some Standards have separate pages for each age group; use the page that corresponds to the appropriate age range.

It is not acceptable to mark a Standard or Indicator "N/A" unless that choice is listed, or unless an age is specified in the "Infants/Toddlers/Twos" category that is different from the group being observed (e.g., a teacher of toddlers would write "N/A" beside an Indicator that specified infants). If you are unclear on how to implement a Standard or Indicator in a particular age group, contact the Accreditation Office for clarification.

Duplicate as many copies of the *Classroom Observation* as needed. At a minimum, one copy will be needed for self-evaluation by the Lead Teacher of each classroom, a second copy will be used by the Director when making observations, and a third copy will be necessary for recording final determinations for the Validator (see instructions for completion of the final determinations on next page). Retain the original copies of the *Classroom Observation* in a file folder labeled Original Classroom Observations, to be kept in the Doc Box.

Prior to beginning observations, review Standards and Indicators in the *Classroom Observation* (Standards E1 – G8) with all employees.

- Use the Glossary of Terms to clarify terms used in Standards/Indicators (glossary terms listed below the Observer/Validator's box following each Standard).
- Encourage employees to give examples of how a Standard is met in their classroom.
- Brainstorm additional ways to more fully meet the Standard.
- Acknowledge implementation of Standards during routine supervision.

#### **Observations of Classrooms/Teachers**

The classroom Lead Teacher makes a self-report on compliance with Standards and Indicators in a copy of the *Classroom Observation*.

- The Lead Teacher checks each Indicator that is judged to be met and marks the Standard as "Meets Standard" or "Needs Improvement". If any Indicator cannot be checked, that Standard is to be marked as "Needs Improvement", unless otherwise noted.
- Next, on a separate copy of the Classroom Observation, the Director conducts observations in each classroom and checks each Indicator that is judged to be met and marks the Standard as "Meets Standard" or "Needs Improvement". If any Indicator cannot be checked, that Standard is to be marked as "Needs Improvement", unless otherwise noted.
  - O Director spends a minimum of 60 continuous minutes observing on the first formal observation.
  - Observation should include open-ended child-initiated activity time, transition, mealtime, handwashing, and group time and diapering, if applicable.
  - After making independent observations, the Lead Teacher and Director meet to compare results, identifying strengths and challenges. Discrepancies are discussed and a plan is developed for improvement of Standards or Indicators where there is not strong evidence of compliance.



- The plan might include training, modeling by the director and/or mentor, observation of another teacher who demonstrates strength in the area, topic discussion at staff meetings, etc.
- The plan includes monitoring by the Director to ensure implementation of adjustments is occurring.
- The Director makes additional observations and continues to train and supervise teachers to maintain compliance with Commission Standards.

### Preparing the Classroom Observation for the Validation Visit

After adjustments are made, the Director meets with individual classroom Lead Teachers to record final determinations on clean copies of the *Classroom Observation* (one for each classroom) for use by the Validator on the day of the onsite validation visit.

- Use white, 8½" x 11" copy paper.
- Print the clean copies on one side of the page only. **Double-sided copies will not be accepted.**
- Duplicate as many copies of the *Classroom Observation* as there are classrooms of children.
- Use only black or blue ink.
- Place a check mark (✓) beside each Indicator that is met.
- On the clean copy record a check mark (✓) beside the rating of "Meets Standard" or "Needs Improvement" or not applicable, if listed, for each Standard.
- There is to be no other writing on these copies.
- Do **NOT** mail the clean copies of the *Classroom Observation* to the Accreditation Office. These copies will be used by the Validator on the day of the onsite validation visit.

#### **NOTE:**

- Each eligible classroom must be observed and assessed on Standards and Indicators in the *Class-room Observation*, including the following:
  - Each school-age group provided as an extension of a preschool program
  - O Each classroom in the summer school-age program, if the validation visit occurs during summer months
  - O Extended-day classrooms, such as early morning and evening care, if an extended-day program is provided
- A kindergarten classroom will not be observed during the official hours of kindergarten; however, if these children are at the program beyond these hours, the classroom will be considered school-age and may be observed.
- A stand-alone school-age program is not to be included as this type of program does not qualify for accreditation through the National Accreditation Commission.
- A new *Classroom Observation* is to be prepared for a classroom with a new Lead Teacher and/or each additional classroom that may be formed (e.g. a school-age summer program) after the *Request for Validation Visit* has been submitted but prior to the onsite validation visit.
  - The Accreditation Office must be notified of such additions immediately.



- All adults in the classroom, including the assistant teachers, teacher aides, substitutes, and floaters, are expected to meet all Standards in the *Classroom Observation*.
- Newly hired teachers should be oriented to Commission Standards.
- All copies of the *Classroom Observation* completed by teachers and the Director during the Self-Study process are kept in the Doc Box for the onsite validation visit.



### E. Curriculum

E1.	Written les	son plans	reflect pla	anning th	at promotes child	dren's ov	erall devel	lopment.
	All Ages							
	Lesson plans include activities that promote social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development. [D]							
	Activitie	s are appro	priate to th	e develop	mental stages of th	ne childre	n in the clas	<b>sroom.</b> [O, D]
	Teachers are flexible and adapt the lesson plan to meet the changing interests and needs of the classroom. [ES, O]							
	Lesson plans have written goals for children. [D]							
	Lesson plans have some form of written evaluation. [D, I]							
	Lesson p	olans are po	osted for fai	milies' viev	ving. [D, FS]			
	Adequate time and resources are allocated for lesson planning, preparation, and implementation. [ES]							
		О МЕЕ	TS STAND	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	ROVEME	NT	
			OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
ЕМР	LOYEE SURVEY:	Yes	No		FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes		
Valid	lator Comments							
l								
l _								
  -								
Direc	ctor Response							
Direc	ctor Response							
Direc	ctor Response							
Direc	ctor Response							
Direc	ctor Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Cognitive Development, Goals (Children), Language Development, Lesson Plan, Lesson Plan Evaluation, Motor Development, Social and Emotional Development



**E2.** Written observations are made on each child's actions, abilities, and knowledge as the child engages in the classroom and in routine outdoor settings. All Ages Observations are documented of each child on a regular basis over time. [D] Documentation includes observations on social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development. [D] Documentation includes time, date, and location of the observation. [D] Written observations are objective and free from bias. [D] Observation results are used to plan activities that will further learning and development. [ES] NEEDS IMPROVEMENT **OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE EMPLOYEE SURVEY:** Yes No DK **Validator Comments Director Response** 

**Glossary Term(s):** Cognitive Development, Language Development, Motor Development, Objective and Free from Bias, Observation, Observation Documentation, Regular, Social and Emotional Development



All Ages

### E3. Written assessment is made of each child's learning and development.

Assessments are based on developmental norms and expectations appropriate for the child's age. [D]	
Assessments incorporate information obtained from multiple sources. (Ex. observation documentation, photographs, samples of work, developmental screenings, parental input)	
Assessments are used to identify effectiveness in meeting goals for children and as a guide for future planning. [ES]	<u>:</u>
Infants, Toddlers, Twos	
Assessments include social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development.	D]
Teachers complete assessments 2 or more times per year. [D]	
Preschool	
Assessments include social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development.	D]
☐ Teachers complete assessments 2 or more times per year. [D]	
School Age	
Assessments include general skills and abilities of school age children. (Ex. social skills, physical abilities, program goals) [D]	
Teachers complete assessments a minimum of once per year. [D]	
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT	
ODSERVED (VALIDATOR)S LIST	
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE	
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK	
Validator Comments	
	•
	_
Director Response	

**Glossary Term(s):** Assessment, Cognitive Development, Developmental Norms and Expectations, Goals (Children), Language Development, Motor Development, Observation Documentation, Social and Emotional Development



## E4. Accommodations to address the needs of individual children are made in collaboration with families, administrators, and outside specialists.

challengi interactio	ng behavi ons, ratio/g ole modific	ors. (Ex. adj roup size, cl cations are	ustment to lassroom ai made for c	hildren with temp activities, materia rrangement) [FS, ES, 0 hildren with ident	ls, schedul D, I] ified deve	e, routines, s	st <i>affing,</i> Ielays or
•	tion to the o	ecommend classroom o	<b>r facility)</b> [F	ed on IFSP, IEP, or m S, ES, O, I]  NEEDS IMP	·		y include
		OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
MPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes		DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK
alidator Comments							
Pirector Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Individualized Education Program (IEP), Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP), Modifications, Temporary Needs



5.	Teachable moments are recognized and used by teachers to extend children's learning.
	Infants, Toddlers, Twos
	☐ The unexpected occurrence, discovery, or interest is followed with related conversation, materials, and/or reading of a book about the interest/topic. [ES, O]
	Preschool
	☐ Teachers encourage in-depth exploration of a child's interest, discovery, or unexpected event. (Ex. asks questions, reads relevant books, provides related materials and/or activities) [ES, O]
	School Age
	Children's discoveries or current interests are followed with related conversation, an activity, project, and/or research on the subject. [ES, O]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
ЕМР	PLOYEE SURVEY:
Valid	dator Comments
Dire	
	ector Response
	ector Response
	ector Response
_	ector Response
	ector Response

**Glossary Term(s):** Teachable Moments



5.	The daily schedule provides a predictable routine that is responsive to the children.			
	All Ages			
	Schedule includes time for both indoor and outdoor activities. [D, O]			
	Schedule includes a balance of active and quiet times scheduled alternately. [D, O]			
	Written schedule is posted for viewing by families and guests. [D, O]			
	Teachers inform children in advance of changes to the schedule and/or routine. [ES, O]			
	Infants, Toddlers, Twos			
	Scheduling occurs around each infant's individual rhythms and routines. [O, D]			
	Schedule for toddlers and twos is flexible to accommodate their changing needs. [ES, O]			
	☐ The schedule includes time throughout the day, both indoors and outdoors, for continuous, uninterrupted, child-initiated play. [D, O]			
	☐ If group and/or teacher-guided activities are used, children are not required to participate. [O, D]			
	Preschool			
	☐ Time allocated for each component is flexible so that children are not frustrated or bored. [ES, O]			
	☐ The schedule includes extended periods of time in the morning and in the afternoon, both indoors and outdoors, for continuous, uninterrupted, child-initiated play. [D, O]			
	☐ If group and/or teacher-guided activities are used, they are limited and adjusted according to children's developmental abilities and interests. [O, D]			
	School Age			
	Schedule is flexible to accommodate children's needs. [ES, O]			
	If group and/or teacher-guided activities are used, they are limited and adjusted according to children's interests. [O, D]			
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT			
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE				
EMPL	OYEE SURVEY:			
Valida	ator Comments			
Director Response				
-				

**Glossary Term(s):** Child-Initiated, Flexible, Routine, Teacher-Guided, Uninterrupted



All Ages

### E7. Transitions throughout the day are planned and smoothly implemented.

☐ The number of whole group transitions is limited. [D, O]
Children do not spend unnecessary time waiting. (Ex. activities are prepared ahead of time; children wash hands or use the toilet individually as needed; transitions are brief; when there is no option and children must wait, they are actively engaged in singing, finger plays, reading, playing games) [O]
Transitions are often ongoing and/or individualized. [O, D]
☐ Teachers give advance notice through respectful reminders and/or prompts. [O]
Infants, Toddlers, Twos
Teachers give advance notice to infants by stating what is about to happen before physically moving a child. [O]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator Comments
Director Response

**Glossary Terms:** Prompts, Transitions



All Ages

# E8. The arrangement of the classroom encourages children to become engaged and Part 1 of 2 promotes child-centered learning experiences.

**Glossary Term(s):** Child-Safe Mirrors, Mobile Infants, Non-Mobile Infants



E8. The arrangement of the classroom encourages children to become engaged and Part 2 of 2 promotes child-centered learning experiences.

All Ages				
Classroom is set up prior to the arrival of children. [ES]				
Clear pathways allow children to move freely from one area to another. [O]				
Classroom has a balance of furniture and space so children are not crowded. [O]				
Classroom is arranged so active play does not interfere with quiet activities. [O]				
Semi-private areas are available for children choosing to be alone. (Ex. quiet book nook, small table for one or two children) [O]				
Soft surfaces are available for comfort and relaxation. (Ex. soft furnishings, rugs, pillows, toys) [O]				
Space is designed to display materials in a neat, clean, organized manner as not to overwhelm. [O]				
Space is designated for each child's personal belongings. (Ex. storage of clothes, art work) [O]				
☐ Tables and chairs are appropriate heights for the children in the group. [○]				
Child-safe mirrors are at children's eye level. (Ex. free standing in dramatic play, mounted on wall or back of shelves, hand held mirrors, incorporated in floor mat or toy) [0]				
Preschool				
Classroom is arranged into clearly defined learning centers for children's choice and interests. (Ex. art, blocks, literacy, dramatic play, music, science/nature, writing, sensory, math/manipulatives) [O]				
School Age				
Classroom is arranged into areas for children's choice and interests. (Ex. games, library/homework, computers, science/nature, drama, arts/crafts, construction) [O]				
A designated space is available for use by this group while they are present. [O]				
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT				
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:				
Validator Comments				
Director Response				

**Glossary Term(s):** Child-Safe Mirrors



E9.	Materials are selected to advance the goals of the lesson plan and build on children's
	current knowledge and skills.

All Ages
Teachers change materials to meet the interests and developing abilities of the children. [ES, O]
A variety of materials allow children to make choices. [O]
Duplicate or similar items allow multiple children to participate at the same time. [O]
Materials are stored on low, open shelves for children's self-selection and return. [O]
Materials in the classroom are sorted with like items together and stored in containers and/ or in designated spaces. [O]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK
Validator Comments
Director Response

**Glossary Term(s):** Goals (Children)



All Ages

# E10. Play is promoted through daily opportunities for curiosity, imagination, inventiveness, risk-taking, and flexibility.

	Children have opportunities to freely explore materials and activities. [O]
	Children are able to use materials in new and inventive ways. [O]
	Ample and varied materials and activities are accessible during open-ended, child-initiated exploration. [O]
	Children are engaged with limited waiting. (Ex. popular activities are offered frequently or over an extended period, popular centers are enlarged when interest is high) [O]
	Teachers are responsive and flexible in ways that maximize engagement. [O]
	Teachers show interest, playfulness, appropriate humor, or appreciation for what children do as they play. [O]
	Children can frequently/typically complete activities to their satisfaction before being required to move to another activity. (Ex. enough time is offered, children are not required to rotate centers on a timer) [O]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator	Comments
Director I	Response

Glossary Term(s): Accessible, Curiosity, Flexible, Responsive, Risk-Taking



## E11. Language is promoted through daily opportunities for communicating, listening, and understanding.

All Ages									
Teachers listen, acknowledge, and verbally respond to children. [O, ES, FS]									
Infants, Toddlers, Twos									
Teachers converse with children throughout the day. [O]									
Teachers use facial expressions, gestures, and inflections to enhance children's understanding. [O]									
☐ Teachers allow time for children to respond to questions and comments. [O]									
Teachers describe actions, activities, and objects to expand children's vocabulary. [O]									
Preschool									
Teachers engage children in reciprocal conversations. [O]									
Teachers use open-ended questions and statements to stimulate thinking and self-expression. [O]									
Teachers allow time for children to respond to questions and comments. [O]									
Teachers describe objects and events to expand children's vocabulary. [O]									
Teachers encourage children to engage in meaningful discussion with each other. [O]									
School Age									
☐ Teachers engage in reciprocal conversation with children. [O]									
Teachers use open-ended questions and statements to stimulate thinking and self-expression. [O]									
☐ Teachers provide opportunities for children to engage in meaningful discussion with each other. [O]									
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT									
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE									
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:									
,									
Validator Comments									
Director Response									

**Glossary Term(s):** Gestures, Inflections, Open-Ended Questions and Statements, Reciprocal Conversation, Self-Expression



## **E12.** Reading is promoted through daily experiences with books, print, and Part 1 of 3 phonological awareness.

All Ages
Books are accessible to children for self-selection. [O]
Books are rotated periodically to maintain children's interests. [ES]
Books are kept in good repair. [O]
☐ Teachers model appreciation of books to help children form good book-care habits. (Ex. books are picked up off the floor, teacher shows a child how to turn pages, teacher redirects mishandling of books) [O]
Teachers pace the reading of a book to allow children to ask questions, make comments, and/or react. [O, ES]
Print has meaningful uses and is displayed throughout the classroom. (Ex. children's names in view, personal belongings labeled, pictures with text, materials labeled, rebus charts, labels, word walls, charts, environmental print: menus, newspapers, empty food containers; commercial posters, signs) [O]
Infants, Toddlers, Twos
A variety of age-appropriate books are provided. (Ex. soft, vinyl, board, nursery rhymes, picture books, books with real pictures, alphabet, number) [O]
Teachers read with individual children and/or small groups daily. [O, I]
Teachers use songs, fingerplays, and rhymes. [O, I]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
IPLOYEE SURVEY:             Yes         No         DK
lidator Comments
rector Response

**Glossary Term(s):** Accessible, Phonological Awareness



## E12. Reading is promoted through daily experiences with books, print, and Part 2 of 3 phonological awareness.

All A	Ages
	Books are accessible to children for self-selection. [O]
	Books are rotated periodically to maintain children's interests. [ES]
	Books are kept in good repair. [0]
_	Teachers model appreciation of books to help children form good book-care habits. (Ex. books are picked up off the floor, teacher shows a child how to turn pages, teacher redirects mishandling of books) [O]
	Teachers pace the reading of a book to allow children to ask questions, make comments, and/or react. [O, ES]
_	Print has meaningful uses and is displayed throughout the classroom. (Ex. children's names in view, personal belongings labeled, pictures with text, materials labeled, rebus charts, labels, word walls, charts, environmental print: menus, newspapers, empty food containers; commercial posters, signs) [O]
Pres	school
	A variety of age-appropriate books are provided. (Ex. books with real pictures, alphabet, number, rhyming, alliteration, hardback, big, favorite books, poems) [O]
	Some of the books are related to the lesson plan. [O]
	Teachers read with individual children and/or small groups daily. [0, 1]
	Books are displayed at child's eye level with the cover of some books in sight to invite children's interest. [O]
	Teachers call attention to print concepts while reading aloud. (Ex. left to right, top/bottom, front/back, words/pictures, author/illustrator) [0,1]
	Literacy props are available for children to act out, create, or retell stories. (Ex. puppets, flannel board pieces, costumes, pictures) [0, 1]
_	Teachers promote phonological awareness. (Ex. using rhymes, songs, alliteration, chants, word games, rhythm patterns, fingerplays, listening centers) [0, 1]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
MPLOYEE	SURVEY:
/alidator C	omments
Director Re	sponse

**Glossary Term(s):** Accessible, Phonological Awareness, Print Concepts



## E12. Reading is promoted through daily experiences with books, print, and Part 3 of 3 phonological awareness.

	Books are	accessible	to children fo	or self-sel	lection. [0]	
	Books are	rotated pe	eriodically to	maintain	children's interests. [ES]	
	Books are	kept in go	od repair. [0]			
	books are		off the floor, te		nelp children form good book-care habits. (Ex. ows a child how to turn pages, teacher redirects	
	Teachers   and/or re		ading of a bo	ok to allo	ow children to ask questions, make comments	,
	in view, pe labels, wo	ersonal belo	ongings labele arts, environn	d, picture	l throughout the classroom. (Ex. children's nan es with text, materials labeled, rebus charts, int: menus, newspapers, empty food containers	
Sci	hool Age					
	•	of age-app <i>n books)</i> [0]	-	ks are pro	ovided. (Ex. picture books, poems, chapter book	s,
	_		ies are schedu read to individ		n. (Ex. individual reading, reading to peers, teach	iers
	Teachers	read with i	ndividual chil	dren and	l/or small groups daily. [O, I]	
		О меет	'S STANDARI	)	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT	
			OBSERV	ER/VALI	IDATOR'S USE	
MPLOYE	E SURVEY:	Yes	OBSERV	ER/VALI	IDATOR'S USE	
	E SURVEY:	Yes			IDATOR'S USE	
		Yes			IDATOR'S USE	
		Yes			IDATOR'S USE	
'alidator		Yes			IDATOR'S USE	
'alidator	Comments	Yes			IDATOR'S USE	
'alidator	Comments	Yes			IDATOR'S USE	

**Glossary Term(s):** Accessible, Phonological Awareness



# E13. Handwriting is promoted through daily opportunities to use writing tools in a print-rich environment.

Infants, Toddlers, Twos
Writing tools are available with teacher supervision for children with sufficient motor skills to hold a writing implement. (Ex. nontoxic crayons, markers, chalk) [0,1]
Prewriting efforts are encouraged, accepted, and displayed at children's eye level. (Ex. markings, scribbling, drawings) [O]
Handwriting is displayed in meaningful ways in the classroom. (Ex. names on personal belongings, labels, pictures, teacher-made signs and charts) [O]
Preschool
Materials that promote writing are accessible for children's use. (Ex. paper, markers, crayons, pencils, envelopes, paper of various sizes, alphabet displays, name cards, letter stencils, word wall) [O]
Prewriting/writing efforts are encouraged, accepted, and displayed at children's eye level. (Ex. scribbling, drawing, letter-like symbols, inventive spelling) [O]
Opportunities are made for children to dictate their ideas to teachers. (Ex. tell about their art work, create stories, make class books, "thank you" notes) [0,1]
Handwriting is used in meaningful ways throughout the classroom. (Ex. name tags, sign-in sheets, labels that give information about use or contents, teachers' charts, journals) [O]
School Age
Materials that assist children in composing and editing their writing are accessible. (Ex. dictionary, thesaurus, grammar rules) [O]
Writing tools and paper are accessible in a designated area for self-selection. (Ex. pens, colored pencils, envelopes, forms, stationery) [O]
Handwriting is used in meaningful ways in the classroom. (Ex. stories, sign-in sheets, class rules, journals, charts, posters, poems) [O]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
idator Comments
ector Response

Glossary Term(s): Accessible, Available, Dictate, Print-Rich Environment



E14. Math concepts are promoted through daily hands-on experiences with number, pattern, shape, spatial relationships, measurement, classification, and comparison.

Info	ants, Toddlers, Twos
	Teachers use math vocabulary as it relates to children's experiences. (Ex. a little, a lot, more/less, up/down, big/small, over/under, almost, soon, next) [O]
	Materials and activities that build an awareness of beginning math concepts are accessible. (Ex. toys of various shapes, sizes, patterns, and textures, songs, simple puzzles, blocks, stacking rings, nesting cups, activity boxes, balls, tunnels, books, boxes, shape sorters, fingerplays) [O]
Pre	eschool
	Teachers use math vocabulary during interactions. (Ex. alike/different, larger/smaller, beside/between, first/last, before/after, tomorrow/yesterday, sooner/later, how many?, how long?) [O]
	Materials that promote an understanding of basic math concepts are accessible. (Ex. manipulatives, puzzles, stringing beads, counting cubes, sensory table, construction materials, measuring cups, pattern blocks, books, geoboards, cooking sets; items to group, sort, compare, order, measure) [O]
	Teachers use basic math concepts in real situations. (Ex. graphing the votes of children, counting snacks to match the number of children, time concepts as they relate to routines and seasons, charting growth, cooking activity, rebus charts, songs, fingerplays) [O, I]
	Wooden unit blocks are accessible. [O]
Sch	hool Age
	Teachers use math vocabulary during interactions. (Ex. greater than/less than, minutes, inches, degrees, days of the week, months) [O]
	Materials that promote an understanding of math concepts are accessible. (Ex. items for graphing, sequencing, ordering, and measuring; games, puzzles, dice, tangrams, geoboards, construction materials, rulers, calculators, 100+piece puzzles) [O]
	Teachers provide opportunities for children to use math concepts in meaningful ways. (Ex. graphing the votes of children, planning a pizza party, calendar, guessing games, cooking) [O, I]
	Wooden unit blocks are accessible. [O]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator (	Comments
Director R	esponse

**Glossary Terms:** Accessible, Hands-On Experiences, Math Concepts



## E15. Science is promoted through daily opportunities for prediction, reasoning, and experimentation.

Info	ants, Toddlers, Twos
	Children are encouraged to independently explore materials and the environment. [O]
	Teachers provide materials for children to use their five senses to observe and learn about real objects. (Ex. rattles, fabrics, sensory bottles, natural objects: feathers, sand, water) [0, 1]
	Books and posters with real photographs are used as tools for learning. (Ex. machines, animals, people, nature, fruits, vegetables) [O]
Pre	eschool
	Activities promote an understanding of physical properties, living things, and the environment. (Ex. cooking, recycling, planting beans, simple investigations, nature collections, work with wood, terrarium, fish/insect/plant life cycles) [0]
	Opportunities for children to experiment using their five senses are accessible. (Ex. smell jars, sound shakers, color paddles, sound games, sand, water, sensory table, play dough) [O]
	Simple tools and materials that encourage children to ask questions, make predictions, and experiment with possible solutions are accessible. (Ex. tongs, scales, balances, magnifying glasses, eyedroppers, plastic test tubes, magnets, gardening tools, measuring cups) [O]
	Non-fiction books and/or posters that provide information and vocabulary about science concepts of interest are accessible. [O]
Sch	nool Age
	Activities broaden children's understanding of life, earth, and physical sciences. (Ex. animal life cycles, butterfly/vegetable gardens, recycling, conservation projects, composting, rock collections, simple experiments) [O]
	Tools and materials that stimulate problem solving through inquiry, hypothesis, and investigation are accessible. (Ex. thermometer, tweezers, microscope, pulleys, prisms, rulers, cylinders, compass, rain gauge, tornado tubes, construction kits) [O]
	Non-fiction and reference books that provide information and vocabulary about science concepts of interest are accessible. [O]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator (	Comments
Director R	esponse

**Glossary Term(s):** Accessible, Hypothesis/Prediction, Non-Fiction, Science Concepts



## E16. Social studies is promoted through a shared sense of community and an appreciation for diversity.

<ul> <li>Materials and/or activities reflect the lives of the children and families served. [O, FS]</li> <li>Materials and/or activities promote understanding of diversity found in society. [O]</li> <li>Materials and/or activities reflect individuals and groups in gender neutral ways. [O]</li> <li>Teachers encourage children to engage in activities without imposing cultural or gender bias. [ES, O]</li> <li>Community members are invited into the classroom to enrich the curriculum. [ES]</li> <li>MEETS STANDARD</li> <li>NEEDS IMPROVEMENT</li> </ul>							
		OBSE	RVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes		DK
Validator Comments							
Director Response							

Glossary Term(s): Cultural Bias, Diversity, Gender Neutral, Social Studies



## E17. Creativity is promoted through daily opportunities for self-expression, symbolic Part 1 of 3 representation, and development of aesthetic sensibility.

Music has a purpose and is not used as ongoing background noise or for adult entertainment. [O, ES]
An assortment of musical styles is available for children's enjoyment. (Ex. children songs, jazz, classical, world music) [O, I]
Children express their own ideas through movement to music. (Ex. dancing, swaying, streamers, parachute, scarves) [0, 1]
Protective clothing is used for messy play. [O, I]
Infants, Toddlers, Twos
Children have opportunities to play simple instruments. (Ex. rattles, drums, shakers, xylophones) [0, 1]
Simple props are accessible for pretend play. (Ex. dolls, hats, dishes, telephones, scarves) [O]
Art materials are available with teacher supervision. (Ex. nontoxic finger paint, crayons, play dough, large paper) [0, 1]
Examples of children's artwork are displayed at the children's eye level. (Ex. display in infant/toddler rooms: finger paintings placed behind plexi-glass, laminated crayon pictures posted on the backs of shelves) [O]
Children have ample opportunities to express their own ideas and feelings through process-oriented art. (Ex. easel painting, collage art, drawings, string painting) [O, D]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
APLOYEE SURVEY:            Yes         No         DK
alidator Comments
rector Response

Glossary Term(s): Accessible, Aesthetic Sensibility, Available, Process-Oriented Art



## E17. Creativity is promoted through daily opportunities for self-expression, symbolic Part 2 of 3 representation, and development of aesthetic sensibility.

	usic has a purpose and is not used as ongoing background noise or for adult tertainment. [O, ES]
_	assortment of musical styles is available for children's enjoyment. (Ex. children songs, jazz, issical, world music) [0,1]
	ildren express their own ideas through movement to music. (Ex. dancing, swaying, eamers, parachute, scarves) [O, I]
☐ Pro	otective clothing is used for messy play. [O, I]
Presch	ool
	assortment of musical instruments is available for children's self-expression. (Ex. jingle lls, maracas, rhythm sticks, tom-toms, tambourines) [0,1]
	ildren have access to a dramatic play area equipped with a variety of props. (Ex. dishes, etend food, dress up clothes, dolls, menus, cookbook, stethoscope, stuffed animals) [0]
	variety of open-ended art materials are accessible for self-selection. (Ex. easel paint, yarn, syons, wood scraps, play dough, variety of paper, glue, markers, watercolors) [0]
Exa	amples of children's artwork are displayed at the children's eye level. [O]
	ented art. (Ex. teachers do not provide ditto sheets or patterns to color within, teachers do not ake models for children to copy) [O, D]  MEETS STANDARD  NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
EMPLOYEE SU	<b>RVEY:</b> Yes No DK
Validator Com	ments
Director Respo	onse

Art

Glossary Term(s): Accessible, Aesthetic Sensibility, Available, Open-Ended Art Materials, Process-Oriented



## E17. Creativity is promoted through daily opportunities for self-expression, symbolic Part 3 of 3 representation, and development of aesthetic sensibility.

All Ages
Music has a purpose and is not used as ongoing background noise or for adult entertainment. [O, ES]
An assortment of musical styles is available for children's enjoyment. (Ex. children songs, jazz, classical, world music) [0,1]
Children express their own ideas through movement to music. (Ex. dancing, swaying, streamers, parachute, scarves) [0, 1]
Protective clothing is used for messy play. [0, 1]
School Age
Children have access to different types of musical instruments. (Ex. recorders, drums, rhythm instruments, keyboards, tone bells) [0,1]
Children have access to a variety of creative drama materials. (Ex. props, costumes, stage area, puppets) [O]
A variety of art media for children to explore is accessible. (Ex. clay, 3-D sculpting materials, collage, pastels, watercolors) [O]
Children's artwork is displayed at the children's eye level. [0]
Children express their own ideas and feelings through planned and child-initiated activities in arts and crafts. (Ex. murals, jewelry, beading, weaving, paper-mache) [O, D]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
IPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK
lidator Comments
rector Response

Glossary Term(s): Accessible, Aesthetic Sensibility, Available, Child-Initiated



Cognitive skills are promoted through daily opportunities for concept development, information-seeking, persistence, memory, and problem solving. All Ages Teachers ask questions and make comments about materials and activities that stimulate thinking and problem solving. [O] Teachers provide additional information and/or resources to increase engagement, persistence, and further learning. [0] Preschool Teachers encourage children to plan, participate, and reflect on activities. [O] Teachers rotate throughout the classroom during open-ended, child-initiated activity time, individualizing learning with an awareness of the whole group. [O] School Age Teachers encourage children to plan, participate, and reflect on activities. [O] Teachers rotate throughout the classroom during open-ended, child-initiated activity time, individualizing learning with an awareness of the whole group. [O] NEEDS IMPROVEMENT **OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE Validator Comments Director Response** 

Glossary Term(s): Child-Initiated, Concept Development, Persistence, Problem Solving



## E19. Gross motor skills are promoted through daily opportunities for physical activity to develop large muscle groups and coordination.

		e toys for in	_	he day to practice coordination, movement, and for, pull up on; kick, tummy time, space to r	
Position	ing of infan	ts is chang	ged in resp	onse to their signals. [O, ES]	
Moveme of time.		ts is not re	stricted by	equipment and space for extended periods	
tunnels,		cars, balls,	slides, sma	r active participation in physical activities. (E. Il climbing structures, dancing, movement to n	
Preschool					
structure	es, tricycles,	slides, ball	s, obstacle	articipation in physical activities. (Ex. climbing courses, space for running, skipping, hopping, lee, inclement weather activities) [O, D]	•
School Age					
competit	tive games, ent, dancing	basketball	hoops, hul g, obstacle (	articipation in physical activities. (Ex. non- a hoops, jump ropes, swings, slides, climbing courses, inclement weather activities) [O, D]  NEEDS IMPROVEMENT	
		ORCI		LIDATORIC LICE	
		ORZI	EKVEK/VA	LIDATOR'S USE	
IPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK		
IPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK		
	Yes	No	DK		
	Yes	No	DK		
	Yes	No	DK		
lidator Comments	Yes	No	DK		
lidator Comments	Yes	No	DK		

**Glossary Term(s):** Motor Skills (Gross)



manipulate objects and practice hand-eye coordination.
Infants, Toddlers, Twos
Teachers provide materials to encourage the development of hand muscle control. (Ex. rattles, stacking rings, nesting cups, simple puzzles, shape sorters, stringing beads, play dough) [O]
Preschool
Teachers provide materials and activities for practicing control of hand muscles. (Ex. pegboards, construction toys, scissors, play dough, chalk, doll clothing, puppets) [O]
School Age
Teachers provide materials and activities for refining control of hand muscles. (Ex. making jewelry, building models, hole punchers, clay, pens, building bricks, board games) [O]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
Validator Comments
Director Response

Fine motor skills are promoted through daily opportunities to use small muscles to

**Glossary Term(s):** Hand-Eye Coordination, Motor Skills (Fine)



#### E21. Healthy habits are encouraged to promote wellness and development.

All Ages						
<ul> <li>Good health practices are integrated into routines. (Ex. discussion, activities, and practice: healthy eating, dental health, importance of sleep and rest, good hygiene, safety, first aid, physical activity/fitness; books and posters depicting healthy food choices, proper hand washing, covering mouth when sneezing and coughing) [O]</li> <li>Teachers provide activities to promote mindfulness, intentional thinking, and self-regulation (Ex. breathing exercises, meditation, yoga, relaxation activities, stretching) [ES, O]</li> </ul>						
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT						
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE						
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:						
Validator Comments						
Director Response						

**Glossary Term(s):** Health Practices, Mindfulness, Model, Self-Regulation



### **E22.** Technology use supports learning.

Infants, Toddlers, Twos
Computers, technology devices, and TV/video are not used. [O, FS]
Preschool
Check all technology used in this classroom:
☐ Computers ☐ Technology Devices ☐ TV/Video ☐ No technology used in this classroom
Other activities are available for children who do not wish to participate. [ES, O]
Programs/applications are previewed by Onsite Supervisors or Lead Teachers and determined appropriate for age of children. [ES, O]
Programs/applications serve an educational purpose. [0,1]
Computer/technology device usage is monitored. (Ex. amount of time, internet access) [0, 1]
Computers, technology devices and/or TV/video are not used to fill time especially at arrival or departure. [0, I]
A system is in place to ensure each interested child has equal access to computers and/or technology devices. [0, 1]
If TV/video are used, write in frequency: x per and length of time per use
School Age
Check all technology used in this classroom:
☐ Computers ☐ Technology Devices ☐ TV/Video ☐ No technology used in this classroom
Other activities are available for children who do not wish to participate. [ES, O]
Programs/applications are previewed by Onsite Supervisors or Lead Teachers and determined appropriate for age of children. [ES, O]
Computer/technology device usage is monitored. (Ex. amount of time, internet access). [0, 1]
A system is in place to ensure each interested child has equal access to technology. [O, I]
If TV/video are used, write in frequency: x per and length of time per use
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT

**CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE** 



#### **STANDARD E22 CONTINUED**

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes		
Validator Comments				1			
Director Response							

**Glossary Term:** Educational Purpose (Technology)



# E23. The outdoor learning environment space is designed to accommodate the developmental needs of the children using it.

All Ages							
The outdoor learning environment has							
The outdoor learning environment has  Large motor equipment (Ex. riding toys, climbing equipment, slides, balls) [O]  A variety of play activities offered daily (Ex. art, dramatic play, table toys) [ES, O]  Contact with nature (Ex. trees, flowers, gardens) [O]  A variety of surfaces (Ex. grass, sand, hard surface for riding toys) [O]  Drinking water [O]  Shaded areas [O]  A layout that allows supervision by sight and sound [O]  Access to a nearby bathroom [ES]							
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT							
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:							
Validator Comments							
Director Response							



### F. Interactions between Teachers and Children

	Children's development of trust and emotional security is promoted with consistent, responsive, and nurturing teachers.									
All Ages										
	Teachers greet each child and parent by name upon arrival. [FS, O]									
	Teachers acknowledge and comfort distressed children during arrival and departure. [FS, O]									
Teachers demonstrate warmth by smiling, speaking in a caring voice, and offer actions. [O]								ering calming		
	Teachers promptly attend to children's physical needs. (Ex. provide water when thirsty; change diapers when wet or soiled; recognize and take appropriate action when children show signs of illness; allow child to rest when tired) [O]									
lı	nfants, Toda	llers, Twos								
			-	, -	d other signs of d bally assure child					
	<b>Teachers</b>	allow child	dren to ke	ep a securit	y object with the	m when ne	eded. [0, 1]			
P	reschool									
	<b>Teachers</b>	comfort cl	hildren wh	o are upset	, hurt, or angry. [	O, ES]				
L	Teachers follow through on commitments made to children. (Ex. ensure child has a turn at the easel when told they would be next; make available activity as promised; read the book agreed on earlier) [O]									
S	chool Age									
	<b>Teachers</b>	assist child	dren who a	are upset, h	urt, or angry. [O, E	S]				
			_		ts made to childro read book to chil			a turn at the		
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT									
			OBS	ERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE					
EMPLO	YEE SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK		
Validato	or Comments									
Directo	r Response									

Glossary Term(s): Commitments, Distress, Emotional Security, Responsive, Security Object, Trust



### F2. A positive sense of self is promoted through respectful teacher-child interactions.

All Ages							
Teachers have frequent positive interactions with children throughout the day. (Ex. verbal, non-verbal) [O]							
☐ Teachers use children's names in encouraging and respectful ways. (Ex. incorporated into songs and fingerplays; used in conversations; primarily refer to children by name used instead of in terms of endearment such as honey, sweetie; used at times of acknowledgement and not just times of discipline) [○]							
Teachers verbally acknowledge the child's emotions and feelings. (Ex. "Jan, are you getting frustrated? Let me move the rattle a little closer so you can reach it.", "Jose, you look sad. Do you miss your Mom?", "Li, would you like to talk about how you are feeling?") [O]							
Teachers acknowledge children's efforts and accomplishments. (Ex. attempts at self-help skills, completing a challenging puzzle) [O]							
Teachers demonstrate respect for all children and do not laugh at, embarrass, criticize, threaten, tease, reject, or show preferential treatment to a child. [O, ES, FS]							
Infants, Toddlers, Twos							
Teachers interact with individual children at child's level. (Ex. sitting on the floor, sitting at eye level when feeding, child sitting on teacher's lap) [O]							
Preschool							
Teachers lower to the child's eye level when conversing with individual children. [O]							
Teachers are receptive to children's ideas and suggestions. [O]							
School Age							
Teachers converse with individual children at the child's eye level. [O]							
Teachers respond positively to children's ideas and suggestions. [O]							
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:							
Validator Comments							
Director Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Respect



# F3. Cooperative and positive social behaviors are promoted through opportunities for learning social skills, empathy, and reciprocity.

All Ages								
kindly; demonstrate listening, turn taking,	Teachers model positive social behaviors with children and other adults. (Ex. teachers speak kindly; demonstrate listening, turn taking, sharing, waiting; teachers use please, thank you, and you're welcome; teachers model empathy; teachers do not sit on shelves, stand on chairs, or kick toys out of the way) [O]							
Teachers verbally acknowledge emerging cooperation) [O]	Teachers verbally acknowledge emerging pro-social skills. (Ex. caring, empathy, helping, cooperation) [0]							
	Teachers help children needing assistance when entering a play situation. (Ex. help a child's transition into the classroom; support a child entering group play; help a wandering child engage in activity) [O]							
ready to eat.", "Priya is sad because her Mo	Teachers help children understand the actions and feelings of others. (Ex. "Sam is crying. He's ready to eat.", "Priya is sad because her Mom is going to work.", "Suzie, how do you think Li is feeling?", "I feel frustrated because you are not listening to Maria.") [O]							
Teachers respond with sensitivity to individual consideration. (Ex. children with varying a	vidual children, treating them with equal abilities, activity levels, temperaments) [O, ES, FS]							
Infants, Toddlers, Twos								
Teachers encourage children to begin to play with others. (Ex. sit infants in proximity to one another, roll a ball to child, provide multiple telephones for children to talk with each other)								
Teachers promptly intervene when negative or hurtful peer interactions occur. (Ex. mobile infant crawls on top of non-mobile infant, child bites another child, child screams "mine" and grabs toy away from another child) [O, ES]								
○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT							
OBSERVER/VA	LIDATOR'S USE							
PLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK	FAMILY SURVEY: Yes No DK							
idator Comments								
ector Response								

**Glossary Term(s):** Model, Pro-Social Skills



F3.	Cooperative and positive social behaviors are promoted through opportunities for
Part 2 of 2	learning social skills, empathy, and reciprocity.

All Ages							
kindly; demonstrate listening, turn taking, sh	Teachers model positive social behaviors with children and other adults. (Ex. teachers speak kindly; demonstrate listening, turn taking, sharing, waiting; teachers use please, thank you, and you're welcome; teachers model empathy; teachers do not sit on shelves, stand on chairs, or kick toys out of the way) [O]						
Teachers verbally acknowledge emerging p cooperation) [O]	Teachers verbally acknowledge emerging pro-social skills. (Ex. caring, empathy, helping, cooperation) [O]						
<del></del>	Teachers help children needing assistance when entering a play situation. (Ex. help a child's transition into the classroom; support a child entering group play; help a wandering child						
<del></del>	ons and feelings of others. (Ex. "Sam is crying. He's is going to work.", "Suzie, how do you think Li is ot listening to Maria.") [0]						
Teachers respond with sensitivity to individ consideration. (Ex. children with varying abil							
Preschool							
Teachers encourage cooperation rather tha	n competition. [O]						
Teachers assist children in learning to solve	social problems. [O]						
Teachers promptly intervene when negative or hurtful peer interactions occur. (Ex. when children are being teased, called names, excluded from play) [O, ES]							
School Age							
Teachers encourage cooperation. [O]							
Teachers actively involve children in solving	g their conflicts and problems. [O]						
Teachers promptly intervene when children and other antisocial behavior. [O, ES]	<ul> <li>Teachers promptly intervene when children engage in hurtful peer interactions, bullying,</li> </ul>						
○ MEETS STANDARD	O NEEDS IMPROVEMENT						
OBSERVER/VALII	DATOR'S USE						
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK	FAMILY SURVEY: Yes No DK						
Validator Comments	103 110 2.1						
Director Response							

Glossary Term(s): Competition, Model, Pro-Social Skills



### F4. Positive guidance techniques are used to promote the development of self-regulation and self-control.

All Ages								
	Teachers give positive feedback acknowledging desired behavior. (Ex. respond to compliance with daily routines and limits, encourage efforts in self-regulation) [O]							
Teachers	Teachers give choices acceptable to both child and teacher. [O]							
	Teachers state what a child can do instead of what cannot be done. (Ex. "Walk in the classroom" instead of "Don't run") [O, FS]							
	Teachers inform child of how the inappropriate behavior affects self, others, and/or materials. [O]							
Children	are redirect	ed to a mor	e approp	riate activity and/o	or behavio	or. [0]		
Expectat children.		ial behavior	s are suit	able for the age an	d develo	omental leve	els of the	
Teachers ways. [O]	guide child	ren to expre	ess both r	negative and positi	ive emoti	ons in accep	table	
Teachers	do not use	physical pu	nishment	or punitive time o	<b>ut.</b> [ES, O]			
Infants, Todo	llars Twos							
		•		ving routines and s walking in the hall.	-	•		
Teachers	give clear, p	ositive, one	e or two-s	tep directions. [0]				
Toddlers	and twos te	achers follo	w throug	h with directions o	given to a	child. [O]		
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT							
		OBSER	VER/VAI	LIDATOR'S USE				
MPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes		DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes	No		
alidator Comments								
irector Response								

**Glossary Term(s):** Logical Consequences, Positive Guidance Procedures, Punitive Timeout, Self-Control, Self-Regulation



### F4. Positive guidance techniques are used to promote the development of self-regulation Part 2 of 3 and self-control.

All Ages  Teachers give positive feedback acknowledging desired behavior. (Ex. respond to compliance with daily routines and limits, encourage efforts in self-regulation) [O]							
Teachers give choices acceptable to both c	hild and teacher. [O]						
Teachers state what a child can do instead classroom" instead of "Don't run") [O, FS]	of what cannot be done. (Ex. "Walk in the						
Teachers inform child of how the inapprop materials. [O]	riate behavior affects self, others, and/or						
Children are redirected to a more appropri	ate activity and/or behavior. [0]						
Expectations for social behaviors are suital children. [O]	ole for the age and developmental levels of the						
Teachers guide children to express both ne ways. [O]	gative and positive emotions in acceptable						
Teachers do not use physical punishment of	or punitive time out. [ES, O]						
Preschool Teachers give clear, positive directions. [O]							
	e hehavior (Ev. child is hored: child did not						
Teachers look for the cause of inappropriate behavior. (Ex. child is bored; child did not receive a turn; too few popular toys; inadequate space for activity; child is thirsty, hungry, tired, overstimulated) [O]							
Teachers give children an opportunity to o behavior. [O]	Teachers give children an opportunity to offer solutions to solve the inappropriate behavior. [O]						
Teachers move to the children and do not of environment. [O]	Teachers move to the children and do not call across the classroom or outdoor learning environment. [O]						
Teachers follow through with directions given	ven to a child. [0]						
Teachers use logical consequences to promote desired behavior. (Ex. sticker charts and other reward and punishment systems are avoided) [O]							
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT							
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK	FAMILY SURVEY: Yes No DK						
/alidator Comments							
Director Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Logical Consequences, Positive Guidance Procedures, Punitive Timeout, Self-Control, Self-Regulation



### F4. Positive guidance techniques are used to promote the development of self-regulation and self-control.

AII	Ages							
	Teachers give positive feedback acknowledging desired behavior. (Ex. respond to compliance with daily routines and limits, encourage efforts in self-regulation) [O]							
	Teachers	give choice	s acceptal	ble to both	child and teache	e <b>r.</b> [0]		
		state what a " instead of			d of what cannot	be done. (E	x. "Walk in t	he .
	Teachers inform child of how the inappropriate behavior affects self, others, and/or materials. [O]							
	Children are redirected to a more appropriate activity and/or behavior. [O]							
	Expectations for social behaviors are suitable for the age and developmental levels of the children. [O]							
	Teachers guide children to express both negative and positive emotions in acceptable ways. [O]							
	Teachers	do not use	physical p	unishment	t or punitive time	<b>out.</b> [ES, O]		
Sch	nool Age							
	_	give clear, p	ositive di	rections. [0	]			
	•	•			ate behavior. [0]			
					discuss the cause	and offer s	solutions to	solve the
		riate behav		J. Commey 2.	discuss and amm	C 4110. C	1014110111	30116
	Teachers	move to the	children	and do no	t call across the c	lassroom or	outdoor le	arning
	environm	ent. [0]						
	Teachers	follow thro	ugh with o	directions o	given to child. [0]			
		use logical o ad punishme	-	-	omote desired be led) [0]	havior. (Ex. :	sticker chart	ts and other
		О МЕЕТ	S STANDA	ARD	O NEEDS IM	PROVEME	TV	
			OBSE	RVER/VAI	LIDATOR'S USE			
EMDI OVE	E SURVEY:				FAMILY SURVEY:			
EWIPLOTE	E SURVEI:	Yes	No	DK	PAMILI SURVEI.	Yes	No	DK
Validator (	Comments							
Director Response								

**Glossary Term(s):** Logical Consequences, Positive Guidance Procedures, Punitive Timeout, Self-Control, Self-Regulation



F5. Age appropriate self-help skills are encouraged to promote self-care, responsibility, adaptive skills, and autonomy. Infants, Toddlers, Twos Teachers give children simple tasks to promote emerging skills. (Ex. putting toys in a basket, assisting with putting on clothes) [O, ES] Teachers encourage children to participate in self-care routines. (Ex. assist in diaper changing by holding the diaper, wiping their own face, throwing their tissue in the trash, holding cold compress on a wound) [O, ES] Teachers notify children before a self-care routine occurs, describe what care is needed, and describe actions when performing the care. (Ex. notify child that they will be next to get a diaper change; "Two minutes before we will need to wash our hands for snack."; letting the child know you are putting them in the crib for nap time; "Next I will use a wipe to clean your buttocks.") [O, ES] Preschool Teachers facilitate the development of self-help skills in children. (Ex. pick up toys when finished, get paper from the shelf, store belongings in cubbies) [O, ES] Children assist in the care and upkeep of the classroom. [0] Teachers support child participation in self-care routines as the child is able. (Ex. nose wiping, putting on jacket, washing hands at appropriate times, wiping own face) [0, ES] Teachers notify children when self-care is required and describe the reasons and steps to the routine. [O, ES] School Age Children assist in the care and upkeep of the classroom. [O] Teachers facilitate the child's responsibility for both self-care and personal belongings. [O, ES] NEEDS IMPROVEMENT OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE **EMPLOYEE SURVEY:** DK Yes No Validator Comments

**Glossary Term(s):** Adaptive Skills, Autonomy, Self-Care, Self-Help Skills

**Director Response** 



### F6. Children's overall emotional well-being is supported by the classroom environment.

Children are generally happy, relaxed, and engaged. [O, FS]							
Classroom sounds are pleasant. (Ex. music volume at level appropriate for the activity; teacher voices do not predominate; conversational tones rather than stressful noise or forced quiet) [O]							
Peer interactions are generally positive. [0]							
Adult to adult interactions are positive and supportive. [O, ES]							
	○ WEE.	rs stand <i>i</i>	ARD	O NEEDS IMP	PROVEME	NT	
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:				FAMILY SURVEY:			
	Yes	No	DK		Yes	No	DK
Validator Comments							
Director Response							



### F7. Snack and mealtimes are pleasant and social learning experiences for children.

All Ages							
Food is not used as a method of discipline or reward. [ES, O]							
Teachers have meaningful conversations with children. (Ex. talk about events of the day, encourage children to talk with one another, talk about nutrition) [O]							
Teachers sit with the children when not helping with the meal service routine or providing necessary assistance to children. (Ex. teachers assists a child who needs to use the bathroom, teachers get additional food, a teacher transitions with children who are finished) [0,1]							
Infants, Toddlers, Twos							
☐ Infants are held during bottle feeding and spoken to in supportive tones. [○]							
Older infants, toddlers, and twos are encouraged to feed themselves as their abilities allow. (Ex. use child-size utensils, pick up finger food, choose which food to eat next) [O]							
Toddlers and twos assist in cleaning up as their abilities allow. (Ex. throw away napkin, help wipe up spills) [0, 1]							
Preschool							
Children are encouraged to serve themselves as their abilities allow. (Ex. set tables, put out napkins, scoop food using sturdy serving spoons, pour milk from child-size pitchers) [0, 1]							
Children assist in cleaning up as their abilities allow. (Ex. clear table, throw away trash, wipe up spills) [O]							
School Age							
Children serve themselves. [O, I]							
Children assist in cleaning up. [O]							
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT							
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
PLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK							
idator Comments							
ector Response							



### G. Classroom Health and Safety

G1.	Health practices are implemented throughout the day.							
	All Ages							
	☐ Teachers monitor the temperature/weather and ensure that children are dressed appropriately for indoor and outdoor activities. [O]							
	Adjustments are made to protect children from potentially harmful environmental conditions. (Ex. heat and cold extremes, strong wind, ozone hazards, overexposure to the sun, exposure to chemical fumes, spray-over of sanitizer/disinfectant) [ES, O]							
	Extra clothing is available for children's use. [0, 1]							
	☐ Mouthed toys are removed from play area to be sanitized before reuse. [○]							
	Candles are not used. [0]							
	Basic first-aid supplies are available in the classroom and outdoor learning environment.  (Ex. nitrile, latex, or vinyl gloves, adhesive bandages, soap, water) [0,1]							
	Infants, Toddlers, Twos							
	Families of infants and toddlers receive daily, written information regarding feeding, diapering, and sleeping. [D]							
	Infant classrooms are shoe-free to reduce the exposure of dirt and containments, including lead. [O]							
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT							
	OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
ЕМР	LOYEE SURVEY:							
Valid	dator Comments							
_								
_								
Dire	ctor Response							
—								
_								
I —								

Glossary Term(s): First Aid Supplies (Classroom/Outdoor Learning Environment), Sanitize, Shoe-Free



#### G2. Universal precautions are practiced to minimize the spread of infectious disease.

All Ages	
rinsing or disp be follo	es are cleaned with a multistep process that includes cleaning with a detergent, with water, and sanitizing/disinfecting with appropriate solution using a single-use cosable towel with each step. (Note: Manufacturer's product instructions should owed. If surface was in contact with a possible blood containing fluid it must be ceted.) [O]
_	use disposable vinyl, nitrile, or latex gloves are worn when there is contact with blood other potentially infectious bodily fluids. [ES, O]
fluids	able materials contaminated with blood and/or other potentially infectious bodily are placed in a plastic bag, closed securely, and kept in a plastic-lined, hands-free d container until disposal. [ES, O]
infecti	isposable materials and/or clothing contaminated with blood and/or other potentially ous bodily fluids are placed in a plastic bag, closed securely, and stored out of reach of an until cleaned. [ES, O]
Diaper Ch	anging
	-use disposable vinyl, nitrile, or latex gloves are worn for each change of a soiled /pull-up. [0]
_	-use disposable vinyl, nitrile, or latex gloves are disposed of after each child's soiled /pull-up change. [0]
	diapers/pull-ups are placed in a plastic bag or inverted glove and kept in a plastic- nands-free covered container until disposal. [O]
_	soiled clothing is placed in a plastic bag, closed securely, and returned to family for ng. [ES, O]
proces	ach use, diaper changing surfaces are cleaned of organic matter with a multistep s: cleaned with a detergent, rinsed with water, and disinfected with a disinfecting on using a single-use or disposable towel with each step. [O]
☐ Teache	ers and children wash hands with soap and water following each diaper change. [O]
OR  No dia	per changing [0]
	○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT

**CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE** 



#### **STANDARD G2 CONTINUED**

OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	/es	No	DK	
Validator Comments				
Director Response				

**Glossary:** Cleaning, Disinfect, Multi-Step Cleaning Process, Organic Matter, Sanitize, Soiled, Universal Precautions



### G3. Hand washing facilities are provided for employee and child use.

All Ages						
Sink is at child's height or equipped with a stable step platform for the sink to be accessible to children. If a platform is used, it is child-safe with a slip-proof surface. [O]						
Non-antibacterial liquid soap and paper towels are placed near sink. (Note: Antibacterial soap should not be used.) [0]						
Water temperature is comfortable to encourage thorough hand washing. [O]						
A sink is located near diapering and bathroom areas. [O]						
If sink must be used for multiple purposes, it is cleaned and disinfected before being used to prepare drinks or food. [ES, O]						
If bathroom is not located in the classroom, a hand washing sink is in the classroom. [O]						
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT						
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE						
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK						
Validator Comments						
Director Response						

**Glossary Term(s):** Accessible, Disinfect



### G4. Proper hand washing procedures are practiced by employees and children.

All Ages						
Teachers wash hands at appropriate times. [O]						
Children's hands are washed at appropriate times. [O]						
Liquid non-antibacterial soap and running water are used to wash hands. [O]						
Single-use paper towels are used to dry hands. [O]						
Teachers use paper towels to turn off manual faucets. [O]						
Teachers encourage children to use paper towels to turn off manual faucets. (Ex. teachers verbally remind children to use a paper towel, teachers model correct use) [O, ES]						
Visual cues for hand washing are placed near the sink. (Ex. hand washing procedure picture chart posted at child's eye level, handwashing rebus chart) [O]						
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT						
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE						
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK						
Validator Comments						
Director Response						

**Glossary Term(s):** Hand Washing (Appropriate Times)



### G5. Safety practices are followed throughout the day.

All Ages
Safety limits are enforced in all activities. [O]
Teachers position themselves so that children can be observed in all areas of the classroom and the outdoor learning environment. [O]
Teachers focus on the children and are not distracted by paperwork, electronic devices, or other employees. [O]
Primary and alternate evacuation routes are posted in each room used by children. [D]
Emergency procedures are posted in each room used by children. (Ex. fire evacuation procedures, bad weather, injury) [D]
Infants, Toddlers, and Twos
Children are supervised at all times by sight and sound and are never left unattended. [O, ES]
☐ Cribs meet federal safety standards mandated by the Consumer Product Safety Commission. [D, O]
Routine care areas are arranged for convenient access and safety. [O]
Safe sleep practices are followed with infants. [O]
Preschool
Preschool
Children are supervised by sight and sound and never left unattended. [O, ES]
School Age
Children are supervised by either sight or sound, and teachers are aware of what the children are doing at all times. [O]
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE
PLOYEE SURVEY:
idator Comments
ector Response



#### G6. The children's environment is safe and appropriately maintained.

Diluted sanitizing and disinfecting solutions are labeled. [O]				
Diluted sanitizing and disinfecting solutions are stored out of reach of children. [O]				
All chemicals, toxic materials, teachers' purses, and any products labeled "Keep out of reach of children" are inaccessible to children and stored in a locked cabinet. (Ex. toothpaste, white out, liquid hand sanitizer, make up, medications) [O]				
All areas are free of debris and environmental hazards. [O]				
Floor coverings are backed with non-slip materials or attached to the floor and edges do not present a tripping hazard. [O]				
☐ Electrical outlets are covered with child-resistant covers. [○]				
Electrical cords are not frayed and are placed out of children's reach. [O]				
Extension cords are not used. [O]				
Surge protectors are securely mounted, and unused outlets are covered. [O]				
Windows that open are securely screened. [O]				
Opened windows are monitored. [O, ES]				
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMPROVEMENT				
ORSERVER/VALIDATOR'S LISE				
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE				
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE  EMPLOYEE SURVEY:				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY: Yes No DK				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:  Yes No DK  Validator Comments				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:  Yes No DK  Validator Comments				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:  Yes No DK  Validator Comments				
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:  Yes No DK  Validator Comments				

**Glossary Term(s):** Debris, Environmental Hazard, Locked, Toxic Materials



ΔΙΙ Δαρς

#### G7. Furnishings, equipment, and materials are safe and appropriately maintained.

71171gC3						
Heavy furnishings and equipment are sturdy, secure, and cooper. [O]	annot easily be tipped or pulled					
Furnishings and equipment are clean and in good repair. [O]						
Furnishings, equipment, and toys pose no safety or health concerns. [O]						
Furniture is in good condition without foam or inside stuffing exposed. [O]						
Stuffed animals, matting, pillows, and foam items are intact. [O]						
Materials and supplies are clean and in good repair. [O]						
Materials and supplies are nontoxic. (Ex. art supplies ACMI's nontoxic seal "AP" ASTM 4236, teething toys) [O]						
Infants, Toddlers, Twos						
Toys and materials do not present a choking hazard. [O]						
Toys are screened for lead to prevent lead exposure. [D]						
Soft plastic and teething toys labeled "PVC-free" or "phthalate-free" are purchased and used. (Ex. beach balls, bath books, and "rubber ducky" teething toys) [D, O]						
Preschool						
Children are discouraged from putting toys made out of soft plastic in their mouths. (Ex. viny dolls, beach balls, and bath books, as they may contain lead and phthalates) [D, O]						
○ MEETS STANDARD ○ NEEDS IMP	ROVEMENT					
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE						
Validator Comments						
Director Response						

**Glossary Term(s):** Bisphenol A-Free (BPA-Free), Lead Exposure, Nontoxic, Phthalates, Screened for Lead, Vinyl (Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC)) Containing Products



All Ages

### G8. Security measures are implemented in the classroom.

<ul> <li>Employees follow procedures that ensure the safe arrival and departure of all children. [FS, O]</li> <li>Access to classroom areas is limited to those who have a purpose for being there. [ES, O]</li> <li>Teachers position themselves so that their interactions with children are unobstructed. [O]</li> <li>The classroom has sufficient lighting for the teachers to work and be seen during rest time. [O]</li> <li>MEETS STANDARD</li> <li>NEEDS IMPROVEMENT</li> </ul>							
OBSERVER/VALIDATOR'S USE							
EMPLOYEE SURVEY:	Yes	No	DK	FAMILY SURVEY:	Yes	No	
Validator Comments							
Director Response							

**Glossary Term(s):** Security Measures



## **Instructions for Completing Observation Record**

The *Observation Record* is intended to show the history of the observation process. Sections of the *Observation Record* are to be completed by the various employees conducting observations:

- The Director completes the "Classroom" section at the top of the page.
  - O For "Classroom Name", use the same name as recorded on the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log, the Program Profile, and the children's daily schedule for each classroom.
  - O For "Maximum Number of Children", report the largest number of children you would assign to the classroom.
  - O For "Current Number of Children", report the current number of children enrolled in the classroom at the time of your request for an onsite visit.
  - O For all other information in the "Classroom" section, provide information that is current at the time of your request for an onsite visit.
- The classroom teacher completes the "Lead Teacher Observation" section with the original and all subsequent date(s) of observation.
- The Director completes the "Director Observation" section with the original and all subsequent date(s) of observation.
- The Director signs and dates the verification statement after all observations are completed.
- The bottom section marked "For Validator's Use Only" is left blank for use by the Validator during the onsite validation visit.
- A copy of the completed Observation Record (see p. 140) for each classroom is to be submitted to the Accreditation Office with your Request for Validation Visit (in the Validation Visit section of your Manual).
  - O Retain the originals of the *Observation Record* and attach them to the front of the appropriate clean copy of the *Classroom Observation* (p. 91–138) for the Validator's use during the onsite validation visit.



of Teacher(s)

Validator Name

Lead Teacher Observed

Observation	Record		
Classroom			
Classroom Name		Age ☐ Infants Group ☐ Preschool	☐ Toddlers ☐ Twos☐ School Age
Age Range	Maximum Number of Children	Current Number of Children	Number of Teacher(s)
Lead Teacher			Staff-Child Ratio :
Additional Teacher(s)			
Lead Teacher Ob	servation		
Date of Observation	Number of Teacher(s)	Number of Children	Staff-Child Ratio :
Name of Teacher(s) Observed	·		·
Name of Lead Teacher			
Director Observa	ation		
Date of Observation	Time Begun	Time	Completed
Number of Teacher(s) During Observation	Number of Childre During Observation		-Child ) :
Lead Teacher Observed			
Additional Teachers Observ	ved		
Name and Title of Observer			
of the classroom obser meet Commission Stan	vations with the teacher(s). Idards. I have completed th	. The teacher(s) have made se clean copy of the <i>Classro</i>	te. I have reviewed the results the necessary adjustments to nom Observation for the valida-Accreditation Commission.
Director's Signature		Date	
		dator's Use Only servation of classroom)	
Classroom Name		Age Infants Group Preschool	☐ Toddlers ☐ Twos ☐ School Age
Date of Observation	Time(s) Begun	Time Com	e(s) ppleted
Number	Number	Age	

Other Teacher(s) Observed

of Children

Age

Range



### **Additional Observations**

### **Lead Teacher Observation**

Date of Observation	Number of Teacher(s)	Number of Children	Staff-Child Ratio :
Name of Teacher(s) Observed			
Name of Lead Teacher			

### **Lead Teacher Observation**

Date of Observation	Number of Teacher(s)	Number of Children	Staff-Child Ratio :
Name of Teacher(s) Observed			
Name of Lead Teacher			

### **Director Observation**

Date of Observation	Time Begun	Time Completed
Number of Teacher(s) During Observation	Number of Children During Observation	Staff-Child Ratio :
Lead Teacher Observed		
Additional Teachers Observed		
Name and Title of Observer		

### **Director Observation**

Date of Observation	Time Begun	Time Completed	
Number of Teacher(s) During Observation	Number of Children During Observation	Staff-Child Ratio :	
Lead Teacher Observed			
Additional Teachers Observed			
Name and Title of Observer			

# Surveys

## **Contents of this Section**

Instructions for Completing Employee Survey	143
Example	144
Recording Employee Survey Totals	144
Employee Survey	145
Instructions for Completing Family Survey	15
Example	152
Recording Family Survey Totals	152
Family Survey	153
Survey Verifications	156
Employee Survey Verification	156
Family Survey Verification	156



### **Instructions for Completing Employee Survey**

The accreditation process involves all adults associated with the program: administrators, employees, and families. Each employee is asked to examine and respond to their own experience with the Standards. All employees, both part- and full-time, who work directly with children and are counted in the staff-child ratio at some time during the day and all onsite supervisors, including the director, are to be given an opportunity to anonymously complete the *Employee Survey*.

Employees have an essential role in the implementation of the program's policies and procedures. It is important that they be aware of and understand the Standards and Indicators *before* they complete the survey, as their feedback will be used to verify applicable Standards.

#### Steps for conducting the Employee Survey:

- Make one copy of the *Employee Survey* for each employee as identified above.
- Provide employees access to a copy of the Administrator's Report and the Classroom Observation.
- Give each employee a survey to complete anonymously.
- Collect the surveys in a manner that allows for confidentiality.
- At least 75% of employees as defined by Commission Standards B1 and B2 (as identified above) must return a completed survey for the results to satisfy Accreditation requirements.

#### After all surveys are returned:

- Count responses and record the totals on a blank copy of the *Employee Survey* (see example and Instructions for Recording Survey Totals on next page).
- Complete the Employee Survey section of the *Survey Verification* (See <u>"Employee Survey Verification"</u> on page 156).
- Submit a copy of the *Employee Survey* with the totals and the *Survey Verification* with the *Request for Validation Visit*.
- Store the completed surveys in the Doc Box in a file folder labeled "Employee Surveys".

**NOTE:** The Validator will sample surveys for accurate reporting and, if a discrepancy is found in the final count, administration will be asked to immediately re-total responses to all questions on the survey and create a new record of survey totals. This is a lengthy process and can significantly impact the onsite validation visit. We strongly recommend that the director double-check the accuracy of the totals before submitting the program's *Request for Validation Visit* to the Accreditation Office. If additional surveys come in after the survey totals have been submitted, keep those surveys separate from the ones already counted and recorded.



#### **Example**

### **Recording Employee Survey Totals**

	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know	
A1	I am aware of the program's mission statement, philosophy, and goals, and how they guide program administration.	17	2	1	
A2	The program is objective in its hiring, enrolling, and termination practices, and does not discriminate when hiring and terminating employees, or when enrolling and disenrolling children.	20	0	0	
В6	My supervisor and I develop a written annual plan for my professional growth based on topics identified in my annual performance appraisal.	17	1	2	
B8	The administration regularly provides information, such as policy changes and upcoming activities, to ensure employee awareness of program happenings.	18	0	2	
D10	Medication is only given by designated employees that are trained in administration of medication and device usage. (Check N/A if program does not administer medication.)	0	0	2	N/A 18
D12	The program firmly adheres to written policies and procedures regarding the safe transport of children. (Check N/A if program does not transport children.)	0	0	4	N/A 16
E2	Written observations of the children's development are utilized to plan activities that will further learning and development.	14	6	0	

#### **Instructions for Recording Survey Totals**

- Print a blank copy of the *Employee Survey*.
  - O If the Spanish version was used by employees during the Self-Study process, the totals must be recorded on the **English** version.
- For each question on all completed surveys:
  - O Total the "Yes" responses and record that number in the "Yes" column for that question.
  - O Total the "No" responses and record that number in the "No" column for that question.
  - O Total the "Don't Know" responses and record that number in the "Don't Know" column for that question.
  - O Total the "N/A" (not applicable) responses and record that number in the "N/A" column for that question, if box provided.
  - O If a question was left blank or more than one response was given to a question, count it as a "Don't Know".



## **Employee Survey**

Dear Employee,

Our program is in the Self-Study process for the National Accreditation Commission. Your participation is vital to this quality improvement process. Please take time to fill out this survey according to your experience in the program. **This is a confidential survey and does not need to be signed.** 

Steps for Completion (check	each box when done):
Review Standards in the	Administrator's Report and Classroom Observation.
Complete the survey.	
Return completed surve	y to the location designated by the administrator.
Record date submitted	

	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know	
A1	I am aware of the program's mission statement, philosophy, and goals, and how they guide program administration.				
A2	The program is objective in its hiring, enrolling, and termination practices, and does not discriminate when hiring and terminating employees, or when enrolling and disenrolling children.				
A4	Upon hire, new employees complete a comprehensive orientation process.				
A5	I have been given written personnel policies that state the expectations, rights, and responsibilities of my employment. I have read, had an opportunity to ask questions about, and understand the personnel policies, and am willing to abide by the policies.				
A6	I have been given written operating procedures with detailed instructions to carry out specific tasks related to my work. I have read, had an opportunity to ask questions about, and understand the operating procedures, and am willing to abide by the procedures.				
A7	The program provides benefits that meet my needs. (Check N/A if your position is not eligible for benefits. For example, part-time or temporary employees.)				N/A
A8	If volunteers work with children, they are always under direct supervision and are not counted in the staff-child ratio. (Check N/A if the program does not use volunteers to work with children.)				N/A
A11	Staff-child ratios are consistently maintained, minimally, as follows:  B-1 1:4 1-2 1:5 2-3 1:6 3-4 1:9 4-5 1:12 5 1:12 Grades K-2 1:15 Grades 3-6 1:18				



	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know
A12	Group sizes are consistently maintained, minimally, as follows:  B-1 8 1-2 10 2-3 12 3-4 18 4-5 22 5 24 Grades K-2 26 Grades 3-6 30			
A13	Children remain with their primary classroom during the majority of the day, and are not shifted from one classroom to another throughout the day to maintain staff-child ratios.			
A14	I have received a copy of the program's discipline policy and positive guidance procedures and understand corporal punishment and other harsh methods of punishment are strictly forbidden.			
В3	If individuals under the age of 18 are hired to work with children, they are always under direct supervision of a credentialed employee and are not left alone with children. (Check N/A if program does not hire individuals under the age of 18 to work with children.)			
B5	My annual appraisal of job performance is based on expectations that I was informed of in advance, includes classroom observations conducted by my supervisor, and is discussed with me in private.			
B6	My supervisor and I develop a written annual plan for my professional growth based on topics identified in my annual performance appraisal.			
B7	The Director and/or other Onsite Supervisors are consistently available as needed, providing support with classroom situations, individual child needs, and interactions with families.			
B8	The administration regularly provides information, such as policy changes and upcoming activities, to ensure employee awareness of program happenings.			
B9	The program has systems in place to encourage employees to communicate important information with each other to ensure awareness of current circumstances.			
B10	Employees are encouraged to recognize each other's skills and accomplishments and problem solve as a team.			
B10	Employees have opportunities to meet outside the classroom and to suggest agenda topics for team building, training, program planning, and/or goal setting.			
B11	Employees have the opportunity to evaluate the program, make recommendations, and receive feedback on how their ideas have influenced program decisions.			
C1	Classroom teachers have an opportunity to visit with families during the child's orientation to the program.			
C3	The program communicates important information to families on a regular basis.			
C4	Employees maintain ongoing written and/or verbal communication with families about their child's experiences and activities.			



	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know
C5	Employees work cooperatively with families and outside agencies when necessary to understand the needs of the child, to promote the child's ongoing development, and to assist in the transition to kindergarten/elementary school.			
C6	Formal conferences are an opportunity to discuss the child's progress and overall development determined from classroom observation, as well as to encourage families to share developmental information and the unique needs of their child. The Director and/or Onsite Supervisor participate in the conference, if needed.			
C7	The program provides information to help parents/legal guardians better understand their children's development and learning in various ways, such as meetings, workshops, articles, etc.			
C8	The program connects and collaborates with outside agencies to provide resources that support the needs of children and families.			
C9	Employees provide opportunities for families to be involved in their child's classroom experiences, including ways that do not always require them to take time away from their jobs.			
C10	Family suggestions and ideas are considered when reviewing program operations and goals and are integrated when appropriate.			
D3	For the safety of the children and employees, access to the classrooms and outdoor learning environments is limited to those having a purpose for being there.			
D5	Parents/legal guardians are notified when their child has had an incident, contracted an illness, or been exposed to a communicable disease/parasite at the program that caused and/or had potential to cause injury or harm. (Ex. child is left unsupervised, pre-k classroom has one case of head lice, child who was hit in the shoulder by a block, but no mark was left)			
D7	Program policy states all employees have current certification in pediatric/adult first aid and CPR.			
D9	I have completed comprehensive training on Shaken Baby Syndrome and child abuse and neglect and understand my responsibility for reporting.			
D10	Medication is only given by designated employees that are trained in administration of medication and device usage. (Check N/A if program does not administer medication.)			
D12	The program firmly adheres to written policies and procedures regarding the safe transport of children. (Check N/A if program does not transport children.)			
D13	Steps are taken to monitor air quality, and all areas used by children are ventilated and maintained at a comfortable temperature.			
D16	An effective cleaning schedule of facility, bathrooms, bedding, dress-up clothes, toys, and trash removal is maintained.			
D17	All sanitizers/disinfectants are prepared according to manufacturers' instructions and used only for their intended purpose.			
D18	Daily safety inspections are made before the children enter the outdoor learning environment to ensure they are free of debris and potential environmental hazards.			



				Don't
	Standard	Yes	No	Know
D19	All undiluted chemicals, cleaning supplies, and toxic materials are safely stored and disposed of according to manufacturers' instructions.			
D20	All garbage bins containing organic matter remain covered.			
D21	Employees have easy access to children's contact information so that it can be taken with them in an emergency.			
D24	The nutritional needs of children (USDA's CACFP guidelines) are met for the hours they are at the program even when families provide snacks and/or meals for their own child.			
E1	Teachers receive adequate planning time and are provided resources to prepare and implement lesson plans.			
E1	Teachers have the flexibility to adapt the written lesson plans to meet the changing needs and interests of the children.			
E2	Written observations of the children's development are utilized to plan activities that will further learning and development.			
E3	Written assessments are completed on each child incorporating information obtained from multiple sources and are utilized for lesson planning.			
E4	Teachers and administrators work with parents/legal guardians and outside specialists when needed to make reasonable modifications for individual children with temporary or special needs and/or persistent challenging behaviors.			
E5	Teachers use the unexpected occurrence, discovery, or interest of the children as an opportunity to extend their learning.			
E6	Teachers follow the daily classroom schedule to provide a predictable routine.  Teachers are flexible to accommodate the children's needs and inform them in advance of changes to the schedule or routine.			
E8	Teachers set up the classroom before children arrive.			
E9	Teachers have sufficient materials for rotation to meet the lesson plan goals, interests, and developing abilities of the children.			
E11	I participate in reciprocal communication with children.			
E12	Teachers provide books of interest to children and read them in a manner that allows children to participate.			
E16	Teachers encourage children to engage in activities without imposing gender bias and take opportunities to support gender neutrality.			



	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know	
E16	Teachers have the opportunity to invite community members to participate in the classroom curriculum.	163	140	Kilow	
E17	Music has a purpose and is not used by employees as ongoing background noise or as entertainment for the adults.				
E19	Infants have opportunities throughout the day for floor time and are not kept in a confined space or position for long periods of time. (Check N/A if there are no infants at the program.)				N/A
E21	Activities to promote mindfulness, intentional thinking, and self-regulation are provided to children.				
E22	If TV/video, computers, and/or other technology devices are used with children age 3 and older, the content is previewed by teachers, usage is monitored, and other activities are always available for children who do not wish to participate. (Check N/A if TV/video, computers, and/or technology devices are not used in your classroom.)				N/A
E23	A variety of play activities are offered daily in the outdoor learning environment.				
E23	Children have supervised access to a nearby bathroom when they are outside.				
F1	Teachers respond promptly to children's signs of distress (crying, upset, hurt, or angry).				
F2	All employees are respectful of all children. I have not seen employees laugh at, embarrass, criticize, threaten, tease, or show preferential treatment to a child.				
F3	Employees treat all children with equal consideration and do not let personal preferences or biases affect their interactions with individual children.				
F3	Teachers promptly intervene when negative or hurtful peer interactions occur.				
F4	All employees use positive guidance techniques. I have not seen anyone use physical punishment or punitive time out.				
F5	Teachers facilitate the development of self-help skills appropriate to the ages and ability levels of the children.				
F6	My interactions with other adults in the classroom are generally positive and supportive.				
F7	Teachers do not use food as a method of discipline or reward.				
G1	Teachers take steps to protect children from potentially harmful environmental conditions such as extreme heat, cold, sun exposure, ozone warnings, spray-over from sanitizer/disinfectant, and/or exposure to chemical fumes.				



	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know	
G2	Employees practice universal precautions for handling exposure to blood and bodily fluids.				
G3	If the sink is used for multiple purposes, it is cleaned and disinfected before being used to prepare drinks or food. (Check N/A if you have a food prep sink or do not prepare food or drinks in your classroom.)				N/A
G4	Employees model proper hand washing procedures for the children.				
G5	Infants, toddlers, twos, and preschoolers are supervised at all times by sight and sound.				
G5	An instance of a child left unsupervised is immediately reported to administration.				
G6	If windows in the classroom are opened, they are monitored to ensure the children's safety. (Check N/A if windows cannot or are not opened.)				N/A
G8	During operating hours, employees ensure access to classrooms and outdoor learning environments is limited to those with a purpose for being there.				



## **Instructions for Completing Family Survey**

The accreditation process involves all administrators, employees, and families associated with the program. Each family is asked to examine and respond to their own experience with Standards. All parents/legal guardians with children enrolled in the program are to be given the opportunity to anonymously complete the *Family Survey*.

It is recommended that parents/legal guardians be aware of and understand the Standards *before* they complete the survey, as their feedback will be used to verify applicable Standards. You may consider using the orientation, the parent handbook, newsletters, websites, bulletin boards, and workshops/meetings to inform parents/legal guardians of program policies and procedures required by Commission Standards.

#### Steps for conducting the Family Survey:

- Conduct the Family Survey during periods of typical enrollment and not when enrollment is low.
- Make one copy of the Family Survey for each child. If a child has multiple residences, the parent/ legal guardian of each household should be given an opportunity to complete the survey.
- Give the parents/legal guardians an opportunity to anonymously complete the survey.
- Collect the surveys in a way that allows for confidentiality.
- At least 60% of distributed surveys must be completed and returned for the results to satisfy Accreditation requirements.

#### After all surveys are returned:

- Count the responses and record the totals on a blank copy of the Family Survey (see example and Instructions for Recording Survey Totals on next page).
- Complete the Family Survey section of the Survey Verification (See <u>"Family Survey Verification" on page 156</u>).
- Submit a copy of the Family Survey with the totals and Survey Verifications with the Request for Validation Visit.
- Store the completed surveys in the Doc Box in a file folder labeled "Family Surveys".

**NOTE:** The Validator will sample surveys for accurate reporting and, if a discrepancy is found in the final count, administration will be asked to immediately re-total responses to all questions on the survey and create a new record of survey totals. This is a lengthy process and can significantly impact the onsite validation visit. We strongly recommend that the director double-check the accuracy of the totals before submitting the program's *Request for Validation Visit* to the Accreditation Office. If additional surveys come in after the survey totals have been submitted, keep those surveys separate from the ones already counted and recorded.



### **Example**

### **Recording Family Survey Totals**

	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know	
A13	My child has been in the same classroom with consistent teacher(s) and has not been moved to a new classroom more than one time each year.	64	2	4	
C1	My child and I were provided an orientation to the program that included a visit in the classroom for a period of time that allowed both of us to be comfortable in the new surroundings.	70	0	0	
C4	Employees communicate with me on an ongoing basis about my child's experiences and activities.	70	0	0	
C7	The program provides information to help me better understand my child's development and learning in various ways, such as meetings, workshops, articles, etc.	66	1	3	
D12	I receive advance notification of each field trip activity that requires my child to be transported, including walking trips off premises. (Check N/A if the program does not remove the children from the premises except in an emergency.)	35	0	2	N/A 33
D16	The program is kept clean and orderly and is free of strong chemical odors.	70	0	0	
D20	If pesticides are going to be applied at the program, I am notified in advance of the application.	70	0	0	
D21	I have been given a copy of the program's plan for moving children to another location in emergency situations.	50	17	3	
D24	I have been given information on providing my child with nutritionally balanced meals and/or snacks to eat at the program. (Check N/A if the program provides all meals/snacks for your child while at the program.)	70	0	0	N/A
F2	Teachers treat children with respect, and I have not seen employees laugh at, embarrass, criticize, threaten, tease, or reject any child.	52	18	0	

#### **Instructions for Recording Survey Totals**

- Print a blank copy of the Family Survey.
  - O If the Spanish version was used by families during the Self-Study process, the totals must be recorded on the **English** version.
- For each question on all completed surveys:
  - O Total the "Yes" responses and record that number in the "Yes" column for that question.
  - O Total the "No" responses and record that number in the "No" column for that question.
  - O Total the "Don't Know" responses and record that number in the "Don't Know" column for that question.
  - O Total the "N/A" (not applicable) responses and record that number in the "N/A" column for that question, if box provided.
  - O If a question was left blank or more than one response was given to a question, count it as a "Don't Know".



## **Family Survey**

Dear Parent(s):

eps for Completion (check	each box when done):
Fill out the survey.	
Return completed surve	y to the location designated by the administrator.
Record date submitted	

#### This survey is to be completed by the custodial adult(s) legally responsible for the child.

				Don't
	Standard	Yes	No	Know
A13	My child has been in the same classroom with consistent teacher(s) and has not been moved to a new classroom more than one time each year.			
A14	I have received a copy of the program's discipline policy and guidance procedures and understand corporal punishment and other harsh methods of punishment are strictly forbidden.			
C1	My child and I were provided an orientation to the program that included a visit in the classroom for a period of time that allowed both of us to be comfortable in the new surroundings.			
C2	I have been given a copy of the written policies and procedures of the program and have agreed to abide by them.			
C3	The administration provides me with important information about the program on a regular basis.			
C4	Employees communicate with me on an ongoing basis about my child's experiences and activities.			
C5	My child's teacher(s) work with me (and/or an outside agency) to resolve any concerns, including transition from one classroom/teacher to another and preparation for kindergarten/elementary. (Check N/A if your child has not had any concerns or transitions.)			
C6	During formal conferences, my child's teacher provides me with information about my child's development and progress and asks for and considers my ideas. (Check N/A if you have not had a formal conference.)			



	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know	
C7	The program provides information to help me better understand my child's development and learning in various ways, such as meetings, workshops, articles, etc.				
C8	The program provides resources on the importance of health and developmental screenings, as well as available community resources.				
C9	I am permitted access to my child's classroom during all hours of operation and am given the opportunity to use my skills and talents to contribute to my child's early learning experience.				
C10	I am given opportunities to share feedback about the program through ongoing suggestions and annual written evaluations.				
D3	My child is released only to persons I have authorized in writing.				
D4	I have been given the program's written policy regarding the care and exclusion of sick children.				
D5	I am notified when my child has had an incident at the program which caused injury, potential harm, and/or has been exposed to communicable illnesses or parasites such as lice.				
D10	I have received the program's written policy and procedures regarding medication administration.				
D12	I receive advance notification of each field trip activity that requires my child to be transported, including walking trips off premises. (Check N/A if the program does not remove the children from the premises except in an emergency.)				N/
D13	I am aware of the program's anti-idling policy.				
D16	The program is kept clean and orderly and is free of strong chemical odors.				
D20	If pesticides are going to be applied at the program, I am notified in advance of the application.				
D21	I have been given a copy of the program's plan for moving children to another location in emergency situations.				
D24	I have been given information on providing my child with nutritionally balanced meals and/or snacks to eat at the program. (Check N/A if the program provides all meals/snacks for your child while at the program.)				N/
D24	I have been given information on the recommended use of BPA-free plastics for serving and storing food and drinks.				
E1	Lesson plans are posted for my viewing.				
E4	The program works with parents/legal guardians to make accommodations for children with short-term or long-term needs.				
E11	I am aware the classroom teacher(s) actively engage my child in conversation (or respond to vocalizations of my infant or toddler) in meaningful ways.				



	Standard	Yes	No	Don't Know	
E16	The backgrounds, cultures, and experiences of the children and their families are often reflected in lesson plan activities and classroom materials.				
E22	Teachers provide other activities instead of using TV/DVD/video and computers with infants, toddlers, and two-year olds. (Check N/A if you do not have a child in these age groups.)				NA
F1	The teachers greet me and my child by name upon arrival each day and support us if it is a difficult transition.				
F2	Teachers treat children with respect, and I have not seen employees laugh at, embarrass, criticize, threaten, tease, or reject any child.				
F3	Teachers are responsive to my child's needs.				
F4	Teachers give directions using positive words, for example, "Walk" rather than "Don't run", "Gentle touches" rather than "Don't hit."				
F6	My child is generally happy, relaxed, and participates in activities while at the program.				
G8	Employees follow procedures that ensure the safe arrival and departure of the children.				

What else would you like to tell us?



## **Survey Verifications**

## **Employee Survey Verification**

Total Number of Employees (see Standards B1 & B2)	Date Employee Surveys Distributed
Total Number of Surveys Distributed	Total Number of Surveys Returned (at least 75% of distributed)
<u>Initial</u> each statement below	
All employees, as defined by Commission Star complete the <i>Employee Survey</i> .	ndards B1 and B2, were given an opportunity to anonymously
Surveys were collected in a manner that main	tained the confidentiality of all employees.
All survey responses as completed by employ	ees were included in the totals.
I accurately recorded the totals of the survey r	esponses on a blank <i>Employee Survey</i> document.
	al number of recorded survey responses on the day of the II be required to immediately re-total all survey responses.
At least <b>75%</b> of all employees, as defined by C the survey.	commission Standards B1 and B2, completed and returned
I certify to the best of my knowledge that all information or original surveys in the Doc Box for review by Validator(s) or	n this <i>Employee Survey Verification</i> is accurate. I have kept the the day of the onsite validation visit.
Director's Signature	Date

### **Family Survey Verification**

Total Number of Families Date Family Surveys Distributed					
Total Number of Surveys Distributed (one per child per household)	Total Number of Surveys Returned (at least 60% of distributed)				
<u>Initial</u> each statement below					
All households were given an opportunity to a	anonymously complete the <i>Family Survey</i> .				
Surveys were collected in a manner that main	tained the confidentiality of all families.				
All survey responses, as completed by families	, were included in the totals.				
I accurately recorded the totals of the survey r	esponses on a blank <i>Family Survey</i> document.				
· ·	al number of recorded survey responses on the day of found, I will be required to immediately re-total all survey				
At least <b>60%</b> of distributed surveys were comp	pleted and returned.				
The survey was conducted during a period of	typical enrollment.				
I certify to the best of my knowledge that all information on this <i>Family Survey Verification</i> is accurate. I have kept the original surveys in the Doc Box for review by Validator(s) on the day of the onsite validation visit.					
Director's Signature	Date				

# **Documentation**

## **Contents of this Section**

Instructions for Using Document Organization	158
Document Organization	159
Administrator's Report (Standards A1-D24)	159
Classroom Observation (Standards E1-G8)	180
Self-Study Documentation	184
Children and Employee Records Document Review	186



### **Instructions for Using Document Organization**

Documents are required as evidence that certain Standards and Indicators are met. This documentation must be organized according to instructions in the *Document Organization*. **Materials organized in any other manner will not be accepted**.

Organization of documents should begin as the *Administrator's Report* is being reviewed during the Self-Study process and **must be completed before submission** of the *Request for Validation Visit*. There will be no time to gather materials during the onsite validation visit. Documents not immediately available for the Validator's review will result in the corresponding Standard(s) or Indicator(s) as being determined as not met.

Most documents are required to be placed in file folders labeled with the corresponding Standard number. Each folder is to contain only the document(s) required by that particular Standard and should be in the order specified in the *Document Organization*. The labeled file folders containing the required documentation should be stored in a file box or file crate for easy access by the Validator on the day of the onsite validation visit.

When instructions state that documentation must be placed in a file folder, it is NOT acceptable to place a note in the file folder directing the Validator to the handbook or a different location.

**NOTE**: As specified in the *Document Organization*, some Standards require review of confidential records of children and employees. These documents should remain in their existing locations at the program to be sampled on the day of the onsite validation visit. A listing of these documents is on the form *Children and Employee Records Document Review* (located after *Document Organization*). This form can be used as a worksheet to assist in tracking any missing record for children and employees during the Self-Study process.



### **Document Organization**

#### Administrator's Report (Standards A1-D24)

- A1. The program has a written mission statement, philosophy, and goals that describe the environment, reflect the program's beliefs about how children learn, and include overall goals for children and families.
- 1. Written mission statement
- 2. Written philosophy
- 3. Written goals for children and families

In a file folder labeled A1, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. A copy of the program's mission statement.
- 2. A copy of the program's philosophy.
- 3. A copy of the program's goals for children and families.

NOTE: Submit copies of 1-3 with the Request for Validation Visit.

- A2. The program's administration complies with non-discrimination laws covering hiring and termination of employees and the enrollment and disenrollment of children.
- 1. Family policies and procedures
- 2. Personnel policies and procedures

- 3. Employment application
- 4. Employment advertisement (if applicable)

In a file folder labeled **A2**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. A copy of the page(s) in the family policies and/or procedures that documents compliance with non-discrimination laws. HIGHLIGHT relevant section(s).
- 2. A copy of the page(s) in the employee policies and/or procedures that documents compliance with non-discrimination laws. HIGHLIGHT relevant section(s).
- 3. A blank employment application.
- 4. A copy of the most recent employment advertisement (if applicable).

#### A3. The program maintains confidential written records for each employee.

- 1. Employment application
- 2. Work history
- 3. Transcripts/Diplomas of education and certificates of training
- 4. Screening of references
- 5. Current criminal history background check
- 6. Current emergency contact information

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

All documents are to remain in confidential employee files. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.



#### A4. A written orientation plan is consistently implemented with each new employee.

- 1. Completion of personnel forms
- 2. Curriculum
- 3. Discipline policy and positive guidance procedures
- 4. Emergency preparedness plan
- 5. Employee has opportunity to observe assigned classroom
- 6. Family policies and procedures
- 7. Introduction to key people
- 8. Job description

- 9. Licensing/Regulatory standards
- 10. Meeting children and co-workers
- 11. Mission, philosophy, and history of program
- 12. National Accreditation Commission Standards
- 13. Operating procedures
- 14. Organization chart
- 15. Personnel policies

- 16. Pre-employment training hours as required by licensing agencies
- 17. Professional ethics
- 18. Recognizing and reporting child abuse and neglect
- Social media policies and procedures
- 20. Technology usage
- 21. Tour of facility
- 22. Universal precautions
- 23. Signed and dated documentation of orientation completion is in the employee's file.

In a file folder labeled **A4**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-22. A copy of the orientation plan for employees; this can be a checklist of items covered. HIGHLIGHT sections that document compliance with each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.

NOTE: 23. The signed and dated orientation form remains in each employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

# A5. The program has written personnel policies that state the conditions and expectations of employment and inform employees of their rights, responsibilities, and privileges.

- 1. Attendance and punctuality
- 2. Cell phone usage
- 3. Compensation and benefits
- 4. Confidentiality of information regarding program, employees, children, and families
- 5. Conflict resolution
- 6. Discipline (children)
- 7. Employee discipline

- 8. Grievance
- 9. Illness
- 10. Job description
- 11. Media/Photography
- 12. Non-discrimination
- 13. Payroll
- 14. Performance appraisals
- 15. Professional development
- 16. Professional Ethics

- 17. Prohibition of smoking, drugs, and firearms on the premises
- 18. Provisionary period
- 19. Resignation/termination
- 20. Social media
- 21. Standards of conduct
- 22. Technology usage
- 23. Personnel policies are reviewed a minimum of every two years and updated as necessary.
- 24. Signed and dated statement of receipt of personnel policies is in the employee's file. Statement of receipt should include a signed statement that the employee has read, had an opportunity to ask questions about, understands, and is willing to abide by the policies.

In a file folder labeled **A5**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

Make a copy of the relevant pages of the personnel policies.

1-23. Policies must be ordered as listed above. If multiple policies appear on one page, HIGHLIGHT the relevant policy and put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section. If the policy is multiple pages, please clip together.

For example: The first page in this folder will be a copy of the policy on attendance and punctuality and labeled "Attendance and punctuality" at the top of the page. The second page will be a copy of the policy on cell phone usage and labeled "Cell phone usage" at the top of the page.

NOTE: 24. The signed and dated receipt of personnel policies remains in each employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.



## A6. The program has written operating procedures that provide employees with detailed instructions for carrying out specific tasks related to their work.

- 1. Accidents/Incidents
- 2. Air quality
- 3. Allergy/Medication
- 4. Cleaning, sanitizing, and disinfecting
- 5. Contagious illness
- 6. Curriculum and lesson planning
- 7. Daily health checks
- 8. Diaper changing
- 9. Emergency preparedness plan
- 10. Family communication
- 11. Field trips
- 12. Food service

- 13. Hand washing
- 14. Hazardous waste
- 15. Health and developmental screenings
- 16. Integrated pest management
- 17. Medical and dental emergencies
- 18. Monitoring furnishings, equipment, and materials for safety concerns
- 19. Observations and assessments
- 20. Playground supervision
- 21. Positive guidance
- 22. Recycling

- 23. Safe arrival and departure
- 24. Safe sleep practices
- 25. Safety and supervision rules
- 26. Social media
- 27. Suspicion of abuse or neglect
- 28. Technology usage
- 29. Toilet learning
- 30. Transition planning
- 31. Transportation of children
- 32. Universal precautions
- 33. Written operating procedures are reviewed and updated a minimum of every two years and as necessary.
- 34. Signed and dated statement of receipt of operating procedures is in the employee's file. Statement of receipt should include a signed statement that the employee has read, had an opportunity to ask questions about, understands and is willing to abide by the procedures.

In a file folder labeled **A6**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

Make a copy of relevant pages of the operating procedures.

1-33. Procedures must be ordered as listed above. If multiple procedures appear on one page, HIGHLIGHT the relevant procedure and put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section. If the procedure is multiple pages, please clip together.

For example: The first page in the folder will be a copy of the procedure on accidents/incidents and labeled "Accidents/Incidents" at the top of the page. The second page will be a copy of the procedure on air quality labeled "Air quality" at the top of the page.

NOTE: 34. The signed and dated receipt of operating procedures remains in each employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

Insert a complete copy of the employee handbook in a file folder labeled Employee Handbook, placed directly behind A6.

#### A8. Volunteers

- 1. Oriented on program policies and procedures that cover basic health and safety, child abuse reporting responsibilities, confidentiality, emergency procedures, child discipline policies, and guidance procedures
- 2. Screened for criminal history background

In a file folder labeled **A8**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

When volunteers are used:

- A copy of the orientation plan for volunteers; this can be a checklist of items covered. HIGHLIGHT sections that document compliance with this Indicator.
- 2. A copy of the criminal history background check for all current volunteers.

**NOTE:** Block out any confidential information.



#### A9. Insurance is maintained on all aspects of the program.

- 1. Liability insurance
- 2. Accident insurance
- 3. Fire and theft insurance
- 4. Worker's compensation or self-insurance
- 5. Vehicle insurance (if transportation provided)
- Certificate of Additional Insured (naming Association for Early Learning Leaders' National Accreditation Commission)

In a file folder labeled **A9**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-5. A copy of the certificates of coverage. HIGHLIGHT sections that document each of the required types of insurance AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant sections. HIGHLIGHT date(s) of expiration.
- 6. A copy of the Certificate of Additional Insured naming Association for Early Learning Leaders' National Accreditation Commission.

#### A10. A fiscal plan is followed, monitored, and reviewed.

All Programs:

- The program has a compensation plan based on merit, education, and/or performance.
- 2. Annual budget
- 3. Quarterly income and expense reconciliation
- Annual federal tax filing documentation or annual outside review verification

In a file folder labeled **A10**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- A copy of the compensation plan.
- 2. A copy of the annual budget (if applicable).
- 3. A copy of the quarterly income and expense reconciliation (if applicable).
- A copy of the annual federal tax filing documentation or outside review of accounting practices (if applicable).

<u>NOTE</u>: Block out any information that is considered confidential or sensitive.

#### **A11. Staff-Child Ratios**

	Age Range	Ratio
1.	B-1	1:4
2.	1-2	1:5
3.	2-3	1:6
4.	3-4	1:9
5.	4-5	1:12
6.	5	1:12
7.	K-2nd	1:15
8.	3rd-6th	1:18

In a file folder labeled A11, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. A copy of the required ratios as determined by licensing agency.
- 2. A list indicating the age range and ratio of each classroom served at the program.



#### **A12. Group Sizes**

	Age Range	Group Size
1.	B-1	8
2.	1-2	10
3.	2-3	12
4.	3-4	18
5.	4-5	22
6.	5	24
7.	K-2nd	26
8.	3rd-6th	30

In a file folder labeled **A12**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. A copy of the required group sizes as determined by licensing agency.
- 2. A list indicating the age range and group size of each classroom served at the program.

## A14. The program has a discipline policy and positive guidance procedures which forbid corporal punishment and harsh, cruel, or unusual treatment of any child.

- 1. Prior to working with children, employees receive basic training on appropriate discipline and positive guidance practices, including what corporal punishment is and forbidden practices.
- 2. The policy includes examples of what is expressly forbidden.
- 3. The policy includes protocol for employees should they suspect physical, verbal, and/or psychological punishment is being used within the program.
- 4. The policy includes what the program will do if an employee is suspected of violating or determined to have violated the discipline policy.
- 5. Employees receive a positive guidance refresher training every two years or as necessary.
- 6. Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and guidance procedures is in the employee's file. Statement of receipt should include a signed statement that the employee has read, understands, and will abide by the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures.
- 7. Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures is in the child's file.

In a file folder labeled **A14**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-5. A copy of the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures. HIGHLIGHT sections that document compliance with each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.
- NOTE: 1&5. Record discipline and positive guidance training on each employee's Formal Education and Ongoing
  Training Log. Documentation of training completion should be kept in the individual employee file and will be reviewed by the Validator on the day of the validation visit.
  - 6. The signed and dated receipt should be kept in each employee's file.
  - 7. The signed and dated receipt should be kept in each child's file.

#### **B1.** Director Qualifications

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

All documents are to remain in the employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.



#### **B2.** Employee Qualifications

#### Onsite Supervisor(s)

1. Bachelor's degree or higher with 12 college semester credits or 18 college quarter credits in Early Childhood Education/Child Development

#### **Lead Teachers**

2. The majority of Lead Teachers have a minimum of an Associate's degree or higher with 12 college semester credits or 18 college quarter credits in Early Childhood Education/Child Development

#### **Assistant Teachers**

3. The majority of Assistant Teachers have a minimum of a national Child Development Associate (CDA) Credential

#### OR

4. 12 college semester credits or 18 college quarter credits of Early Childhood Education/Child Development

#### OF

5. A state-approved equivalent

In a file folder labeled **B2**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. A current list of Onsite Supervisor(s) noting the highest level of formal education completed. Insert a copy of diploma, certificates, and/or current transcripts for each Onsite Supervisor.
- A current list of Lead Teachers and highest level of formal education completed. Insert a copy of diploma, certificates, and/or current transcripts for each Lead Teacher.
- 3-5. A current list of Assistant Teachers noting the highest level of formal education completed. Insert a copy of diploma, certificates, and/or current transcripts for each Assistant Teacher.

<u>NOTE</u>: Work history should remain in the employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files. Block out any information that is considered confidential or sensitive.

### **B4.** Professional development training is required annually.

- 1. Training received is conducted by a variety of sources.
- 2. Training received is conducted by an expert in the material/information presented.
- 3. The Director has a minimum of 35 clock hours of annual training in early childhood/child development and topics related to program management, leadership, and supervision.
- 4. The Onsite Supervisor(s) has a minimum of 30 clock hours of annual training in early childhood/child development and topics related to supervision.
- 5. Each employee counted in the staff-child ratio has a minimum of 25 clock hours of annual training in early childhood/child development including topics related to the age group of children with whom the employee is working.

In a file folder labeled **B4**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-5. The Formal Education and Ongoing Training Logs for the current employees counted in the staff-child ratio, including Director and Onsite Supervisor(s). Formal Education and Ongoing Training Logs should be updated prior to the validation visit. If new employees are hired between the Request for Validation Visit and the validation visit, a Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log for each new employee should be added to the folder.
- NOTE: 1-5. Evidence of the annual training hours reported on the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log is to remain in the individual employee's file. Evidence can include, but is not limited to, certificates, agendas/goals with date, time, and signature, detailed sign-in sheet, or online transcripts. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.
  - 2. A copy of state licensing requirements for trainers and state training registry requirements (if applicable). Include a list of all trainers used and identify each trainer's qualifications to meet the National Accreditation Commission's glossary definition of "Expert".

Submit copies of the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Logs with the Request for Validation Visit.



#### B5. Each employee receives a performance appraisal.

- 1. A written appraisal is made of new employees within 90 days of employment concerning their competence for working with children.
- 2. A written appraisal of each employee occurs at least annually.
- 3. Appraisals of the Director include feedback from employees and families.
- 4. Employees are given the opportunity for self-appraisal.
- 5. Appraisals are signed and dated by supervisor and employee.

In a file folder labeled **B5**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-3. A blank copy of the written appraisal form.
- A blank copy of the self-appraisal form.

NOTE: 1-5. Completed appraisals are to remain in the employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

#### B6. A written annual professional development plan is prepared for each employee.

- 1. Date(s) courses completed and/or training/mentoring received for each identified topic.
- 2. A copy of the professional development plan is in the employee's file.

In a file folder labeled **B6**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-2. A blank copy of the professional development plan form.
- NOTE: 1-2. Completed professional development plans are to remain in the employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

## B10. Employees are provided with opportunities to meet for team building, training, program planning, and goal setting.

- 1. Meeting opportunities are provided at least monthly.
- 2. An agenda specifies topics and/or goals to be addressed.
- 3. A sign-in sheet records time, date, and attendance.

In a file folder labeled **B10**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-3. Copies of agendas and corresponding sign-in sheets for meetings conducted within the past year.

#### B11. Employees have opportunities to provide feedback on the program

1. Annual written evaluations of the program are completed by the employees.

In a file folder labeled **B11**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1. Evidence of evaluations of the program completed by the employees in the past year.

<u>NOTE</u>: Evaluations can be the *Employee Survey* provided in the National Accreditation Commission *Accreditation Manual*.



#### C1. A written orientation plan introduces children and families to the program.

- Discussion of current health and developmental needs and screening expectations
- 2. Discussion of expectations of family and the needs of the child
- 3. Discussion of parent/legal guardian and teacher roles
- 4. Family visit with classroom teaching team
- 5. Interpreter available if needed
- 6. Introduction to key employees

- Opportunity for extended visit in the classroom by both family and child to allow both to be comfortable in the new surroundings
- Overview of available family support resources and activities
- 9. Overview of program policies and procedures
- 10. Technology usage
- 11. Tour of facility

12. Signed and dated documentation of orientation completion is in the child's file.

In a file folder labeled C1, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-11. A copy of the orientation plan for families; this can be a check list of items covered. HIGHLIGHT sections that document compliance with each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.

NOTE: 12. The signed and dated documentation of orientation completion remains in each child's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

#### **C2.** Families are provided with written policies and procedures.

- 1. Admission procedure
- 2. Anti-idling
- 3. Child abuse and neglect identification and reporting requirements
- 4. Curriculum
- 5. Complaint procedure
- 6. Discipline policy and positive guidance procedures
- 7. Drop off/pick up procedure
- 8. Emergency preparedness
- 9. Family participation

- 10. Fee structure/payment plan
- 11. Formal conferences
- 12. Health and developmental screenings
- 13. Holidays
- 14. Hours of service
- 15. Illness policy
- 16. Late payment
- 17. Medication administration
- 18. Program mission, philosophy, and goals

- 19. Prohibition of drugs, smoking, and firearms
- 20. Refund information
- 21. Safe sleep practices
- 22. Social media
- 23. Statement reflecting the role and influence of families
- 24. Technology usage
- 25. Transition planning
- 26. Transportation
- 27. Withdrawal/Dismissal procedure
- 28. Parent(s)/legal guardian sign and date a statement of receipt of policies and procedures that is kept in the child's file. Statement of receipt should include a signed statement that the family has read, had an opportunity to ask questions about, understands, and is willing to abide by the procedures.

In a file folder labeled **C2**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

Make a copy of the relevant pages of the policies and procedures.

1 – 27. Policies must be ordered as listed above. If multiple policies appear on one page, HIGHLIGHT the relevant policy, AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section. If the policy is multiple pages, please clip together.

For example: The first page in the folder will be a copy of the procedure on admission procedure and labeled "Admission procedure" at the top of the page. The second page will be a copy of the procedure on anti-idling and labeled "Anti-idling" at the top of the page.

NOTE: 28. The signed and dated statement of receipt of policies and procedures remains in each child's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.



## C6. Formal conferences are conducted to discuss children's progress and overall development.

- Formal conferences are offered to parents/legal guardians a minimum of twice per year.
- Documentation of the conference is made, dated, signed by a parent/ legal guardian and teacher, and a copy kept in the child's file.
- 3. Parents/legal guardians are provided the opportunity to request a formal conference at any time.

In a file folder labeled **C6**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. Evidence that formal conferences are offered to parents/legal guardians a minimum of twice a year.
- 2. A copy of documentation of two (2) formal conferences for each classroom held during the past year.
- 3. HIGHLIGHT the statement reflecting the opportunity to request a formal conference in the policy.

## C8. The program develops partnerships with community agencies to connect families to resources.

- 1. A current listing of community agencies and services is available to families.
- 2. Families are provided information about applicable community events.
- 3. Families are provided information regarding the importance of health and developmental screenings.
- 4. The program collaborates with outside agencies to support children and families.

In a file folder labeled **C8**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- A statement identifying the location of the file/notebook listing community agencies and services available to families.
- 2. Current samples of information provided to families about community events for children and families.
- 3. Copy of an article or resource regarding health and developmental screenings.
- 4. Listing of community agencies that provide support to children and families in the area.

#### C10. Families have opportunities to provide feedback on the program.

- 1. Annual written evaluations are completed by families.
- 2. Suggestions and evaluation results are integrated into program operations and/or goals when appropriate.

In a file folder labeled **C10**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- Evidence that families have completed an evaluation of the program during the past year. Insert completed evaluations.
- 2. List examples of ways families' ideas have been integrated into program operations and goals.

NOTE: Evaluations can be the Family Survey provided in the National Accreditation Commission Accreditation Manual.



## D1. The program maintains compliance with licensing standards and state and local regulations for health and safety of children in group settings.

- 1. Licensing visit or licensing exemption documentation
- 2. Fire inspection
- 3. State licensing ratio and group size

- 4. State quality rating reports (if applicable)
- 5. Other as required by the program's location

In a file folder labeled **D1**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- A copy of the last three (3) full licensing reports or copy of the licensing exemption documentation. Include any additional reports for complaints or investigations. A copy of any additional reports conducted after the *Request for Validation Visit* submission should be included in this folder. Write received after Request for Validation Visit submission in the top right hand corner and highlight for validator review.
- 2. A copy of the last fire inspection report.
- 3. A copy of the state quality rating report (if applicable).
- 4. A copy of the state required ratios and group size.
- 5. The most recent copy of any other inspection required by the program's location.

<u>NOTE</u>: Any significant licensing noncompliance that may result in the program's license being suspended, made provisional, or revoked should be immediately reported to the Accreditation Office.

Submit copies of 1-5 with the Request for Validation Visit.

#### D2. The program maintains current, confidential written records for each child.

- 1. Attendance records
- 2. Emergency contact information
- 3. Health and/or developmental screenings completed per state guidelines
- 4. Medical information
- 5. Physician's statement of health and ability to participate in group care on file within 90 days of enrollment
- 6. Up-to-date immunizations

In a file folder labeled **D2**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. A sample of one (1) week's attendance records for each classroom and a statement regarding how they are maintained.
- 3. A copy of state screening guidelines per child care licensing or state quality rating system.

NOTE: 2-6. These documents are to remain in their existing location at the program. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

## D3. The program implements security measures for protection of children and employees.

- 1. Written authorization is obtained from parents/legal guardians specifying person(s) to whom the child can be released.
- 2. Written parental permission is obtained before children's photos, video footage, and/or digital imagery are made and used for public viewing or any form of publication.

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

All documents are to remain in their existing location at the program. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.



#### D4. The program has a written policy regarding illness that is given to all families.

- 1. Conditions under which sick children are excluded
- Temporary care of ill children is provided away from other children.
- 3. Notification of parents/legal guardians
- 4. Terms defining when children can return to the program

In a file folder labeled **D4**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-4. A copy of the illness policy for families. HIGHLIGHT sections that document compliance with each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.

## D5. Parents/legal guardians are notified of incidents, injuries, illnesses, and detection of parasites.

- 1. Forms are completed to document a child's illness, actions by employees, and notification of parents/legal guardians.
- 2. Forms are completed to document the injury/incident, actions by employees, and notification of parents/legal guardians.
- 3. Parents/legal guardians of children exposed to communicable illnesses and/or parasites are given notification that includes symptoms, method of transmission, period of communicability, control measures being taken by the program, and measures for implementation at home.

In a file folder labeled **D5**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. A copy of two (2) completed forms dated within the last two (2) years. HIGHLIGHT specific Indicator requirements. Block out confidential information.
- 2. A copy of two (2) completed forms dated within the last two (2) years. HIGHLIGHT specific Indicator requirements. Block out confidential information.
- A copy of two (2) notices of communicable illnesses or parasites that would be distributed to families that include: symptoms, method of transmission, period of communicability, control measures being taken by the program, and measures for implementation at home.

## D6. The program monitors the health of each employee who has direct or indirect contact with children.

- 1. A health appraisal is obtained within the first month of employment
- 2. A health appraisal is obtained every two years.
- 3. The health appraisal includes a statement that there are no health-related circumstances that should keep the employee from participating in the daily activities involved in caring for and engaging in activities with young children.
- 4. TB test is obtained, if required by local health authorities.
- 5. Employees who have contracted a highly contagious illness obtain written permission from a health professional to return to work.

In a file folder labeled **D6**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 4. Policy stating program's TB test requirements.
- 5. Policy stating program's exclusion from work and return to work requirements. Completed documentation remains in the original location.

NOTE: 1-4. These documents are to remain in the individual employee's file. If applicable, TB test results remain in the individual employee's file. The validator will review these records when sampling files.



#### D7. Employees receive training on CPR, first aid, and safe sleep practices.

- 1. All employees have a current certification in pediatric/adult first aid and CPR.
- 2. The training source is a national authority or a state licensing recognized provider on CPR and first aid training.
- 3. All employees receive training on safe sleep practices and the prevention of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS).

In a file folder labeled **D7**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- A copy of current certification on pediatric/adult first aid and CPR for each employee.
- 2. Documentation that source is a national authority or recognized by state licensing.

NOTE: 1&3. Record training information for each employee on the *Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log*. Original certificates for each employee should remain in employees' file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

#### D8. Employees receive training in universal precautions.

- 1. Prior to working with children, new employees receive training or provide documentation of training received within the last two years.
- 2. All employees receive refresher training every two years.

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

Training documentation is to remain in the individual employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

NOTE: 1-2. Record training information for each employee on the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log.

# D9. Employees receive child abuse and neglect training that includes recognizing symptoms, prevention, the mental and physical health consequences for children, and reporting responsibilities.

- 1. Prior to working with children, new employees receive training or provide documentation of training received within the last two years.
- 2. The training includes employee reporting responsibilities, prevention, symptoms, and long-term mental and physical health consequences.
- 3. The training includes prevention and recognition of Shaken Baby Syndrome.
- 4. All employees receive refresher every two years.

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

Training documentation is to remain in the individual employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

NOTE: 1-4. Record training information for each employee on the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log.



## D10. Medication policies and procedures are written and implemented to protect the child, employee, and program.

#### The policies and procedures for all medications include:

- 1. The program does not administer the initial dosage of a medication, except with a licensed health care professional's written permission for life-threatening situations.
- 2. Children are monitored post-administration of medication.
- 3. Parents/legal guardians provide written instructions that include the medication name, dosage, route, time and date medication is to be given, and special instructions for monitoring.
- 4. Instructions are consistent with labeling on the medication or licensed health care professional's instructions.
- 5. All medicine must be in the original container and bear the full name of the child to whom it is given.
- 6. Documentation is made that shows the name of the medication, dosage, route, time and date, and the name of the person administering it.
- 7. All medicines are stored in a locked refrigerator, cabinet, or container AND are inaccessible to children.
- 8. Medication has not expired.
- 9. Medication is given only by designated employees trained in administration of medication.

#### Medications delivered by a device (Ex. EpiPen, inhaler, nebulizer):

- 10. Parents/legal guardians or a licensed health care professional provide written instructions on indications for use, including signs and symptoms that the medication is needed.
- 11. Parents/legal guardians or a licensed health care professional demonstrate use and any special care after use of the device to all employees who will be administering the medication.
- 12. Documentation of the demonstration for use and care is made on the medication form including demonstrator, date, and employees in attendance.
- 13. Medication is given only by employees trained on use of the device.
- 14. Training on use and care of the device is provided annually or as needed with employee or device changes.

## In a file folder labeled **D10**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-14. If medications are administered, make a copy of your procedures regarding administration of medications. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.
- 6. A copy of the medication documentation will be reviewed by the Validator.
- 9&12. List of current employees designated to give medication and trained on applicable devices.

NOTE: 3-8. The Validator will review current medications and documentation during the validation visit.

#### When medication is administered by the school nurse, provide:

- A letter written by the school nurse on school letterhead that all of the Indicators (1 14) are met.
- A copy of three (3) completed documentations of administered medication and written instructions from the parents/legal guardians.



#### **D11. Transportation Vehicles**

## When children are transported in vehicles owned by the program or commercial carrier/school district, the program requires each of the following:

- 1. Age appropriate safety restraints
- 2. First aid supplies
- 3. Communication device
- 4. Current vehicle license
- 5. Current vehicle inspection certification (if required by the state)
- 6. Current and proper license of designated driver(s)
- 7. Documentation of vehicle maintenance
- 8. Transportation log showing vehicle trips, mileage, and vehicle condition

#### When private vehicles are used, the program requires vehicles to have each of the following:

- 9. Age appropriate safety restraints
- 10. First aid supplies
- 11. Communication device
- 12. Current vehicle license
- 13. Current vehicle inspection certification (if required by the state)
- 14. Vehicle insurance as required by federal and state laws
- 15. Current and proper license of designated driver(s)
- 16. Clearance obtained by the program's liability insurance
- 17. Written permission from parent/legal guardian for their child to be transported in private vehicles

## In a file folder labeled **D11**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

#### Program-owned/commercial/school district vehicles:

- 1-3. A copy of program's procedures. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.
- 4 A copy of current vehicle license.
- 5 A copy of current inspection certification (if required by the state)
- A copy of the current and proper license of all designated drivers. Multiple licenses can be copied on the same page.
- 7 A copy of vehicle maintenance for the last two (2) years.

#### <u>NOTE</u>: 8. Transportation log can remain in its existing location for validator review on the day of the validation visit.

When transportation is provided by a commercial carrier/school district, obtain a letter stating that Indicators 1 through 8 are met.

#### **Private vehicles:**

- 9-15. A signed statement from each driver that Indicators 9 through 15 are met.
- 16. A copy of program's liability insurance showing clearance to use private vehicle(s).
- 17. A copy of the form used for obtaining written permission from parent/legal guardian for their child to be transported by a private vehicle(s).



## D12. When children are transported, written policies and procedures regarding safety, supervision, and transportation are followed.

- 1. A preplanning form completed for field trips that identifies the purpose of the trip, supervising employee(s), as well as employee(s) and site contact information
- 2. Notification of parents/legal guardians in advance of each field trip activity
- 3. Written permission from parents/legal guardians for their child to attend the field trip
- 4. Written permission from parents/legal guardians for their child to be transported
- 5. Safety rules for children
- 6. Procedures for emergencies
- 7. Accountability for children at all times
- 8. Emergency supplies are brought on during transport
- 9. Communication device

#### When Vehicles Used:

- 10. Children logged in when entering and logged out when exiting the vehicle
- 11. Drivers receive annual training on transporting children.
- 12. Drivers are prohibited from smoking, consuming alcohol, and taking illegal/legal drugs and medications that impair driving.
- 13. Drivers are prohibited from the use of all mobile devices while the vehicle is in motion or stopped in traffic, with the exception of the use of a hands-free navigational system.
- 14. Smoking is not permitted within program-owned transportation vehicles at any time.

In a file folder labeled **D12**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-9. If children are transported, make a copy of your procedures regarding transportation. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.

When vehicles used, in addition to 1-9:

- 10. A copy of completed log for a trip that occurred within the last two (2) years.
- 11-14. A copy of the procedures regarding transportation. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section

#### D13. Steps are taken to ensure that indoor and outdoor air quality is monitored.

#### Indoor

- 1. Conditions that lead to excess moisture are avoided to prevent the growth of mold and mildew.
- 2. HVAC filters are changed or cleaned at least every 3 months or more often if indicated by manufacturer's guidelines.
- 3. Aerosols are not used.
- 4. Smoking is not permitted anywhere on the facility's indoor and outdoor premises or in sight of children, including hours children are not present.

#### Outdoor

- 5. Outdoor air quality is monitored by checking the Air Quality Index.
- 6. Outdoor activities are limited or avoided during unhealthy Air Quality Index days.
- 7. An anti-idling policy is in place, and opportunities are taken to educate employees and families about the importance of reducing children's exposure to vehicle exhaust.

In a file folder labeled **D13**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-7. A copy of the procedures taken to ensure indoor and outdoor air quality is monitored. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.



# D14. The program consults with a health care organization or professional to provide guidance regarding health policies, procedures, and practices.

1. A written procedure describes the provider of the services, contact information, and situations to request consult.

In a file folder labeled **D14**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1. A copy of your procedures including the provider of the services, contact information, and situations to request consult.

#### D15. The facility has been tested for harmful environmental health hazards.

#### Radon

- 1. The facility is tested for radon minimally every two years, and as necessary.
- 2. If elevated levels of radon were found, action was taken to mitigate.

#### Lead

3. All sources of tap water have been tested for lead. If lead levels are elevated, water filtration devices that have been certified to remove lead are used.

#### If building was constructed before 1979

- 4. Paint condition inside and outside is inspected at least monthly, and the facility is free of flaking, chipping, peeling, or otherwise deteriorating paint.
- 5. To prevent cracking and flaking of paint, all areas around doors and windows that are in good condition are washed at least weekly using a mop, sponge, or paper towel with warm water and a general all-purpose cleaner.
- 6. Federal guidelines are followed before painting, remodeling, renovating, or making repairs.
- 7. Renovation areas are sealed off from where children play, or are completed when children are not present.
- 8. The soil is tested for lead contamination in outdoor areas where children spend time. If soil is contaminated, children are not permitted access to bare soil.

In a file folder labeled **D15**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- A copy of the facility's most recent radon results.
- 2. If needed, documentation of the actions taken to mitigate.
- 3. A copy of lead testing results. Include a copy of the acceptable lead levels.

If building was constructed before 1979:

- 4-7. A copy of your procedures. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.
- 8. A copy of the facility's test results and, if needed, actions taken based on results.



# D16. Effective cleaning, sanitation, and disinfecting procedures are consistently practiced.

#### The schedule includes:

- 1. Facility is cleaned, sanitized, and/or disinfected daily or more often as needed based on the area.
- 2. Bathrooms are cleaned and disinfected daily and upon obvious contamination.
- 3. Floors and surfaces are cleaned and sanitized daily and upon obvious contamination.
- 4. All area rugs and carpeted areas are vacuumed daily.
- 5. All area rugs and carpeted areas are steam cleaned at least twice a year and more often as needed.
- 6. Individual bedding is laundered weekly or more often as needed.
- 7. Dress-up clothes and stuffed toys are laundered weekly and more often as needed.
- 8. Trash is removed daily or more often as needed.
- 9. Paper, cardboard, glass, aluminum, and plastic bottles are recycled as service is available.

In a file folder labeled **D16**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-9. A copy of the program's cleaning procedures including the cleaning schedule. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.

### D17. Least-toxic cleaning, sanitizing, and disinfecting products are consistently used according to manufacturers' instructions.

1. Cleaning products are used according to manufacturers' instruction.

#### Sanitizers/Disinfectants:

#### Household bleach and water is used as a sanitizer/disinfectant:

- 2. Bleach concentration and bleach/water solution ratio is posted.
- 3. Bleach/water solution is made fresh daily.
- 4. Bleach/water solution is made according to dilution ratio required.

#### Sanitizer/Disinfectant other than household bleach is used:

- 5. Sanitizer/disinfectant is EPA registered.
- 6. Sanitizer/disinfectant is the least toxic option for use around children.
- Sanitizer/disinfectant is prepared and used according to manufacturer's instructions, including appropriate contact time.

In a file folder labeled **D17**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-7. A copy of the program's cleaning, sanitizing, and disinfecting procedures. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the applicable Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.
- 5&7. A copy of the EPA registry and manufacturers' instructions found either on the product label or the material safety data sheet (MSDS).



## D18. The outdoor learning environment meets Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC) safety guidelines and is maintained.

- 1. Daily safety inspections are made prior to children entering the playground.
- 2. A comprehensive playground safety inspection is conducted once a year.
- 3. Documentation is kept on file concerning equipment and surfacing purchases, installation warranties, and safety standard guidelines.
- 4. If playground equipment is wooden, and was built before 2006, 2 coats of waterproof stain or sealant is applied at least once a year (if applicable).
- 5. Surfaces of rubber or rubber-like materials that meet ASTM F1292 Standards and are in good condition.

In a file folder labeled **D18**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1. Documentation of one (1) week of daily playground inspections. This can include log or checklist.
- 2. A copy of the most recent annual comprehensive playground safety inspection.
- 3. Documentation of playground equipment and surfacing purchases made during the past two (2) years AND installation warranties and safety standard guidelines for those purchases.
- 4. If playground equipment is wooden, and was built before 2006, documentation that two (2) coats of waterproof stain or sealant was applied during the previous year (if applicable).
- 5. If rubber surfacing products are used, documentation from manufacturer/installer that surfaces of rubber or rubber-like materials meet ASTM F1292 Standards.

## D19. Undiluted chemicals, cleaning supplies, mercury-containing items, and other toxic materials are safely stored and disposed of, or recycled when possible.

#### Disposal

- 1. Disposed of according to manufacturers' instructions.
- 2. To prevent mercury from entering water sources, make effort to recycle all used batteries, fluorescent and compact fluorescent light bulbs, and mercury-containing thermometers and thermostats at a hazardous waste facility.

In a file folder labeled **D19**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-2. A copy of the procedures the program follows when it is necessary to dispose of chemicals or items containing mercury. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.

# D20. Integrated Pest Management (IPM) techniques are utilized to control pests, including insects and vermin.

- 1. Nontoxic techniques to prevent and control pests are used indoors and outdoors.
- 2. When pesticide application is the only viable option, families and employees are notified in advance of the application.
- 3. A professional trained in Integrated Pest Management techniques applies the least toxic, effective product at a time when children will not have exposure to the application area for at least 12 hours.

In a file folder labeled **D20**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 1-3. A copy of the procedures the program follows regarding pest management. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.
- 2. A copy of the most recent notification to parents and employees, if pesticide application has been used in the last two (2) years.



#### D21. The program has made preparations for emergencies.

- 1. A person is designated to assume authority in an emergency situation in the director's absence.
- 2. Fire extinguishers, sprinklers, and alarms have current certification.
- 3. All employees receive training in use of fire extinguishers.
- 4. Documentation is made of battery replacement for smoke detectors.
- 5. When exposure is possible, carbon monoxide detectors are present and monitored for battery replacement.
- 6. Fire drills are held monthly and documented.
- 7. Emergency drills are practiced quarterly or more often as needed and documented.
- 8. Alternate emergency communication is identified.
- 9. Alternate emergency lighting exists and is maintained.

#### **Emergency preparedness plan:**

- 10. A written plan exists for emergencies that do not allow for relocation and includes emergency provisions, location within the building, and notification of parents/legal guardians.
- 11. A written plan exists for moving children to another location and includes transportation, pre-approved relocation sites, and notification of parents/legal quardians.
- 12. A written plan exists for managing media relations and includes a designated spokesperson.
- 13. A hazardous waste clean-up and disposal plan is in place.
- 14. The emergency preparedness plan is reviewed annually by all employees.

### In a file folder labeled **D21**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- List the name(s) of the employee(s) in charge in the director's absence.
- 2. A copy of the documentation of current certification of fire extinguishers, sprinklers, and alarms.
- 4. A copy of documentation that batteries have been replaced in smoke detectors. Hard-wired detectors have documentation regarding backup when the power is out.
- 5. A copy of carbon monoxide detector documentation (when exposure is possible).
- 6. A copy of documentation of monthly fire drills for the past year.
- 7. A copy of documentation of quarterly emergency drills for the past year.
- 8. A listing of emergency communication to be used if the normal system is not in service.
- 9. A listing of emergency lighting to be used in the event of a power outage.
- 10. A copy of written plan for emergencies that do not allow for relocation. HIGHLIGHT details on each of these: emergency provisions, location within the building, and notification of parents.
- 11. A copy of written emergency plan for moving children to another location. HIGHLIGHT details on each of these: transportation, pre-approved relocation sites, and notification of parents.
- 12. A copy of written plan for managing media relations including having a designated spokesperson.
- 13. A copy of written plan managing hazardous waste clean-up and disposal.
- 14. A copy of signed documentation of annual review of emergency preparedness plan by all employees.
- NOTE: 3. A copy of the training documentation certificate or sign-in sheet is maintained in the employee's files. The fire extinguisher training for each employee should be documented in the *Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log*.
  - 14. A copy of signed documentation of annual review of emergency preparedness plan is kept in the employee's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.



#### D22. The program has a written plan for handling medical emergencies.

- 1. Notification of parents/legal guardians
- 2. Name and telephone number of primary health care professional, and/or emergency care source
- 3. Written parental permission to obtain emergency treatment
- 4. Transportation

In a file folder labeled **D22**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-4. A copy of the procedures the program follows regarding medical emergencies. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.

NOTE: 3. Written parental permission to obtain emergency treatment remains in each child's file. The Validator will review these records when sampling files.

### D23. When program prepares food onsite, all local health and sanitary requirements are met.

- 1. Food manager/handler certificate
- 2. Sanitation report
- 3. Health inspection report
- 4. Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) report

In a file folder labeled **D23**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- A copy of the current food manager/handler certification (if applicable).
- 2. A copy of the most recent sanitation report (if applicable).
- 3. A copy of the most recent health inspection report (if applicable).
- 4. A copy of the most recent CACFP report (if applicable).



#### D24. Meals and Snacks

#### All programs:

- 1. The program provides families with information about proper nutrition, food safety, and about foods that may trigger allergic reactions.
- 2. Prepared food that is brought into the program to be shared among children is commercially prepared OR prepared in a kitchen that is inspected by local health officials.

#### When meals and/or snacks are provided by the program:

- 3. Menus periodically include foods representative of the cultures in the program.
- 4. Alternate provisions are made for children with allergies and/or other special nutritional needs.
- 5. Menus are displayed/provided for families.
- 6. All fruits and vegetables are thoroughly washed to avoid possible exposure to pesticides.
- 7. Bisphenol-free (BPA-free) plastics are used for serving and storing food and drinks.
- 8. To avoid possible lead exposure, imported, old, or handmade pottery is not used for cooking, storing, or serving food or drinks
- 9. To avoid possible lead exposure, only cold water is used for drinking, cooking, and making baby formula.
- 10. To avoid possible lead exposure, water outlets used for cooking and drinking are run for 30 seconds prior to using after periods of non-use of six hours or more.

#### When meals and/or snacks are provided by families for their own children:

11. Families are encouraged to use and provide the program with baby bottles made of glass (covered with a silicone sleeve to prevent breaking), or plastic baby bottles/sippy cups that are labeled 'BPA-free.'

In a file folder labeled **D24**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

#### **All Programs**

- 1. Three (3) samples of information about proper nutrition provided to parents during the last year and information provided to parents about foods that may trigger allergic reactions.
- 2. A copy of the policy regarding outside food shared with the children.

#### Programs that prepare meals and/or snacks

- 3-10. A copy of the procedures the program follows regarding food preparation. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.
- 5. A copy of meal and/or snack menus for the past two (2) months.

#### Meals and/or snacks are provided by families

11. A sample of the information provided to families regarding BPA-free plastics.



#### Classroom Observation (Standards E1-G8)

# E1. Written lesson plans reflect planning that promotes children's overall development.

#### All Ages

- 1. Lesson plans include activities that promote social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development.
- 2. Activities are appropriate to the developmental stages of the children in the classroom.
- 3. Lesson plans have written goals for children.
- 4. Lesson plans have some form of written evaluation.
- 5. Lesson plans are posted for families' viewing.

In a file folder labeled **E1**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-5. For each classroom, insert two (2) completed lesson plans conducted within the last two (2) years.

NOTE: The current lesson plans remain in their original location in the program. The Validator will review during the validation visit.

E2. Written observations are made on each child's actions, abilities, and knowledge as the child engages in the classroom and in routine outdoor settings.

#### All Ages

- 1. Observations are documented of each child on a regular basis over time.
- 2. Documentation includes observations on social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development.
- 3. Documentation includes time, date, and location of the observation.
- 4. Written observations are objective and free from bias.

In a file folder labeled **E2**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-4. A statement identifying the location of the classroom teacher's written observations for each classroom AND a blank copy of each observation form used with each classroom. The Validator will review during the validation visit.



#### E3. Written assessment is made of each child's learning and development.

#### All Ages

1. Assessments are based on developmental norms and expectations appropriate for the child's age.

#### Infants, Toddlers, Twos

- 2. Assessments include social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development.
- 3. Teachers complete assessments two (2) or more times per year.

#### Preschool

- 4. Assessments include social and emotional, cognitive, language, and motor development.
- 5. Teachers complete assessments two (2) or more times per year.

#### School Age

- 6. Assessments include general skills and abilities of school age children.
- 7. Teachers complete assessments a minimum of once per year.

In a file folder labeled **E3**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-7. A statement identifying the location of the children's assessments for each classroom AND a blank copy of each assessment used with each classroom. The Validator will review assessments completed and/or in progress.

### E6. The daily schedule provides a predictable routine that is responsive to the children.

#### All Ages

- 1. Schedule includes time for both indoor and outdoor activities.
- 2. Schedule includes a balance of active and quiet times scheduled alternately.
- 3. Written schedule is posted for viewing by families and guests.

#### Infants, Toddlers, Twos

- 4. Scheduling occurs around each infant's individual rhythms and routines.
- 5. The schedule includes time throughout the day, both indoors and outdoors, for continuous, uninterrupted, child-initiated play.
- 6. If group and/or teacher-guided activities are used, children are not required to participate.

#### Preschool

- 7. The schedule includes extended periods of time in the morning and in the afternoon, both indoors and outdoors, for continuous, uninterrupted, child-initiated play.
- 8. If group and/or teacher-guided activities are used, they are limited and adjusted according to children's developmental abilities and interests.

#### School Age

9. If group and/or teacher-guided activities are used, they are limited and adjusted according to children's interests.

In a file folder labeled **E6**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

1-9. A copy of the current schedule for each classroom. In the top right-hand corner, note the lead teacher and other teaching assistants with their current schedule. Include floaters and break times. Ensure the schedule for each classroom is current and up-to-date prior to the validation visit.

<u>NOTE</u>: The current schedules remain in their original location in the program. The Validator will review during the validation visit.

Submit copies of the above daily schedules for each classroom with the Request for Validation Visit.



#### E7. Transitions throughout the day are planned and smoothly implemented.

#### All Ages

- 1. The number of whole group transitions is limited.
- 2. Transitions are often ongoing and/or individualized.

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

The Validator will review the daily schedules for transitions and will observe implementation in the classroom and/or playground.

## E17. Creativity is promoted through daily opportunities for self-expression, symbolic representation, and development of aesthetic sensibility.

#### Infants, Toddlers, Twos

1. Children have ample opportunities to express their own ideas and feelings through process-oriented art.

#### Preschool

2. Children express their own ideas and feelings through process-oriented art.

#### School Age

3. Children express their own ideas and feelings through planned and child-initiated activities in arts and crafts.

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

The Validator will review the daily schedules and written lesson plans for creative art activities and will observe implementation in the classroom and/or playground.

## E19. Gross motor skills are promoted through daily opportunities for physical activity to develop large muscle groups and coordination.

#### Infants, Toddlers, Twos

1. Toddlers and twos have opportunities for active participation in physical activities.

#### Preschool

2. Children have opportunities for active participation in physical activities.

#### School Age

3. Children have opportunities for active participation in physical activities.

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

The Validator will review the daily schedules and written lesson plans for scheduled physical/motor activities and will observe implementation in the classroom and/or playground.



#### G1. Health practices are implemented throughout the day.

#### Infants, Toddlers, Twos

1. Families of infants and toddlers receive daily, written information regarding feeding, diapering, and sleeping.

#### **NO FILE FOLDER NEEDED:**

The Validator will review the current information recorded for families of infants and toddlers while observing in those classrooms.

#### G5. Safety practices are followed throughout the day.

#### All Ages

- 1. Primary and alternate evacuation routes are posted in each room used by children.
- 2. Emergency procedures are posted in each room used by children.

#### Infants, Toddlers, Twos

3. Cribs meet federal safety standards mandated by the Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC).

In a file folder labeled **G5**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- 3. A copy of the manufacturers' documentation regarding compliance with the federal safety standards mandated by CPSC.
- NOTE: 1-2. Primary and alternate evacuation routes and emergency procedures remain posted in their original locations in the program. The Validator will review during the validation visit.

#### G7. Furnishings, equipment, and materials are safe and appropriately maintained.

#### Infants, Toddlers, Twos

- 1. Toys are screened for lead to prevent lead exposure.
- 2. Soft plastic and teething toys labeled "PVC-free" or "phthalate-free" are purchased and used.

#### Preschool

3. Children are discouraged from putting toys made out of soft plastic in their mouths.

In a file folder labeled **G7**, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit.

1-3. A copy of the procedures the program follows regarding materials and toy purchases. HIGHLIGHT sections of procedures that include each of the Indicators AND put the number of the corresponding Indicator beside the relevant section.



#### **Self-Study Documentation**

#### **Administrator's Report**

In a file folder labeled Administrator's Report, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

- The working copy used throughout the Self-Study process.
- The original copy of the Administrator's Report submitted with the Request for Validation Visit.

#### **Classroom Observations - Director**

In a file folder labeled Classroom Observations - Director, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

 The original copy of the Director's Classroom Observation [Standards E1- G8] conducted during Self-Study for each classroom. In front of each Classroom Observation, place the Observation Record noting the classroom name and date and time of observation. This is the working copy and can contain multiple observations and administrative notes.

NOTE: If the Lead Teacher of a classroom changes or is replaced, a new Director's Classroom Observation must be conducted prior to the validation visit. If the Director changes, a new Classroom Observation for each classroom must be conducted. Remove any observations conducted on or by past employees. Completed Classroom Observations will be verified by the Validator on the day of the visit.

#### **Classroom Observations - Lead Teacher**

In a file folder labeled Classroom Observations - Lead Teacher, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

The original copy of the Lead Teacher's Classroom Observation [Standards E1- G8] conducted during Self-Study for
each classroom. In front of each Classroom Observation, place the Observation Record noting the classroom name
and date and time of observation. This is the working copy and can contain multiple observations and teacher
notes.

NOTE: If the Lead Teacher of a classroom changes or is replaced, a new Lead Teacher's Classroom Observation must be conducted prior to the validation visit. Remove any observations conducted on or by past employees. Completed Classroom Observations will be verified by the Validator on the day of the visit.



#### **Classroom Observations - Validator**

In a file folder labeled Classroom Observations - Validator, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

• The clean single-sided Classroom Observation [Standards E1- G8] form with the agreed upon determinations for each classroom. In front of each Classroom Observation, place the completed Observation Record documenting the Self-Study observations. Do NOT staple; use binder or paperclips to keep classrooms separate. These Classroom Observations will be used by the Validator on the day of the validation visit. Except for checking the Indicator boxes and Meets Standard/Needs Improvement, no other writing should be on the copy. The Observer/Validator's Use box needs to remain blank.

NOTE: If the program has a change of Director or Lead Teacher at any point prior to the validation visit, a new Classroom Observation must be completed with a new Observation Record.

#### **Employee Surveys**

If Employee Surveys are not already included in the file folder for B11:

In a file folder labeled Employee Surveys, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

• Original completed *Employee Surveys* documented on the *Survey Verification* and totals recorded on the blank copy of the *Employee Survey* submitted with the *Request for Validation Visit*.

NOTE: The Validator will sample surveys for accurate reporting and, if a discrepancy is found in the final count, the program will be asked to immediately re-total responses to all questions on the survey and create a new record of survey totals.

#### **Family Surveys**

If Family Surveys are not already included in the file folder for C10:

In a file folder labeled Family Surveys, insert the following, and keep this folder in the Doc Box at the program for validator review on the day of the validation visit:

• Original completed Family Surveys documented on the Survey Verification and totals recorded on the blank copy of the Family Survey submitted with the Request for Validation Visit.

NOTE: The Validator will sample surveys for accurate reporting and, if a discrepancy is found in the final count, the program will be asked to immediately re-total responses to all questions on the survey and create a new record of survey totals.



### **Children and Employee Records Document Review**

This worksheet includes the documents required as evidence that the following Indicators pertaining to children and employees are met. **Keep these documents in their usual place(s) at your program for the Validator to review during the onsite validation visit.** As you review your files for these documents during the Self-Study process, check the box to indicate that all children or employee records were found. Record missing documents in the "Notes" column as a reminder to obtain them before you request an onsite validation visit. Refer to *Document Organization* for all other documentation needed on the day of the onsite validation visit.

Std	Children Records	Notes
A14	Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures	
C1	Signed and dated documentation of orientation	
C2	Signed and dated receipt of parent policies and procedures	
D2	Up-to-date immunizations	
	☐ Medical information	
	Health and/or developmental screenings	
	Physician's statement of health and ability to participate in group care on file within 90 days of enrollment	
	☐ Emergency contact information	
D3	Authorization forms specifying persons to whom the child can be released	
	Written parental permission for photos, videos, etc.	
D22	Written permission to obtain emergency treatment	
Std	Employee Records	Notes
А3	Employment application	
	☐ Work history	
	Transcripts/diplomas of education and certificates of training	
	Screening of references	
	Criminal history background check	
	☐ Emergency contact information	
A4		
	Signed and dated documentation of orientation completion	
A5	Signed and dated documentation of orientation completion  Signed and dated receipt of personnel policies	
A5 A6		
	Signed and dated receipt of personnel policies	
A6	☐ Signed and dated receipt of personnel policies ☐ Signed and dated receipt of operating procedures ☐ Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and positive	
A6 A14	☐ Signed and dated receipt of personnel policies ☐ Signed and dated receipt of operating procedures ☐ Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures	
A6 A14 B1	Signed and dated receipt of personnel policies  Signed and dated receipt of operating procedures  Signed and dated statement of receipt of the discipline policy and positive guidance procedures  Documentation of director qualifications  Documentation of annual training reported on the Formal Education and	

**CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE** 



#### **CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS PAGE**

B6	<ul> <li>Written annual plan for professional development with documentation of implementation</li> </ul>
D6	Health appraisal—within first month of employment
	Health appraisal—every two years
	Statement on health appraisal that there are no health-related circumstances that should keep the employee from participating
	TB test result as required by local health authorities, if applicable
D7	Current certification in pediatric/adult first aid & CPR
	Training on safe sleep practices and prevention of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS)
D8	☐ Universal Precautions training—upon hire
	☐ Universal Precautions training—refresher every two years
D9	☐ Training on child abuse and neglect—upon hire
	☐ Training on child abuse and neglect—refresher every two years
D21	☐ Training on use of fire extinguishers
	☐ Training on emergency preparedness plan—annually

# **Validation Visit**

### **Contents of this Section**

Instructions for Submitting Request for Validation Visit
Eligibility Requirements
Before Submitting the Request
Communication
Scheduling the Onsite Validation Visit
Block Out Dates
Timeframe
Two-Week Window
Scheduling Timeline
<b>Request for Validation Visit</b>
Required Documents
Instructions for Completing <i>Program Profile</i>
<b>Program Profile</b>
<b>Disclaimer</b>
Day of Onsite Validation Visit
Points to Remember
Director's Schedule during a One-Day Onsite Validation Visit
Exit Interview
Typical Validator Schedule for a One-day Onsite Validation Visit



### **Instructions for Submitting Request for Validation Visit**

Programs submit the *Request for Validation Visit* when the director has deemed the program ready for a validator to verify compliance.

#### **Eligibility Requirements**

- The program has been in continuous operation for at least one year.
- The program has engaged in the Self-Study process for a minimum of six months.
- The program has a minimum of 15 children enrolled.
- The director has been in place for at least six months and was responsible for leading the program through the Self-Study process.
- The current director must be the person who completed the documentation for the onsite validation visit.
- The program's Self-Study period has not expired. The Self-Study period is effective for two years. Programs may receive a courtesy reminder prior to the expiration date.

#### **Before Submitting the Request**

- Double-check all required documents to ensure they are organized according to the *Document Organization* instructions.
- Confirm that the classroom names are consistent on all documents: the Program Profile, the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log, the Observation Record for each classroom, and the children's daily schedule for each classroom.
- Do last-minute walk-through observations throughout the program, checking for ongoing compliance with Commission Standards in the *Administrator's Report* and the *Classroom Observation*.
- Review the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log to make sure all new employees have a log and that any last-minute training received by employees has been recorded.
- Complete a clean copy of the Classroom Observation for each classroom and retain them along with their corresponding Observation Records at your center for the Validator's use during the onsite validation visit.

Provide accurate and complete information when submitting the *Request for Validation*Visit documentation to ensure that the onsite visit is scheduled in a timely manner.



#### **Communication**

Communication between the program and the Accreditation Office is key during the scheduling period. The National Accreditation Commission contacts programs by both phone and e-mail; remember to check e-mails regularly and return phone calls promptly during the time the visit is being scheduled. When calling, leave a detailed message and the best time(s) for Accreditation Staff to call you at the program. Please note that it may take up to 2 business days for the National Accreditation Commission to return your call.

To initiate contact with the Accreditation Office during the process of scheduling your validation visit, e-mail us at validationvisits@earlylearningleaders.org.

#### **Scheduling the Onsite Validation Visit**

The onsite validation visit will be scheduled only during times when:

- Your enrollment is at least 75% of your typical enrollment. Typical enrollment is your usual enrollment during the majority of the year.
- Each classroom has a staff-child ratio and group size that is typical for your program during the majority of the year.
- Each age group that you typically serve can be observed.

#### **Block Out Dates**

If there are days you want to avoid (block out) for the onsite validation visit, you must request them at the time you submit the request for the onsite validation visit. (Ex. director away from center, picture day at school, scheduled field trip, expected low enrollment days such as holidays, scheduled days the program is closed)

**Note:** The National Accreditation Commission must be given all known days that need to be blocked out when you request the onsite validation visit.

- Block out dates provided on the Request for Validation Visit Submission form will help determine timeframe options. A timeframe cannot be issued if there are more than ten (10) block out dates in that specified time period.
- Once the timeframe is confirmed by the Accreditation Office, you will have three (3) business days to update or change your block out dates. After this time, adding or changing block out dates will result in a processing fee and scheduling delays.
- The National Accreditation Commission cannot schedule a two-week window if there are more than two (2) days blocked out during that time period.
- Keep in mind that if the number of days listed as block out dates provides an insufficient choice of two-week windows to match the validator's schedule, a delay of the visit may result.
- Block out days the program will be closed, such as holidays or professional development days. The
  Accreditation Office will not assume whether the program will be open or closed for a specific day.

#### **Timeframe**

After the paperwork has been reviewed and the program has been deemed ready to move forward with scheduling, the Accreditation Office will contact the director and present timeframe options for the visit. The timeframe is an 8-week period within which the program can have ten (10) block out dates and the



two-week window will occur. You will receive verification of the timeframe by e-mail along with pertinent information regarding your onsite validation visit. Ensure you thoroughly read the e-mail as you are responsible for knowing its content. Once the program is notified of the timeframe, a variable fee will result if changes are requested, either in block out dates or the timeframe itself.

#### **Two-Week Window**

The Accreditation Office determines the dates of the two-week window within the confirmed timeframe. The window is based on validator availability and the program's requested block out dates.

You will receive verification of the two-week window by phone and/or e-mail. A letter will follow via e-mail, providing pertinent details about the visit and additional instructions. Ensure you thoroughly read the e-mail and letter as you are responsible for knowing the contents.

Once the program is notified of the two-week window, a rescheduling fee will result if changes are requested, either in block out dates or the two-week window itself. The amount of the fee will vary, based in part on the nonrefundable expenses that have already been accrued.

#### **Scheduling Timeline**

The onsite validation visit is typically scheduled within three (3) months after receipt and approval of all required documentation, barring circumstances over which the National Accreditation Commission has no control.

Due to the high volume of requests for visits in the spring, programs that want a visit in March,
 April, or May must submit a request four (4) months in advance of desired dates.

Onsite validation visits are unannounced. You will not be informed of the exact date(s) of the visit, only the two-week window during which the visit will occur.



### **Request for Validation Visit**

<b>Program Name</b> (include your corporate program number, if any)			
Physical Address			County
City		State	Zip
Telephone	E-mail		
Director's Name			
<ul> <li>You will be given a two-week win exact date of the onsite validation fied you of the two-week window and delay in rescheduling.</li> </ul>	n visit will r	ot be revealed. Once	he Accreditation Office has noti-
<ul> <li>Are there any times of year in which not be able to observe certain group</li> </ul>	•	rollment decreases sig	nificantly and the Validator would
Yes No If yes, list:			
<ul> <li>Are there any times of year in white ratios and/or group sizes and/or it</li> </ul>		_	nificantly and your staff-child
Yes No If yes, list:			
I confirm that (Name of Program) process as documented on the enclosed visit to verify Standards in the <i>Administra</i> the <i>Classroom Observation</i> (one for each of process on our part.	tor's Report	imetable and is now reason as submitted with this	Request for Validation Visit and in
I understand that the National Accreditat the Validator's arrival, required document the National Accreditation Commission o usually occur or are not as reported. I und tion visit fee will be charged to reschedul	ts are not a or if happen derstand th	vailable or are not orgaings in the program and at there will be no refu	anized in the manner required by re not "typical" of activities that
I understand that the National Accreditat determined that this program does not n		_	*
If awarded accreditation, I understand the accreditation status for non-compliance of umentation as specified by the National A	of Standard	ls and/or procedures, f	ailure to submit any required doc
Authorized person requesting validation	visit:		ed or Printed
Signature		Title	Date



#### **Required Documents**

When your program is ready for the validation visit, submit all of the following to the Accreditation Office with your *Request for Validation Visit* (p. 192). Refer to the Accreditation Forms page on our website (<a href="https://www.earlylearningleaders.org">www.earlylearningleaders.org</a>) for further submission instructions.

Initial on each line to indicate that the documentation is enclosed, that you have followed written

Organize and submit documents in the order listed below.

instructions for completion, and that the enclosed documentation is complete and accurate. Completed Request for Validation Visit Submission form (In Validation Visit section, p. 192) **Completed Request for Validation Visit** (in Validation Visit section p. 192) **Signed Disclaimer** (in Validation Visit section p. 197) Completed Self-Study Timetable used in your Self-Study process (In Overview section, p. 12) **Completed** *Program Profile* (in Validation Visit section, p. 195) \_\_ Completed Administrator's Report (Standards A1–D24, p. 17–82) Program's Mission Statement, Philosophy, and Goals (see Standard A1, p. 17) Total # submitted: The Observation Record for each classroom (p. 140) Do NOT send full observations The children's daily schedule for each classroom (each classroom on a separate page) \_ The work schedule for teacher(s) in each classroom (record on top right of the children's daily schedule with the lead teacher identified) **Survey Verification** (in Surveys section p. 156) \_\_ Record of *Employee Survey* totals (in Surveys section p. 145) Record of Family Survey totals (in Surveys section p. 153) Typed Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log for each employee specified in the Instruction for Completing Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log (In Administator's Report section p. 85) Three (3) most recent full licensing inspection reports, plus any investigation and/or complaint reports during the past two (2) years Any other documents that may be requested by the Accreditation Office Appropriate Validation Visit fee made payable to Association for Early Learning Leaders by **check or online payment** (see fees online at www.earlylearningleaders.org) The onsite validation visit will not be scheduled until all items listed above have been verified. **Check that you have complied with the following:** ☐ The above documents are submitted in looseleaf form, NO STAPLES. They are NOT spiral bound or placed in folders or a three-ring binder. All copies are single-sided on white, letter-size paper.

Before sending the request, carefully review the instructions for completion of each document found in the *Accreditation Manual* (See Table of Contents). Incomplete documents will be considered missing, and scheduling the onsite validation visit will be placed on hold with a fee charged for the second review.

This delay may cause programs to miss crucial deadlines and experience a lapse in accreditation.



### **Instructions for Completing Program Profile**

The information requested on the *Program Profile* is to enable the National Accreditation Commission to properly schedule the onsite validation visit. All information requested on the form must be provided. If you have questions on completing this form, please call the Accreditation Office for assistance.

#### **Page One**

- Provide current contact information, as it will be used to coordinate onsite validation visit date(s).
- For "Program Name", corporate programs include their corporate program number, if applicable.
- For "Number of Enrolled Families", record the program's current enrollment numbers at the time you submit the request for an onsite validation visit.
- For "Number of Enrolled Children", record the program's current enrollment numbers at the time you submit the request for an onsite validation visit.
- For "Number of Employees", record the current number of employees (as identified in Standards B1 and B2) at the time you submit the request for an onsite validation visit.
- For "Total Number of Classrooms", record the current number of classrooms at the time you submit the request for an onsite validation visit.
- Complete all other information as requested on the Program Profile.

#### Page Two

- Use the same classroom name as recorded on the *Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log*, children's daily schedule for each classroom, and the *Observation Record* for each classroom.
- List all teachers, including floaters, who are assigned to each classroom at some time during the day.
- Indicate the lead teacher in each classroom. The same lead teacher should be recorded on the Program Profile, the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log, the Observation Record, and the children's daily schedule.
- For "Maximum Group Size", record the largest number of children you would assign to the classroom.
- For "Current Group Size", record the number of children assigned to the classroom at the time you submit the request for an onsite validation visit.
- For "Ratio", record the ratio maintained in the classroom. Ratio can be calculated by dividing the total number of children by the total number of teachers.
- Complete all other information as requested on the *Program Profile*.

**NOTE**: If you have unique groupings in your program (such as groups of children that rotate to multiple rooms or a teacher who has multiple classroom during the week) and are unsure how to accurately complete this form, contact the Accreditation Office for assistance.

If the number of classrooms or age categories change after you submit the *Request for Validation Visit*, contact the Accreditation Office immediately with the updated information.



### **Program Profile**

<b>Program Name</b> (include your corporate progran	n number, if any)						
Physical Address				County			
City	State		Zip				
Telephone		E-mail	'				
Mailing Address (if different from above)			Website				
City		State		Zip			
	'		<u> </u>				
Director's Name							
<b>Director's Telephone Number</b> (if different from above)	at the Program			Does the director h program's e-mail a			
How long has the above name been director at this program							
Owner/Legally Responsible P (if different from director)	arty for Program						
Address				County	unty		
City		State		Zip			
Telephone	E-mail						
How long has the program been:	In Operation?		At this Location?	,	Under Current Ownership?		
Months of Operation	Days of Operation		Hours of Operation	ı	☐ Full Day ☐ Part Day ☐ Extended Day		
Licensed Capacity	Number of Enrolled		Number of Enrolled	of	Number of Employees		
	Families		Children	T=	(Standards B1 & B2)		
Age Groups Served (Check all that apply)  Infants Toddlers Twos Preschool Sch			Age	Total Number of Classrooms			
List all agencies that reg	ulate/license the	program					
Program Type (Check all that ap	ply)						
Sole Proprietor	Faith Affiliated		Campus	s Program	□ Drop In		
☐ Incorporated	Head Start		Corpora	ate Affiliate	Inclusion		
☐ Non-Profit	School District		Employ	er Sponsored	☐ ELL		
Other							



Classroom is defined as children assigned to identified teacher(s) in a designated space with well-defined barriers. This may be a classroom or a space within a large room that is separated by half walls or similar barriers that prevent intermingling of children.

Classroom Name				Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				
Classroom Name				Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				
Classroom Name				Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				
Classroom Name				Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				
Classroom Name				Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				
Classroom Name				Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				
Classroom Name				Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				
Classroom Name			-	Age Group
Maximum Group Size	Current Group Size	Ratio :	Days of the Week	Hours
Teacher(s)				

(Copy and attach additional pages as needed)



### **Disclaimer**

(Name of program)		
hereby releases and agrees to indemnify and ho the Association for Early Learning Leaders, their representatives, successors, and assigns, and all and from any and all claims, demands, obligatio ages, losses, costs, and expenses (including atto hereafter be incurred by, accrue to, or otherwise	r officers, directors, agen persons acting through ons, actions, causes of act orney's fees) of any natur	ts, servants, employees, legal or in concert with them, of tion, rights, injuries, dam-
(Name of program)		
or any person, corporation, association, partner Accreditation Commission or the Association for any way to this application for review and accreditation, or its supervision to obtain or main gence or willful misconduct.	r Early Learning Leaders ditation, the National Ac	arising out of or related in creditation Commission's
It is expressly understood that the National Accror implied) regarding accreditation and that the accreditation to applicant only signifies that appart time of the validation visit.	National Accreditation	Commission's granting of
I understand that this program has the right of a one or more validators assigned by the National		
I further understand that I may request a differe of such request must be given to the Accreditati validator's assignment.		
I understand that if awarded accreditation, I may compliance with Commission Standards.	y receive unannounced v	visits to determine ongoing
I understand that the validation visit fee is requi fundable whether or not accreditation is awarde have the right to a limited appeals process.	<del>-</del>	
Authorized person requesting validation visit:	Name o Torred	no Delinato d
	Name Typed o	orrinted
Signature	Title	Date



### **Day of Onsite Validation Visit**

#### **Points to Remember**

- The Validator(s) must see a "typical" day.
  - O Do not plan unusual activities or field trips or bring in extra volunteers or additional paid employees during your confirmed two-week window.
  - If circumstances appear to be out of the normal, the visit may be cancelled with no refund of fees.
- A private, confidential, and quiet workspace must be available for use by Validator(s), preferably close to, but separate from, the director's office.
  - If the only available private space in the program is the director's office, you will need to make alternate workspace arrangements for yourself on the day of the onsite validation visit.
- Any employee(s) hired after the *Request for Validation Visit* is submitted must be oriented to all Commission Standards, as they will be held responsible for compliance during the onsite validation visit.
- Outside consultants and mentors cannot be in the program on the day of the onsite validation visit.

#### Director's Schedule during a One-Day Onsite Validation Visit

The director must be available for the Validator(s) throughout the day, especially in the afternoon when the director will assist the Validator(s) with Standard verification, arrange for teacher interviews, and participate in the Exit Interview.

- Arrange to have someone available to handle the duties of the director all afternoon. The director will be required to work with the Validator(s) for the whole afternoon.
- If the director is also a scheduled classroom teacher, notify the Accreditation Office of this when requesting the onsite validation visit. A substitute will be needed for the classroom after 1:00 p.m. so the director can be available to the Validator(s) for the completion of the validation visit.
- It is not unusual for the onsite validation visit day to extend past 6:00 p.m. Make advance arrangements for personal activities, as the director's presence will be required at the program until the Validator departs. Depending on any unusual circumstances that may be experienced by the Validator(s), the size of the program, and/or the number of Standards the director will be asked to respond to in writing, the validation visit can extend into the evening.

#### **Exit Interview**

- The onsite director may choose to have one other onsite employee sit in on the Exit Interview.
  - Outside consultants and mentors cannot be present at the Exit Interview.
- The onsite director will have the opportunity to write a response under "Director Response" in the box marked "Observer/Validator's Use".
- Responses should focus on information that the National Accreditation Commission needs for an accurate picture of how the program implements a particular Standard and/or Indicator, as well as plans for correcting the concerns recorded by the Validator. Stating things such as "The teacher was nervous, but normally does a great job" or "We follow state requirements" is not helpful for showing that you will be proactive in maintaining Commission Standards.



- Written responses are limited to those of the onsite director.
  - O The National Accreditation Commission counts on the person responsible for the day-to-day operation of the program to have a clear understanding of Commission Standards and to ensure their implementation.
- You are encouraged to make copies of the completed validation visit documentation so you can use this information immediately to give feedback and training to teachers.
  - Copies must be made without causing a delay in concluding the visit. Arrange to have someone help with making copies as soon as each section of the completed validation visit documentation has been discussed with the Validator.
  - O If copies cannot be made at the program before the Validator departs, the Accreditation Office will make copies for a fee.

#### Typical Validator Schedule for a One-day Onsite Validation Visit

The following is a general outline of the Validator's tasks during a one-day onsite validation visit. Please note that the schedule for the validation visit is flexible and may vary from the order indicated depending on length of visit, number of validators, hours of operation, and any unexpected occurrences beyond the control of the Validator.

#### Morning

**Director** arranges their schedule to be available to Validator as needed, but in general, conducts business as usual for the morning.

#### Validator:

- Arrives at the program (around 8:00 a.m.), locates the director, and takes a brief tour of the facility.
- Does preliminary check of paperwork and documents.
- Begins observations in classrooms.

#### **Afternoon**

**Director** clears their calendar to be available to Validator to assist with Standard verification and document review and participates in Exit Interview.

#### **Validator:**

- Completes Administrator's Report.
- Interviews teachers at times arranged by the director (as needed).
- Reviews documents.
- Reviews children and employee records.
- Completes Classroom Observations as needed.
- Prepares Classroom Observations and Administrator's Report for Exit Interview.
- Holds Exit Interview with director.

# Glossary

### **Contents of this Section**

Glossary of Terms	201
Accreditation Standards	201



### **Glossary of Terms**

Accre	editation Standards
Access	<b>ible</b>
Accide	<b>nt Insurance</b>
Adapti	ive Skills
Aesthe	Appreciation for and enjoyment of artistic and creative expression. Typically, this includes music, visual arts, drama, and dance.
Air Qu	Found in weather forecasts, or by visiting <a href="https://www.airnow.gov">www.airnow.gov</a> , and should be checked daily. If the forecast is for a Code Orange day (unhealthy for sensitive populations) or above, strenuous outdoor activities should be minimized, or children should be kept indoors. Providers can sign up for electronic updates by visiting <a href="https://www.enviroflash.info">www.enviroflash.info</a> .
Anti-Id	Car exhaust releases pollutants that are harmful to health (especially to children) and the environment. Pollution from idling vehicles can also enter a facility, thus affecting the indoor air quality. Antiidling policies should mandate that all vehicles turn off their engines within the facility's designated parking areas as soon as possible to protect children from inhaling harmful car exhaust. The policy should be posted on or near the facility front door, and efforts should be made to ensure all families and caregivers are aware of the child care program's "anti-idling" policy. For more information, refer to Eco-Healthy Child Care® Air Quality Fact Sheet at <a href="https://www.cehn.org/ehcc">www.cehn.org/ehcc</a> .
Apprai	isal (Job Performance)
Apprai	isal (Self)
Assess	<b>ment</b>
Assista	ant Teacher/Teacher Aide



ASTM F1292 Standards	8
Autonomy	5
Available	7
Bisphenol A-Free (BPA-Free)	7
Bleach Concentrations	7
Follow guidance offered by local health authorities and/or the National Resource Center for Health and Safety in Child Care and Early Education.	
Use only an EPA-registered, unscented product. The product you purchased should have a label that says EPA Reg# and lists the number. For EPA-registered disinfectants, visit <a href="https://www.epa.gov">www.epa.gov</a> .	
<ul> <li>Follow the manufacturer's instructions.</li> </ul>	
Certificate of Additional Insured	9
Child Abuse and Neglect Training	9
Child Development Associate (CDA) Credential	2
Child-Initiated	8
Child-Safe Mirrors	8



Chromated Copper Arsenate (CCA) Wood
Also referred to as pressure-treated wood. The wood in pre-2006 playground sets, picnic tables, benches, and decks can contain potentially hazardous levels of arsenic due to the use of Chromated Copper Arsenate (CCA) as a wood preservative and insecticide. The EPA-registered CCA solution which is used to treat wood contains up to 30% arsenic. Children who regularly spend time on treated structures built prior to 2005 could potentially be exposed to arsenic (e.g., by putting their hands in their mouths after playing on treated structures), but such exposures may be avoided or reduced by following the recommendations listed on CEHN's Arsenic Fact Sheet. For more information, refer to CEHN's Arsenic Fact Sheet at <a href="https://www.cehn.org/ehcc">www.cehn.org/ehcc</a> .
Classroom
To physically remove all dirt and other organic contamination by washing with soap/detergent and water solution and rinsing with water. Routine cleaning with detergent and water is the most useful method for removing contaminants from surfaces in the child care setting. For more information, refer to the National Resource Center for Health and Safety in Child Care and Early Education at <a href="http://nrckids.org/files/appendix/AppendixK.pdf">http://nrckids.org/files/appendix/AppendixK.pdf</a> .
The total number of actual hours a person spends attending class or other instructional activities/ trainings. To determine clock hours from college credits, multiply the number of units by the number of course weeks. For example, 3 semester credits taken over 16 weeks is 48 clock hours.
Cognitive Development
Promises, understandings, or agreements that teachers make with children during the course of the day. Examples include "You will get to have a turn after", "We will read the book again tomorrow", and "I will bring the cars from the resource room after nap."
Compensation Plan
Competition
Concept Development
Confidential
Continuing Education Unit (CEU)
Continuity of Care



CPR (Pe	diatric/Adult)
i g	Also referred to as Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation. An emergency lifesaving procedure performed when the heart stops beating. Employees must be trained by a nationally recognized or state licens- ng-approved authority, such as the American Red Cross, American Heart Association, and National Safety Council. Other authorities should be nationally accredited or U.S. Department of Health and Human Services approved.
7	The US Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC) Safety Guidelines
	Bias
	<b>y</b>
	D18, G6 Scattered pieces of waste, rubble, broken or discarded items.
9	omental Norms and Expectations
- / a	<b>Dimental Screening</b>
Dictate .	A child speaks and observes their words being written down.
(	r
- - - - -	ne Policy (Children)
t f c	To destroy or inactivate most germs on non-porous surfaces, such as diaper changing tables, countercops, door and cabinet handles, hand washing sinks, toilets, and other bathroom surfaces. A disingectant is effective only if organic matter has been first cleaned from the surface/object with a soap/detergent and water solution and rinsed with water. For additional guidelines, contact local health authorities or refer to the National Resource Center for Health and Safety in Child Care and Early Education at <a href="http://nrckids.org/files/appendix/AppendixJ.pdf">http://nrckids.org/files/appendix/AppendixJ.pdf</a> . For EPA-registered disinfectants, visit
	F1



<b>Diversity</b>
<b>Educational Purpose (Technology)</b>
Emergency Communication
Emergency Lighting
Emergency Medication
Emergency Preparedness Plan
<b>Emotional Security.</b>
Environmental Hazard
<b>EPA-Registered</b>
Evaluation (Program)
Expert
<b>Fall Zones</b>



	minimum of six feet in all directions from the edge of stationary playground equipment. Refer to US onsumer Product Safety Commission for their <i>Public Playground Safety Handbook</i> at <a href="https://www.cpsc.gov">www.cpsc.gov</a> .
Re of cu nc tre tra to	(Pediatric/Adult)
Su ch m	Kit (State-Approved)
Ba in	Supplies (Classroom/Outdoor Learning Environment)
Of	onferences
Ide	<b>leutral</b>
<b>Gestures</b> M	
Th ex in an wi co <b>No</b>	ne purpose for having children engage in an activity/learning experience. The goal of the planned experience is the knowledge, skill, or understanding that children will acquire through participation the experience. Goals for the routines and experiences of infants and toddlers are individualized and relate to developmental milestones. Goals must be written out in their full form. For example, eith regards to lesson plan goals, "At the manipulative table, the activity would be children sorting/bunting pompoms using tweezers; the goal would be fine motor skills: hand and finger strength."  OTE: Referring to the goals by early learning outcome numbers or any other abbreviation will not be accepted.
St m	<b>ogram)</b>
	<b>ze.</b>



Hand-I	Also refe	erred to	on	
Hand V			opriate Times)	
	All Empl	loyees, v	olunteers, and children are to wash their hands at the following times:	
	<ul> <li>Upon arrival for the day, after breaks, or when moving from one child care group to another</li> <li>Before and after:</li> </ul>			
		0	Preparing food or beverages Eating, handling food or beverages, or feeding a child Giving medication Playing in water that is used by more than one person	
	•	After:		
		0 0	Diapering Using the toilet or helping a child use a toilet Handling bodily fluid (mucus, blood, vomit), from sneezing, wiping and blowing noses, from mouths, or from sores	
	•	Playing Cleanir	ng pets and other animals or cleaning up animal waste g in sandboxes and playing outside ng or handling the garbage Activities	
Hands-	Opportu	unities to	es	
Hazaro	A plan for plan inc material the loca to, merc	or what v ludes ste ls must b I hazarde ury spill	will happen at the program if something concerning hazardous waste occurs. The eps to be taken for exposure to children or employees, clean up, and disposal. Toxic be cleaned up according to local or state public health standards and disposed of at ous waste collection site. Examples of hazardous waste include, but are not limited from a broken fluorescent light bulb or broken thermometer, accidental spillage of posal of unused paint or chemicals.	
Head E	Opening could ca	gs betwe ntch clot US Cons	een 3.5 and 9 inches that could trap a body or part of a body and projections that hing, thus preventing withdrawal and possibly resulting in strangulation and death. Sumer Product Safety Commission for their <i>Public Playground Safety Handbook</i> at	
Health	Is condu	icted an	D6 d signed by a qualified health care professional such as a licensed physician, regis- titioner, or physician assistant.	
Health	A trained nurse program health, o	d health ractition ns regard contagio	organization or professional	



local pediatricians, the local chapter of the American Academy of Pediatrics, or your local Child Care Resource and Referral Agency (CCR&R).
<b>Health Practices</b>
<b>Health Screenings</b>
Hypothesis/Prediction
Incident
A written document, derived from Part B of IDEA 2004 (Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act), that is designed to meet a child's individual educational program needs beginning at age 3. The main purposes for an IEP are to set reasonable learning goals and to state the services that the school district will provide for a child with special educational needs. Every child who is qualified for special educational services provided by the school district is required to have an IEP.
Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP)
Inflections
Integrated Pest Management (IPM)
Examples of IPM include: Cleaning up food and drink spills right away; Not leaving dirty dishes in the sink; Not allowing children to eat food other than in designated areas; Storing food in tightly sealed glass or metal containers; Fixing all leaks promptly and removing standing water; Sealing or caulking cracks and holes (insect entry-ways); Removing clutter so pests have fewer places to hide; Keeping trash in a closed container and taking it out frequently.
If you must use chemical pesticides, notify families and employees in advance about the timing and location of applications and what product(s) will be used. Make certain that the individual applying pesticides is a licensed professional.
Choose a pest management professional (PMP) that practices IPM. Certified PMPs can be located by searching: Green Shield Certified ( <a href="www.greenshieldcertified.org">www.greenshieldcertified.org</a> ), Green Pro ( <a href="www.npmagreen-pro.org">www.npmagreen-pro.org</a> ), or Eco-Wise ( <a href="www.ecowisecertified.org">www.ecowisecertified.org</a> ). For more information, see Eco-Healthy Child Care® Pesticides Fact Sheet at <a href="www.cehn.org/ehcc">www.cehn.org/ehcc</a> .



i	<b>ge Development</b>
;     	Young children are at a greater risk of lead poisoning for several reasons. They often put their hands and other objects in their mouths—these objects may have lead dust on them. If they are exposed to high levels of lead, in paint, dust, or drinking water, their bodies can easily absorb the lead. Children sometimes eat lead-based paint because it can have a sweet taste. A child's body reacts differently to lead, as compared to an adult's body. Children's brains and nervous systems are still developing, thus they are more sensitive to the neurotoxic effects of lead.
 	Lead is currently used in the production of certain batteries, metal and PVC (polyvinyl chloride) piping, plumbing fixtures, electronic products, art supplies, ceramics, play jewelry, PVC toys (rubber duckies, beach balls, dolls, bath books), and paint. Due to health concerns, lead has been significantly reduced in paint, ceramic products, caulking, and pipe solder. Many urban areas have high levels of lead in their soil. The Environmental Protection Agency's Renovation, Repair and Painting (RRP) rule requires that renovations of child-occupied facilities be carried out only by Lead-Safe Certified renovation firms, using certified renovators trained in lead-safe work practices. For more information, refer to Eco-Healthy Child Care® Lead Fact Sheet at <a href="www.cehn.org/ehcc">www.cehn.org/ehcc</a> .
1	<b>acher</b> THROUGHOUT Primary employee responsible for curriculum, assessment, and the direct care of children in a class- room and is included in the staff-child ratio. The program has at least one lead teacher per classroom of children.
	<b>Plan</b>
1 9 1	Plan Evaluation
9	D19, G6 Secured with a device that will prevent a child from accessing. Examples include, but are not limited to, lock/key, child safety locks, magnetic locks, and self-locking cabinet/door.
- i i i	Consequences
! :	Understanding basic math ideas that develop over time as the child has first-hand experiences with numbers, patterns, shapes, spatial relationships, measurements, classification, and comparison. This includes the vocabulary that describes concepts such as big, small, under, circle, more than, the same as, repetition, inches, and degrees.



Media Relations
Medication
Medication Device
Medication Route
Mercury-Containing Items
Mindfulness
Mission Statement
Mobile InfantsEa Infants who are able to freely move from location to location.
Model
Modifications
Motor Development
Motor Skills (Fine)
Motor Skills (Gross)



Proc	Cleaning Process
Clean	To remove dirt, organic matter, and debris by scrubbing and washing with a detergent solution and rinsing with water. The friction of cleaning removes most germs and exposes any remaining germs to the effects of a sanitizer or disinfectant used later.
Sanitize	To reduce germs on inanimate surfaces to levels considered safe by public health codes or regulations.
Disinfect	To destroy or inactivate most germs on any inanimate object.
Proh basi: tion, mari loca	mination Laws
	n
	e Infants
Not (ACN	G7 poisonous or toxic. Nontoxic art supplies are approved by the <i>Art and Creative Materials Institute</i> All) and are labeled with ACMI's nontoxic seal "AP" and conforms to ASTM D-4236. For more inforon, refer to <a href="https://www.acminet.org">www.acminet.org</a> .
	nd Free From Bias
Obje	<b>n</b>
Shoi desc a fac be n the j tion: Infoi	rt, objective, narrative notes made at the time of, or shortly after, an observation that accurately tribe in detail a particular event that has been observed. There is to be no analysis of intent, only trual report of actions and words. Notes should be collected in the child's confidential file. To nost useful, each recorded observation should contain the name of the child being observed, place, date, and time of observation, as well as the observer's name. Multiple recorded observations that have been collected over time will give evidence of the child's learning and development. It mation obtained from written observations is to be used as part of the evidence for assessments. It is a province of observations allow parents to get a realistic picture of their child at the pro-
	ervisor
Supp	d Art Materials



Open-i	Words spoken by the teacher that encourage children to think about, experiment with, and express possible answers. Open-ended questions/statements do not require a "right" answer; such questions/statements elicit more than a "yes" or "no" response. For example, "Tell me what you know about", "What do you think will happen when?", "What can you do to let Sadie know you want to play?".
Operat	ing Procedures
Organi	<b>c Matter</b>
Orient	A4 An organized system to ensure that each new employee has the basic information about the program, job responsibilities, and program expectations, and has a working knowledge of the program's policies and procedures.
Orient	A written plan for familiarizing families with the program and introducing children into the class-room. Such a plan ensures that each family receives the same information and opportunities and has a working knowledge of the program's policies and procedures.
Parasit	<b>es</b>
Parent	Parent includes anyone in a parental role with a child: mother, father, foster parents, adoptive parents, grandparents and other relatives who are responsible for raising a child, and legal guardians.
Perfori	mance Standards
Persist	ence
Person	<b>nel Policies</b>
Philoso	pphy
	A description of the program's views on basic issues in education, beliefs about how young children learn, and the value the program places on the roles of families and teachers. The philosophy guides overall program goals.
Phono	logical Awareness
	The ability to hear, identify, and manipulate speech sounds in spoken language. Elements include rhythm, alliteration (letter-sound repetition), rhyme, syllables (segmentation and blending), and phonemes (the simplest unit of sound, such as the /b/ in ball).



Phtha	lates	/د
	A class of chemicals that are used to soften plastics, such as PVC (Polyvinyl Chloride), bind fragrances in products, and act as solvents and fixatives, such as nail polishes. Human exposure occurs through: Inhalation - breathing in fragrances, or fumes from solvents and fixatives; Ingestion - chewing on a plastic toy creates small openings in the plastic, providing an avenue for leaching of chemicals from the toy into a child's mouth; and Skin Absorption - lotion, perfumes, deodorants. Adverse health effects include hormone disruption, developmental and reproductive problems, asthma, preterm birth, low sperm count, undescended testes, genital malformations, premature puberty, and development of some cancers.	
Playgr	Evaluation of playground (outdoor learning environment) spaces to verify that all safety criteria are met. The inspection can be conducted by the program itself, or a professional evaluator can be hired to do the inspection. A suggested General Maintenance Checklist can be found in the <i>Public Playground Safety Handbook</i> , published by the Consumer Product Safety Commission at <a href="https://www.cpsc.gov">www.cpsc.gov</a> . This list should be modified to comply with the specifications of your own playground (outdoor learning environment).	18
Playgr	Monitoring of playground (outdoor learning environment) spaces and equipment on a daily basis to remove, correct, or make repairs to prevent injuries. A list of Routine Inspection and Maintenance Issues can be found in the <i>Public Playground Safety Handbook</i> , published by Consumer Product Safety Commission at <a href="www.cpsc.gov">www.cpsc.gov</a> . This list should be modified to comply with the specifications of your own playground (outdoor learning environment).	18
Positiv	Practices that reflect an intentional and proactive approach to guiding children that supports learning, minimizes challenging behavior, and assists in the development of positive social and emotional skills; the teaching of appropriate social and emotional skills through preventive practices, which include guiding children's behavior by establishing predictable routines, setting clear limits, and by modeling kindness and respect.	F4
Print C	The rules about the organization of print and its use in reading and writing tasks. Print concepts include print directionality (left to right, top to bottom), book parts (cover, spine, back), author, illustrator, text versus illustrations, the relationship of letters to words, and, at higher levels, the importance of spaces between words, punctuation, and capitalization.	12
Print-f	Rich Environment	13
Pro-So	Voluntary behavior/actions intended to benefit another.	F3
Proble	Process of working through the details of a problem to reach a solution.	18
Proces	The experience of using and creating with art materials, rather than working on a product with a predetermined outcome. It is art directed by the child, not by the adult.	17
Profes	A written plan for each employee that defines goals for growth and improvement. The plan is based on information obtained through the appraisal process. It includes the educational goals and professional interests of the employee. The plan is a working document that is to be reviewed regularly for	36



	noted on the plan and on the Formal Education and Ongoing Training Log.
•	<b>ional Ethics</b>
	<b>s</b>
	Pnary Period
	e <b>Timeout</b>
	r <b>Credit</b>
	Radon is a radioactive gas that you can't see or smell. It is produced by the natural breakdown of uranium in soil and water. Uranium is found in soils worldwide, with some areas having higher concentrations than others. Any building can have a radon problem. Radon gets into a building by moving up through the ground, and then through cracks and holes in the foundation. Buildings can trap radon, which can lead to harmful concentrations indoors. It is imperative that each child care facility test their building for radon to be sure that children and employees are safe. Radon Testing – Common Radon Test kits are available at larger home improvement stores, typically costing about \$15; multiple kits may be required depending on size of facility. Test kits also can be ordered from online retailers, as well as from the National Radon Program Services. Visit <a href="www.sosradon.org">www.sosradon.org</a> or call 1-800-SOS-RADON. For more information, refer to Eco-Healthy Child Care® Radon Fact Sheet at <a href="www.sosradon.org">www.sosradon.org</a> or call <a href="https://www.sosradon.org">cehn.org/ehcc</a> .
	<b>Mitigation</b>
	(Policies/Procedures)
_	cal Conversation
	r



<b>Respect</b>
<b>Responsive</b>
<b>Risk-Taking</b>
<b>Routine</b>
To reduce germs on inanimate surfaces, such as food contact surfaces (tabletops, dishes, utensils, cutting boards, high chair trays), toys that children may place in their mouths, and pacifiers. A sanitizer is effective only if organic matter has been first cleaned from the surface or object with a soap/detergent and water solution and rinsed with water. For additional guidelines, contact local health authorities or refer to the National Resource Center for Health and Safety in Child Care and Early Education at <a href="http://nrckids.org/files/appendix/AppendixJ.pdf">http://nrckids.org/files/appendix/AppendixJ.pdf</a> . For EPA-registered sanitizers, visit <a href="https://www.epa.gov">www.epa.gov</a> .
Science Concepts
Screened for Lead
<b>Security Measures</b>
Security Object
Self-Care
<b>Self-Control</b>
Self-Expression
Self-Help Skills
<b>Self-Regulation</b>
Semester Credit



Shaker	Also referred to as Abusive Head Trauma, Shaken Impact Syndrome, Inflicted Head Injury, or Whiplash Shake Syndrome. Occurs when a child is severely shaken. Permanent brain damage or death may result. Symptoms include, but are not limited to, irritability, difficulty staying awake, seizures, abnormal breathing, poor eating, bruises, and vomiting.
Shock-	Absorbing Surfaces
	Surfaces of rubber or rubber-like materials must meet ASTM F1292 Standards that approximate the "critical height" rating below which a life-threatening head injury would not be expected to occur in the event of a child falling from playground equipment onto the surface. Manufacturers and installers of playground protective surfacing should provide the critical height rating of their materials, verifying that they meet ASTM F1292 Standards. For more information about health and safety issues with certain playground surfaces, including crumb rubber and artificial turf, see Eco-Healthy Child Care® Playground Surfaces FAQ at <a href="www.cehn.org">www.cehn.org</a> .
Shoe-F	Shoes that are worn outside are covered by single use shoe covers when in the classroom environment. Inside shoes are used only within the classroom environment or no shoes are used at all. For more information, refer to National Resource Center for Health and Safety in Child Care and Early Education at <a href="https://www.nrckids.org/CFOC">www.nrckids.org/CFOC</a> .
Smokiı	<b>ng</b>
Social	A child's feelings, expression, behaviors, attachments, and management of emotions, as well as the ability to establish relationships with others. This encompasses both intrapersonal and interpersonal processes.
Social	Media Policy/Procedures
Social	<b>Studies</b>
Soiled	
Staff-C	<b>hild Ratio</b>



<b>Tap Water (Lead)</b>
A service line connects the water main (the underground pipe that delivers water to the customer's service pipe) to the plumbing of a building or a home. Water mains are usually made out of iron or steel; however, LSLs that were constructed before Congress banned them in 1986 are a public health hazard as they actually contain lead. Here are additional resources for lead in tap water:
EPA: http://www.water.epa.gov/infrastructure/drinkingwater/schools/
<u>guidance.cfm#sdwa</u> ■ EPA: http://www.epa.gov/safewater/lead
<ul> <li>The Safe Drinking Water Hotline: 1-800-426-4791</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Lead Service Line Replacement Collaborative: <a href="http://www.lslr-collaborative.org">http://www.lslr-collaborative.org</a></li> <li>Environmental Defense Fund's Report, Putting Children First: Tackling Lead in Water at Child Care Facilities</li> </ul>
TB Test
Also referred to as Tuberculosis Skin Test. Test provided by a licensed health care provider to determine if a person has contracted Tuberculosis. Additional information and recommendations for frequency of testing can be obtained from local health authorities.
Teachable Moments
<b>Feacher-Guided</b>
Technology Usage (Policy/Procedures)
<b>Technology/Software Applications</b>
Femporary Needs
Foxic Materials
Fransition Planning
Transitions



Transı	<b>portation</b>
Trust	
Unint	errupted
Unive	A4, A6, D8, G2 Also referred to as Standard Precautions or Blood-Borne Pathogens. Steps recommended by the American Academy of Pediatrics to minimize the spread of infectious disease through contact with blood, bodily fluids, and excretions. Precautions include use of barriers, such as disposable diaper changing table paper, disposable towels, disposable gloves, and surfaces that can be cleaned and disinfected.
USDA	's Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) Guidelines
Vinyl (	(Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC)) Containing Products
Volun	<b>teers</b>
Walk-	<b>Off Mat</b>

# **Appendices**

## **Contents of this Section**

A: Sample Letter to Families	220
B: Bibliography	221
Administration	221
Classroom	222



### **A: Sample Letter to Families**

Dear Families,

We thank you for the confidence you place in us every day as you leave your child in our care. It is our goal to continue to stay informed and implement principles of high-quality early childhood education.

In our effort to do so, we have chosen to enter into a national accreditation process. The process will analyze individual standards of quality in early care and education programs such as health and safety, administration, professional development, family communication, curriculum, and interactions between employees and children. The accreditation process includes a self-study in which administrators, employees, and families evaluate the program on these standards. As we work through the self-study process, we will request your perspective and provide an opportunity to give feedback through completing a family survey issued by the accrediting body.

The second step in the process is an onsite validation visit and thorough review of all program aspects. The validation visit consists of an experienced early childhood professional visiting our program. The validator(s) will independently and objectively assess the same standards on which we have assessed ourselves.

The validator's assessment is closely reviewed by National Accreditation Commission early childhood experts who make the final accreditation decision. We feel that no matter the accreditation outcome, the process will allow us to identify our strengths, implement plans of improvement, and demonstrate our commitment to providing excellence in early care and education.

The entire staff and I appreciate your support and encouragement as we engage in this process.

Sincerely,

#### **About Accreditation by the National Accreditation Commission**

The National Accreditation Commission for Early Care and Education Programs is offered by the Association for Early Learning Leaders. The Association for Early Learning Leaders is the nation's leader among associations serving child care owners, directors, and administrators, as well as emerging leaders and other professionals who are dedicated to early care and education. For more information about the Association for Early Learning Leaders and the National Accreditation Commission, please visit www.earlylearningleaders.org.



## **B:** Bibliography

Revision of Commission Standards involved a thorough and extensive review of literature and tools in administration, professional development, curriculum, social and emotional development, health, and safety. Early care and education rating scales, assessment tools, state quality rating systems and early learning guidelines, and research reports of recognized authorities were reviewed to ensure that current evidence-based practices were used as identifiers of quality outcomes for young children. A selected bibliography of these materials follows.

#### **Administration**

- American Academy of Pediatrics, American Public Health Association, National Resource Center for Health and Safety in Child Care and Early Education. (2011). Caring for our children: National health and safety performance standards: Guidelines for early care and education programs (3rd ed.). Elk Grove Village, IL: American Academy of Pediatrics; Washington, DC: American Public Health Association.
- American Academy of Pediatrics, Healthy Child Care America. (2009) *Developmental screening in early childhood systems: Summary report*. Itasca, IL: American Academy of Pediatrics.
- Bloom, P. J. (2005). *Blueprint for action: Achieving center-based change through staff development* (2nd ed.). IL: New Horizons Educational Consultants and Learning Resources.
- Child Care Aware of America. (2013). We Can Do Better Child Care Aware of America's Ranking of State Child Care Center Regulations and Oversite 2013 Update. Washington, DC: Child Care Aware of America.
- Center for the Study of Social Policy. (2014). Strengthening Families™ Self-Assessment Tool for Center-Based Early Care and Education Programs. Washington, DC: Center for the Study of Social Policy.
- Couch, B., & Gamble, L. (2000). *Weekday early education administrative guide*. Nashville, TN: LifeWay Church Resources.
- Koralek, D. G., Colker, L. J., & Dodge, D. T. (2002). *The what, why, and how of high quality early childhood education: A guide for on-site supervision* (Rev. ed.). Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- LaRue Allen and Bridget B. Kelly, Editors; Committee on the Science of Children Birth to Age 8: Deepening and Broadening the Foundation for Success; Board on Children, Youth, and Families; Institute of Medicine; National Research Council. (2015). *Transforming the Workforce for Children Birth through Age 8 A Unifying Foundation*. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press.
- Longstreth, Sascha, & Garrity, Sarah. (2018). *Effective Discipline Policies: How to Create a System that Supports Young Children's Social Emotional Competence*. Lewisville, NC: Gryphon House.
- National AfterSchool Association. (1998). *NAA standards for quality school-age care*. Charlestown, MA: The National AfterSchool Association.
- Reno, H. with Stutzman, J., & Zimmerman, J. (2008). *Handbook for early childhood administrators: Directing with a mission*. Pearson Education, Inc.
- Sciarra, D. J., & Dorsey, A. G. (2003). *Developing and administering a child care center* (5th ed.). NY: Delmar Thomson Learning.
- Sciarra, D. J., & Dorsey, A. G. (2002). *Leaders and supervisors in child care programs*. Canada: Delmar Thompson Learning.



- Talan, T. N., & Bloom, P. J. (2004). *Program administration scale: Measuring early childhood leadership and management*. NY: Teachers College Press.
- Talan, T. N., & Bloom, P. J. (2011). *Program administration scale: Measuring early childhood leadership and management* (2nd ed.). NY: Teachers College Press.
- U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission. (2015). *Public Playground Safety Handbook*. Bethesda, MD: United States Consumer Product Safety Commission.
- U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Administration for Children and Families Child Care Bureau. (2007). Systemic Approaches to Improving Quality of Care, QRS Gain Ground Across the Nation. Child Care Bulletin 32.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. (2017). *NIEHS/EPA Children's Environmental Health and Disease Prevention Research Centers Impact Report: Protecting children's health where they live, learn, and play.* EPA Publication No. EPA/600/R-17/407.

#### Classroom

- Boyd, J., Barnett, W. S., Bodrova, E., Leong, D. J., & Gomby, D. (2005). *Promoting children's social and emotional development through preschool education*. NIEER Preschool Policy Brief.
- Arizona Department of Education. (2013). *Early Learning Standards*. Phoenix, AZ: Arizona Department of Education, Early Childhood Education Unit.
- Brazelton, T. B., & Sparrow, J. D. (2001). *Touchpoints, three to six: Your child's emotional and behavioral development*. NY: Da Capo Press.
- Bredekamp, S., & Rosegrant, T. (Eds.). (1992). *Reaching potentials: Appropriate curriculum and assessment for young children Vol. 1&2*. Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Center on the Social and Emotional Foundations for Early Learning. (2006). *Inventory of practices for promoting children's social emotional competence: Center on the social emotional foundations for early learning*. Urbana-Champaign, IL: University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign.
- Charlesworth, R., & Lind, K. K. (2003). *Math and science for young children* (4th ed.). NY: Delmar Thompson Learning.
- Connecticut Early Childhood Education Cabinet. Connecticut Office of Early Learning. (2014). CTELDS Connecticut Early Learning and Development Standards: What children, birth to five, should know and be able to do. Connecticut Office of Early Learning
- Copple,C., & Bredekamp, S. (2009). *Developmentally appropriate practice in early childhood programs serving children from birth through age* 8 (3rd ed.). Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Copley, J. V. (2000). *The young child and mathematics*. Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Dodge, D. T., Dombro, A. L., & Koralek, D. G. (1991). *Caring for infants and toddlers*. Washington, DC: Teaching Strategies.
- Dodge, D. T., Colker, L. J., & Heroman, C. (2004). *Creative curriculum for preschool* (4th ed.). NY: Delmar Thompson Learning.



- Elkind, D. (2007). *The power of play: Learning what comes naturally*. Philadelphia, PA: Da Capo Press Lifelong Books.
- Epstein, A. S. (2007). The intentional teacher: Choosing the best strategies for young children's learning.
- Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Epstein. A.E., High Scope Educational Research Foundation (2016). PQA Preschool Program Quality Assessment, Revised 2nd Edition. Ypsilanti, MI: HighScope Press.
- Everts, J., Springmeyer, T., & Murillo, R. (2011). *Nevada Infant and Toddler Early Learning Guidelines*. Nevada Department of Education.
- First Things First & Arizona Department of Education Early Childhood Programs. *Arizona's Infant and Toddler Guidelines* (1st Ed.). Phoenix, AZ: Arizona Department of Education.
- Greenberg, M. T. & Harris, A.R. (2011). Nurturing Mindfulness in Children and Youth: Current State of Research. *Child Development Perspectives The Study for Research in Child Development*. Volume 0, Number 0, 1-6.
- Gronlund, G. (2014). *New Mexico Early Learning Guidelines: Birth Through Kindergarten*. New Mexico State Children, Youth and Families Department, Department of Health and Public Education Department.
- Harms, T., Clifford R. M., & Cryer, D. (2005). *Early childhood environment rating scale* (Rev. ed.). NY: Teachers College Press.
- Harms, T., Clifford, R.M., Cryer, D. (2015). *Early Childhood Environmental Rating Scale (3rd Edition)*. New York, NY: Teachers College Press.
- Harms, T., Cryer, D., & Clifford, R. M. (2006). *Infant/toddler environment rating scale* (Rev. ed.). NY: Teachers College Press.
- Harms, T., Jacobs, E. W., & White, D. R. (1996). School-age environment rating scale. NY: Teachers College Press.
- Harrist, A. W., Thompson, S. D., & Norris, D. J. (2007). Defining quality child care: Multiple stakeholder perspectives. *Early Education and Development*, 18, 305 336.
- HighScope Educational Research Foundation (2011). *Infant-Toddler PQA Program Quality Assessment*. Ypsilanti, MI: HighScope Press.
- Hirsch, E. S. (1995). *The block book* (3rd ed.). Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Illinois Early Learning and Development Standards Preschool Revised (2013). Springfield, IL: Illinois State Board of Education.
- Jablon, J. R., Dombro, A. L., & Dichtelmiller, M. L. (2007). *The power of observation* (2nd ed.). Washington, DC: Teaching Strategies, Inc. & National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Katz, L. G., & McClellan, D. (1997). Fostering children's social competence: The teacher's role. Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Kovach, B., & Da Ros-Voseles, D. (2008). *Being with babies: Understanding and responding to the infants in your care*. Beltsville, MD: Gryphon House, Inc.



- LaParo, K. M., Pianta, R. C., & Hamre, B. (2002). *Classroom assessment scoring system (CLASS): Pre-K version*. Charlottesville, VA: University of Virginia.
- Miller, D. F. (2004). Positive child guidance (4th ed.). Canada: Delmar Thompson Learning.
- Minnesota Department of Health. (2007). *Early childhood indicators of progress: Minnesota's early learning guidelines for birth to 3.* St. Paul, MN: Children and Family Services.
- National Association for Sport & Physical Education. (2009). *Appropriate practices in movement programs for children ages 3 5*. Reston, VA: National Association for Sport & Physical Education.
- Neuman, S. B., Copple, C., & Bredekamp, S. (2000). *Learning to read and write: Developmentally appropriate practices for young children*. Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Scott-Little, C., Brown, G., Collins, E. (2013). *North Carolina Foundations for Early Learning and Development*. Raleigh, NC: North Carolina Foundations Task Force.
- Pennsylvania Department of Human Services, Pennsylvania Department of Education. (2014). *Pennsylvania Learning Standards for Early Childhood, Pre-kindergarten*. PA: Office of Child Development and Early Learning.
- Oklahoma Department of Human Services Division of Child Care. *Oklahoma early learning guidelines for children ages three through five*. OK: Oklahoma Department of Human Services Division of Child Care.
- Owocki, G. (2001). *Make way for literacy! Teaching the way young children learn*. Portsmouth, NH: Heinemann & Washington, DC: National Association for the Education of Young Children.
- Raver, C. C. (2002). Emotions matter: Making the case for the role of young children's emotional development for early school readiness. Society for Research in Child Development. Social Policy Report. Vol. XVI, Number 3.
- Sandall, S., McLean, M. E., & Smith, B. J. (2000). *DEC recommended practices in early intervention/early child-hood special education*. Longmont, CO: Sopris West & Denver, CO: Division for Early Childhood (DEC) of the Council for Exceptional Children (CEC).
- Schickendanz, J. A. (1999). *Much more than the ABCs: The early stages of reading and writing*. Washington, DC: National Academy Press.
- Sprigmeyer, T., Severens, A. & Randolph, T. Editor. (2010). *Nevada Pre-Kindergarten Standards Revised and Approved: 2010, Building a Foundation for School Readiness and Success in Pre-K and Beyond*. Carson City, NV: Nevada Department of Education.
- Teaching Strategies, Inc. (2001). *The Creative Curriculum®developmental continuum for ages 3 5*. Washington, DC: Teaching Strategies, Inc.
- Washington State Department of Early Learning, State of Washington Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction, Thrive by Five Washington. (2012). Washington State Early Learning and Development Guidelines Birth through 3rd Grade. Olympia, WA: Washington State Department of Early Learning.
- Washington State, Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction. (2005). *Early learning and development benchmarks*. Retrieved 11/20/07 from <a href="https://www.k12.wa.us/EarlyLearning/Benchmarks.aspx">www.k12.wa.us/EarlyLearning/Benchmarks.aspx</a>.
- Wellhousen, K. (2002). *Outdoor play, every day: Innovative play concepts for early childhood*. Albany, NY: Delmar Thomson Learning.



- Whitebook, M., Phillips, D., Howes, C. (2014). Worthy Work, STILL Unlivable Wages: The Early Childhood Workforce 25 Years after the National Child Care Staffing Study. Berkley, CA: Center for the Study of Child Care Employment, Institute for Research on Labor and Employment, University of California, Berkeley.
- Wisconsin Model Early Learning Standards Steering Committee. (2014). *Wisconsin Model Early Learning Standards (4th edition.)*. Madison, WI: Wisconsin Child Care Information Center.
- Work, B. (Ed.). (2005). Foundations: Early learning standards for North Carolina preschoolers and strategies for guiding their success [Electronic version]. Public Schools of North Carolina: The Early Childhood Section and Exceptional Preschool Program, NC Department of Public Instruction.